Rhaglen Gyflawn

CommitteeName

MeetingDatel egal, MeetingTime

MeetingLocation

A/]Icz}pern
ills
D 4

istrict
uncil

Members: MembersExpectedShortRolesList

Agenda



Eitem 1

rsGom
ﬁ—-.._f Sir fJJinh_\rh S|r Y Fﬂmt
Denbighshi
W CONWY @ Debighiic Flmtshlre

Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr
Chief Officer (Governance)
Prif Swyddog (LIywodraethu)

Y Cynghorwyr: Eryl Williams, Aaron Shotton, Kevin
Jones, Dave Cowans, Michael Priestley, David
Smith, John Wynn Jones, Richard Dew and J.
Arwel Roberts

Annwyl Syr / Fadam

ﬂ'i‘*-i.'-ﬂﬂ'

Slr Fflint
Fllntshlre

COURTY COLANE]

CSING
17 Mehefin 2016

Nicola Gittins 01352 702345
nicola.gittins@flintshire.gov.uk

Cynhelir Cyfarfod CYD-BWYLLGOR GWASTRAFEF GWEDDILLIOL GOGLEDD

CYMRU yn OPTIC GLYNDWR, PARC BUSNES LLANELWY, LLANELWY,

LL17 0JD ar DYDD LLUN, 27 MEHEFIN 2016 am 10.00 y.b i drafod y materion

canlynol.

*Gofynnir i'r Cyd-Bwyllgor nodi y newid mewn lleoliad*

**Fe fydd WTI ar gael ar leoliad i'w alw mewn i'r cyfarfod fel bo angen**

Yr eiddoch yn gywir

e

P .t

Peter Evans

Rheolwr Democratiaeth a Rheolaeth

AGENDA

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU

2 DATGAN DIDDORDEB

County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.flintshire.gov.uk

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR
Ffén 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.siryfflint.gov.uk

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English
j;i]_ae'r yn&or yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg

1



3 ETHOL CADEIRYDD AG IS-GADEIRYDD I'R PWYLLGOR

4 CYMERADWYO COENODION BLAENOROL

5 MATERION YN CODI O'R CYFARFOD BLAENOROL

6 CYFRIFON BLYNYDDOL

7 ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD

8 RHWYDWAITH GORSAFOEDD TROSGLWYDD GWASTRAFFE

9 AlL GYTUNDEB RYNGAWDURDODOL

DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD AT WYBODAETH) 1985 — 1 GYSIDRO
EITHRIO'R WASG A'R CYHOEDD

Mae'r eitemau isod yn cael ei gysdrio fel eitem i'w eithrio dan paragraff(au) 14 o Rhan
4 o Atodlen 12A o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Lleol 1972 (fel a ddiwygwyd)

Mae’r proses cytundeb yn fyw a byddai’'n rhagfarnllyd i'w wneud yn gyhoeddus ar hyn
o0 bryd.

10 DIWEDDARIAD CAFFAEL

11 UNRHYW FATER ARALL

Tud. 3



& oo $ow L /@ NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

CYD-BWYLLGOR GWASTRAFF GWEDDILLIOL GOGLEDD
CYMRU

Dydd Llun, 7 Rhagfyr 2015 am 2.00 pm
Optic Glyndwr, Llanelwy

PRESENNOL
Cynghorydd Eryl Williams (Cadeirydd) Cyngor Sir Ddinbych

Cynghorydd Dave Cowans Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy
Cynghorydd Richard Dew Cyngor Sir Ynys Mon
Cynghorydd Kevin Jones Cyngor Sir y Fflint

Cynghorydd John Wynn Jones Cyngor Gwynedd

Cynghorydd Aaron Shotton Cyngor Sir y Fflint

Cynghorydd David Smith Cyngor Sir Ddinbych

ALSO PRESENT:

Cyngor Sir y Fflint

Colin Everett (Prif Weithredwr Arweiniol), Gareth Owens (Swyddog Monitro) a David
Webster (Rheolwr Archwilio Mewnol)

Cyngor Sir Ddinbych
Steve Parker (Pennaeth yr Amgylchedd)

Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy
Ken Finch (Cyfarwyddwr Strategol — Democratiaeth a Rheoleiddio) ac Andrew Wilkinson
(Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cymdogaeth)

Cyngor Gwynedd
Medwyn Williams (Uwch-Reolwr — Trin Gwastraff)

Cyngor Sir Ynys Moén
Meirion Edwards (Swyddog Technegol Arweiniol)

Partneriaethau Lleol DU
Huw Roberts (Ymgynghorydd)

</Al1>
<All>
</AlI2>
<Al3>

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU

Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb oddi wrth y Cynghorydd Mike
Priestley (Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy), y Cynghorydd J. Arwel
Roberts (Cyngor Sir Ynys Mon) a’r Cynghorydd Dilwyn Williams (Cyngor
Gwynedd). Tud. 4

3



& oo $ow L /@ NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

</AlI3>
<Al4>

DATGAN DIDDORDEB

Datganodd y Cynghorydd Aaron Shotton (Cyngor Sir y Fflint) ddiddordeb
personol yng nghofnod 6 (Diweddariad Caffael) o ganlyniad i sylwadau a
wnaeth yn y wasg yn y gorffennol yn ymwneud &'r prosiect.

</Al4>

<AIl5>

CYMERADWYO COFNODION BLAENOROL

Cyflwynwyd cofnodion cyfarfod Cydbwyligor Gwastraff Gweddilliol
Gogledd Cymru a gynhaliwyd ar 5 Mehefin 2015 i'w cymeradwyo.

PENDERFYNWYD - Bod cofnodion cyfarfod Cydbwyligor Gwastraff
Gweddilliol Gogledd Cymru a gynhaliwyd ar 5 Mehefin 2015 yn cael eu
derbyn fel cofnod cywir.

</AI5>

<Al6>

MATERION YN CODI O'R CYFARFOD BLAENOROL

Nid oedd unrhyw faterion yn codi..

ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD

Cafodd yr Aelodau adroddiad cynnydd llafar i'w diweddaru. Mae Cyfoeth
Naturiol Cymru wedi rhoi trwydded amgylcheddol gyda'r adolygiad
barnwrol yn dod i ben ar 31 lonawr 2016. Ni chodwyd unrhyw faterion hyd
yn hyn.

Byddai'r holl faterion eraill yn cael eu cynnwys yn yr eitem diweddariad
caffael.

PENDERFYNWYD:-
Nodi’'r adroddiad cynnydd.

DIWEDDARU CYLLID

6a) Datganiad Blynyddol Blwyddyn yn dod i ven 31ain Mawrth 2015 —
Fersiwn ddiwygiediqg

Cymeradwyodd y Cyd-bwyllgor y Datganiad Blynyddol ar gyfer y flwyddyn
yn diweddu 31 Mawrth 2015 yn y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 5 Mehefin
2015. Cafodd y Datganiad Blynyddol diwygiedig ar gyfer 2014/15 ei osod
ynghlwm yn atodiad A o’r adroddiad. Diwygiwyd y Datganiad Blynyddol
gyda chymeradwyaeth y Cadeirydd ac fe'i cyflwynwyd fel y Datganiad
Blynyddol ar gyfer 2014/15.

PENDERFYNWYD:- Tud. 5
4



& oo $ow L /@ NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

Bod y Datganiad Blynyddol ar gyfer y flwyddyn yn diweddu 31
Mawrth 2015 yn cael ei gymeradwyo.

6b) Cyllideb Ddrafft ar gyfer 2015/16

Cafodd yr aelodau Gyllideb ddrafft fanwl ar gyfer 2015/16 a oedd yn nodi y
byddai cost pob Awdurdod Lleol yn debyg i'r gyfran bartneriaeth gyfartal a
gafwyd o fewn y flwyddyn ariannol ddiwethaf.

Mewn ymateb i bryderon a godwyd o ran anfonebau a oedd yn parhau i
fod angen eu talu, sicrhawyd yr Aelodau bod y gyllideb ddrafft wedi cael ei
haddasu i adlewyrchu yn well y gwariant o anfonebau hwyr a bod y
taliadau gan Lywodraeth Cymru wedi cael eu gwario.

PENDERFYNWYD:-
Bod y Gyllideb Ddrafft ar gyfer 2015/16 yn cael ei
chymeradwyo.

RHWYDWAITH GORSFAOEDD TROSGLWYDDO GWASTRAFF

Rhoddodd Colin Everett, Prif Weithredwr (Cyngor Sir y Fflint)
ddiweddariad byr ar drafodaethau a gynhaliwyd ynghylch sefydlu dwy
orsaf trosglwyddo gwastraff lai yng Nghonwy a Sir Ddinbych, a
gwahoddodd y swyddogion o Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy a Chyngor
Sir Ddinbych i roi diweddariad ar y safleoedd a ffefrir

Amlinellodd Andrew Wilkinson (Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy) y safle
presennol a ffefrir a oedd ar hyn o bryd ym mherchnogaeth y Cyngor. Ar
hyn o bryd mae’n cael ei ddefnyddio, ond roedd yr Awdurdod Lleol yn
gweithio tuag at sicrhau bod y safle ar gael.

Hefyd amlinellodd Steve Parker (Cyngor Sir Ddinbych) y safle a ffefrir a'r
costau sy'n gysylltiedig a'r safle a ffefrir.

Mewn ymateb i gwestiynau ynghylch costau priffyrdd, sicrhaodd Andrew
Wilkinson a Steve Parker yr Aelodau y byddai costau datblygu a phriffyrdd
yn rhatach na datblygu safle adeiladu o'r newydd, gan fod gan y ddau
safle a ffefrir fynediad priffyrdd priodol.

</Al6>
<AlI7>PENDERFYNWYD:-
Nodi'r diweddariad.
</AlI7>
<AIl8>
EITEM EITHRIEDIG: DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1972, ADRAN
100A AC ATODLEN 12A (HAWL | WYBODAETH)

PENDERFYNWYD- Bod y Cyhoedd a'r Wasg yn cael eu gwahardd o'r
cyfarfod dan ddarpariaethau Adran 100A y Ddeddf uchod, yn ystod
ystyriaeth o’r eitem ganlynol gan ei bod yn ymwneud & datgeliad tebygol o
wybodaeth eithriedig fel y'i diffinnir ym mharagraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen

Tud. 6
5



10.

& oo $ow L /@ NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

12A i'r Ddeddf a bod y broses contract yn dal ar y gweill ac y byddai'n cael
ei niweidio drwy ei gwneud yn gyhoeddus ar hyn o bryd.

</AI8>

<Al9>

DIWEDDARIAD CAFFAEL

Rhoddodd Colin Everett, Prif Weithredwr (Cyngor Sir y Fflint) gyflwyniad
manwl ar vy sefyllfa caffael ddiweddaraf.

Yn dilyn trafodaeth fanwl, sicrhawyd yr Aelodau fod yr holl faterion
technegol, ariannol a chyfreithiol-fasnachol blaenorol yn cael eu cau heb
unrhyw bryderon.

Ymatebodd Colin Everett it pryderon a godwyd o amgylch y Bil
Amgylchedd, a oedd y tu hwnt i reolaeth unrhyw blaid. Amlinellodd y
newidiadau a awgrymwyd gan y Bartneriaeth i'r Bil er mwyn lleihau'r risg.
Awgrymodd y Cadeirydd bod y Cydbwyllgor yn cael gwybod am unrhyw
newidiadau i'r Bil Amgylchedd.

PENDERFYNWYD:-
a) Nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad.

b) Rhoi awdurdod dirprwyedig i'r Prif Weithredwr Arweiniol
symud ymlaen at y Cau Ariannol a llofnodi'r contract ar
ran cyllideb yr awdurdodau gan nad oes:

e Unrhyw newid perthnasol i'r sefyllfa fasnachol;

e Bod prisiau’n cael eu cynnal;

e Nad oes unrhyw newidiadau masnachol newydd o
bwys a arweinir gan y benthyciwr; a

e Bod amodau’r digwyddiadau iawndal yn cael eu
cyfyngu fel y nodwyd gan y bartneriaeth yn flaenorol

C) Bod y Cydbwyllgor yn cael gwybod am unrhyw
newidiadau i'r Bil Amgylchedd.
</A19>
<Al10>
UNRHYW FATER ARALL
Mynegodd y Cyd-bwyllgor eu diolch i Ken Finch (Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol
Conwy) am ei gyfraniad a dymuno’n dda iddo ar ei ymddeoliad.

(Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 3.15 pm)

Tud. 7



NWRWTP

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6

— Sir Ddinbych Sir Y Fﬂlnt
o -y . .
% Ly g’iu’:” Flintshire

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

ADRODDIAD I'R:  CYD-BWYLLGOR PTGGGC

DYDDIAD: 27 MEHEFIN 2016

ADRODDIAD RHEOLWR CYLLID CORFFORAETHOL (CSYFF)
GAN:

PWNC: DATGANIAD BLYNYDDOL A DDAETH | BEN 31an

MAWRTH 2016

1.00 PWRPAS YR ADRODDIAD

1.01 | gyflwyno Datganiad Blynyddol ar gyfer Partneriaeth Gwastraff
Gweddilliol Gogledd Cymru (PGGGC) am y flwyddyn yn dod i ben
313" Mawrth 2016 i Aelodau'r Cydbwyllgor ei gymeradwyo.

2.00 CEENDIR

2.01 Mae Rheoliadau Cyfrifon ac Archwilio (Cymru) yn ei gwneud yn
ofynnol i holl Gydbwyllgorau baratoi cyfrifon diwedd vy
flwyddyn. Cafodd y Rheoliadau eu diweddaru yn 2014; o ganlyniad
i'r math o gyfrifon, mae trefniadau cyfrifon ac archwilio y Cydbwylligor
wedi newid eleni.

2.02 Mae'r Cydbwyllgor yn cael ei ystyried yn gorff perthnasol llai, gan fod
ei incwm a'i wariant gros yn llai na £2.5 miliwn yn y flwyddyn
gyfrifyddu. Y math o gyfrifon y mae'n ofynnol i gorff llai eu cynhyrchu
yw Datganiad Blynyddol a ddarperir gan Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru.
Yn 2013/14, roedd y Cydbwyllgor yn cael ei ystyried fel corff mwy o
faint, ac roedd yn ofynnol iddo gynhyrchu set gynhwysfawr o gyfrifon
tebyg i set o gyfrifon Cynghorau.

2.03 Rhaid i'r Datganiad Blynyddol gael ei lofnodi gan y Swyddog Cyllid
Cyfrifol a gymeradwywyd gan y Cydbwyllgor cyn y dyddiad cau ar 30
Mehefin. Mae'r archwiliad yn dechrau ar 0l it Cydbwyligor
gymeradwyo'r Datganiad Blynyddol.

2.04 Rhaid cwblhau'r archwiliad a chyhoeddi’r Datganiad Blynyddol ddim
hwyrach na 30 Medi. Os na wneir unrhyw newidiadau i'r Datganiad
Blynyddol yn ystod yr archwiliad, ni fydd unrhyw ofyniad ar i'r
Cydbwyllgor gymeradwyo'r Datganiad Blynyddol diwygiedig cyn ei
gyhoeddi.

3.00 YSTYRIAETHAU

3.01 Atodir y Datganiad Blynyddol am 2015/16 yn Atodiad A.

Tud. 8
7



Sir Ddinbych Slr Fflint
& ?ONWY g”"‘"’”"""" . Flln);shlre

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

12.1

ARGYMHELLION

NWRWTP

Gofynnir i'r Aelodau gymeradwyo'r Datganiad Blynyddol ar gyfer y

flwyddyn yn ddod i ben 313" Mawrth 2016.

GOBLYGIADAU ARIANNOL

Dim o ganlyniad i'r adroddiad hwn.

EFFAITH GWRTH-DLODI

Dim o ganlyniad i'r adroddiad hwn.

EFFAITH AMGYLCHEDDOL

Dim o ganlyniad i'r adroddiad hwn.

EFFAITH CYDRADDOLDEB

Dim o ganlyniad i'r adroddiad hwn.

GOBLYGIADAU PERSONEL

Dim o ganlyniad i'r adroddiad hwn.

ANGEN YMGYNGHORI

Dim o ganlyniad i'r adroddiad hwn.

YMGYNGHORI A WNAED

Dim o ganlyniad i'r adroddiad hwn.

ATODIADAU

Atodiad A — Datganiad Blynyddol

DEDDE MYNEDIAD | WYBODAETH LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1985

DOGFENNAU CEENDIR

Swyddog Cyswllt: Dave Ledsham

Ffon: 01352 704503
E-bost: dave.ledsham@flintshire.gov.uk
Tud. 9



=
Iy Smaller local government bodies in Wales
YOAES I OFFICE Annual Return for the Year Ended 31 March 2016

SWYDDRAARCHWILKO CYMRU

Smaller local government bodies in Wales must prepare annual accounts following proper practices as set

out in the One Voice Wales/SLCC publication Governance and accountability for local councils in Wales —
A Practitioners’ Guide (the Practitioners’ Guide). The Practitioners’ Guide states that bodies may prepare their
accounts in the form of an annual return prepared by the Wales Audit Office.

The accounts and audit process

The accounts and audit arrangements follow the process as set out below.

RFO/Clerk prepares |———=3| The Body approves the > Extemnal auditor completes audit and:

accounting Annual Return by 30 June.

statements and This is evidenced by the 4 v

Annual Governance Chair’s signing the box Either: or

oty LA e RI L T If no amendments are required, If amendments are required,

audit completes Governance Statement.

T RFO/Cierk sends a copy certifies the Annual Return and reports issues {including

RFO cerfifies relum PSRy sends if back to the Body for amendments) to the Body. The

(below Part 2 of the publishing by 30 September. Body amends the Annual Return,

and certified copies af the RFO re-cerlifies and the Body

g"ta"‘::;‘t’)"::;j’r‘:e IEZZiTL‘:j‘ZﬂEEEf e re-approves before sending it back

30 June and P Aud?tzr 9 to tr-le auditor. The auditor then
ceriifies the Annual Returm and

::;et::nsli :;re retum General for Wales. sends it back to the Body for
publishing by 30 September.

Please complete all sections highlighted in red. Incomplete or incorrect returns may require additional external
audit work and incur additional costs. Send the original Annual Return, together with all additional information
requested, to the external auditor acting on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales. Please note that copies of all
documents provided for the purposes of the audit must be certified as true copies of the originals by the
Clerk and Chair. Unless requested, please do not send any original financial or other records to the external auditor.

Bodies should note the changes to the Annual Governance Statement. This is to be completed in full by all Bodies.
Audited and certified returns are sent back to the Body for publication or display of the accounting statements,
Annual Governance Statement and the Auditor General for Wales' certificate and report.

Completion checklist

‘No’ answers mean that you not have met requirements

Initial submission to the external auditor

Accounts Has the RFO certified the accounting statements and the body approved the Annual Retumn G C
(as evidenced by the relevant signatures), no later than 30 June 20167
Do the accounts add up and does the balance carried forward from last year equal the G c
opening balance this year?
Do the papers to be sent to the external auditor include an explanation of significant G c
variations, including a quantified analysis of the changes from last year to this year?
Does the hank reconciliation as at 31 March 2016 agree to line 97 G C
All sections = Have all red boxes been completed and explanations provided where needed? G r

Has all the information requested by the external auditor been sent with this Annual Return?

Please refer o your notice of audit and any additional schedules provided by your external g X
auditor,
Supporting = Have all items and pages of supporting evidence provided to the audit been ceriified as a G e

evidence true copy of the original by the Clerk and Glhﬂla 10
9



Accounting statements 2015-16 for:

Name of body:

Year ending

31 March 31 March
2015 2016

(£)

Notes and guidance for, compllers

Please round all figures to nearest £.

Do not leave any boxes blank and report £0 or nil balances.
All figures must agree to the underlying financial records for
the relevant year.

Statement of income and expenditurefreceipts and payments

1. Balances 0 ]
brought forward

2. (+)Income 0 0
from local
taxation/levy _

3. (+) Total other 418,694 267,950
raceipts

4. (-)Staff costs -167,970 -114,280

5. (-)Loan 0 0
interest/capital
repayments

6. () Total other -250,724 -173,670
payments

7. (=) Balances 0 0
carmed forward

Statement of balances

8. (+) Debtors and 333,510 270,361
stock balances

9. (+)Total 0 0
cash and
investments

10. (-) Creditors -333,510 -270,361

11. (=) Balances 0 0
camied forward

12. Total fixed 0 0
assets and
long-term assets

13. Total borrowing 0

14. Trust funds

disclosure note

(O i

Total balances and reserves at the beginning of the year as
recorded in the financial records. Must agree to line 7 of the
previous year.

Total amount of income received/receivable in the year from local
taxation (precept) or levy/contribution from principal bodies.

Total income or receipts recorded in the cashbook minus amounts
included in line 2. Includes support, discretionary and revenue
grants.

Total expenditure or payments made to and on behalf of

all employees. Include salaries and wages, PAYE and NI
(employees and employers), pension contributions and related
expenses eg termination costs.

Total expenditure or payments of capital and interest made during
the year on external borrowing (if any).

Total expenditure or payments as recorded in the cashbook minus
staff costs (line 4) and loan interest/capital repayments (line 5).

Total balances and reserves at the end of the year. Must equal
(1+2+3) = (4+5+6).

Income and expenditure accounts only: Enter the value of
debts owed to the body and stack balances held at the year-end.

All accounts: The sum of all current and deposit bank accounts,
cash holdings and investments held at 31 March. This must
agree with the reconciled cashbook balance as per the bank
reconciliation.

Income and expenditure accounts only: Enter the value of
monies owed by the body (except bomrowing) at the year-end.

Total balances should equal line 7 above: Enter the total of
(8+9-10).

The original asset and investment register value of all fixed
assets and any other long-term assets held as at 31 March.

The outstanding capital balance as at 31 March of all loans from
third parties (including PWLB).

mm LI The Body acts as sole trustee for and is responsible for

managing {a) trust fund(s)/assets (readers should note that the
figures above do not include any trust transactions).

Tud. 11

10



Annual Governance Statement (Part 1)

We acknowledge as the members of the Council/Board/Committee, our responsibility for ensuring that there is a
sound system of internal contro, including the preparation of the accounting statements. We confirm, to the best of
our knowledge and belief, with respect to the accounting statements for the year ended 31 March 2016, that:

‘'YES' means that the PG Ref
m Councii/Board/Committee:

We have approved the accounting statements Prepared its accounting statements = &, 12
which have been prepared in accordance with the G I in the way prescribed by law.

requirements of the Accounts and Audit (Wales)

Regulations 2014 and proper practices.

2. We have maintained an adequate system of internal Made proper arrangements 6,7
control, including measures designed to prevent PO I and accepted responsibility for
and detect fraud and corruption, and reviewed its safeguarding the public money
effectiveness. and resources in its charge.

3. We have taken all reasonable steps to assure Has only done things that it has 6
ourselves that there are no matters of actual or the legal power to do and has
potential non-compliance with laws, regulations and & C conformed to codes of practice and
codes of practice that could have a significant standards in the way it has done so.

financial effect on the ability of the Council/Board/
Committee to conduct its business or on its finances.

4. We have provided proper opportunity for the Has given all persons interested 6,23
exercise of electors’ rights in accordance with the I e the opportunity to inspect and to
requirements of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) ask questions about the Body's
Regulations 2014. accounts.

5. We have carried out an assessment of the risks Considered the financial and other 6,9
facing the Council/Board/Commitiee and taken risks it faces in the operation of
appropriate steps to manage those risks, including g C the Body and has dealt with them
the introduction of internal controls and/or extemnal properly.
insurance cover where raquired.

6. We have maintained an adequate and effective Arranged for a competent person, 6,8
sysitem of intemal audit of the accounting records independent of the financial controls
and control systems throughout the year and have &~ C and procedures, to give an objective
received a report from the internal auditor. view on whether these meet the

needs of the Body.

7. We have considered whether any litigation, Disclosed everything it should have = 6
liabilities or commitments, events or transactions, about its business during the year
occurring either during or after the year-end, have a G - including events taking place after
financial impact on the Council/Board/Committee the year-end if relevant.

and, where appropriate, have included them on the
accounting statements.

8. We have taken appropriale action on all matters Considered and taken 6,8,23
raised in previous reports from internal and external appropriate action to address
audit. 0 B issues/weaknesses brought to its

attention by both the internal and
external auditors.

9. Trust funds — in our capacity as trustee, we have: ACER LI/ Has met all of its responsibilities 3,6
» Discharged our responsibility in relation to the where It is a sole managing trustee
accountability for the fund(s) including financial - e of a local trust or trusts.
(]

reporting and, if required, independent
examination or audit.

* Please provide explanations to the external auditor on a separate sheet for each 'no’ response given; and describe what action is
being taken to address the weaknesses identified.

Tud. 12
11



Annual Governance Statement (Part 2)

1. We calculated and approved the Council/Board/
Commitiee's budget requirement for the 2015-16
financial year in accordance the Local Government
Finance Act 1892 and proper practices [and Issued
the precept in accordance with Sections 39 to 42 of
the Local Government Finance Act 1992.]*

2. We have received detailed financial reports setting
out the [income and expenditure” receipts and
payments*] and a summary of the Council/Board/
Committee's financial position on a regular
[monthiy* / quarterly*] basis throughout the year.

3. We have ensured that the Council/Board/
Committee's internal audit is independent of
its day-to-day decision-making process and
maintenance of the accounting records and have
agreed appropriate terms of reference for the internal
audit.

* Please delele as appropriate.

s o

‘YES’ means that the Council/Board!
Committee:

| PG Ref

Properly planned its financial activities for = 43
the year and set a budget in accordance

o with statutory requirements.

Effectively monitored its financial position, 13
income and expenditure against that

" budget throughout the financial year.

Ensured thal its internal audit function is 8
able to undertake its work without potential

I conflicts of interest and with sufficient

scope to provide an adequate and effective
service.

Council/Board/Committee approval and certification

The Council/Board/Committee is responsible for the preparation of the accounting statemenis in accordance with the requirements
of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 and for the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement.

Certification by the RFO

| certify that the accounting statements contained in this Annual
Return presents fairly the financial position of the Council/Board/
Committee, and its income and expenditure, or properly presents
receipts and payments, as the case may be, for the year ended

31 March 2016.
RFO signature:
Name:

Date:

Approval by the Council/Board/Committee

{ confirm that these accounting statements and
Annual Governance Statement were approved by the
Council/Board/Committee under minute reference:

Chair signature:
Name:

Date:

Council/Board/Committee re-approval and re-certification (only required if the annual return has

been amended at audit)

Certification by the RFO

| certify that the accounting statements contained in this Annual
Return presents fairly the financial position of the Council/Board/
Committee, and its income and expenditure, or properly presents
receipls and payments, as the case may be, for the year ended

31 March 2016.

RFO signature: .S 3,,,,3/

Name: Catw Fencuioe
Date: ’2.7/{“(.

Approval by the Council/Board/Committee

| confirm that these accounting statements and
Annual Governance Statement were approved by the
Council/Board/Commitiee under minute reference:

Chair signature:
Name:

Date:

Tud. 13

12



Auditor General for Wales’ Audit Certificate and report

The external auditor conducts the audit on behalf of, and in accordance with, guidance issued by the Auditor General
for Wales. On the basis of their review of the Annual Return and supporting information, they report whether any
matters that come to their attention give cause for concern that relevant legislation and regulatory requirements have
not been met.

We certify that we have completed the audit of the Annual Return for the year ended 31 March 2016 of:

External auditor’s report

[Except for the matters reported below]* On the basis of our review, in our opinion, the information contained in the Annual
Retumn is in accordance with proper practices and no matters have come to our attention giving cause for concern that relevant
legislation and regulatory requirements have not been met.

[[These matters along with]* Other matters not affecting our opinion which we draw to the attention of the body and our
recommendations for improvement are included in our report to the body dated |

Other matters and recommendations

On the basis of our review, we draw the Body's attention to the following matters and recommendations which do not affect our
audit opinion but should be addressed by the Body.

(Continue on a separate sheet if required.)
External auditor’s name:

External auditor's signature: Date:

For and on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales

* Delete as appropriate.

Tud. 14
13



Annual internal audit report to:

Name of body:

The Council/Board/Committee’s internal audit, acting independently and on the basis of an assessment of risk,
has included carrying out a selective assessment of compliance with relevant procedures and controls expected
to be in operation during the financial year ending 31 March 2016.

The internal audit has been carried out in accordance with the Council/Board/Committee’s needs and planned
coverage. On the basis of the findings in the areas examined, the internal audit conclusions are summarised

in this table. Set out below are the objectives of internal control and the internal audit conclusions on whether,
in all significant respects, the following control objectives were being achieved throughout the financial year to a
standard adequate to meet the needs of the Council/Board/Committee.

Outline of work undertaken as part of
the internal audit (NB not required if

detailed internal audit report presented

red*™
covere to body)

1. Appropriate books of account have

been properly kept throughout the Iy = - -~
year.
2. Financial regulations have been
met, payments were supported by
invoices, expenditure was approved = % ( C £

and VAT was appropriately
accounted for.

3. The body assessed the significant
risks to achieving its objectives G I c ~
and reviewed the adequacy of
arrangements to manage these.

4. The annual precept/levy/resource
demand requirement resulted from
an adequate budgetary process, C c G -
progress against the budget was
regularly monitored, and reserves
were appropriate.

5. Expected income was fully
received, based on correct prices,
properly recorded and promptly "" f" g C
banked, and VAT was appropriately
accounted for.

6. Pelty cash payments were
properly supported by receipts, r ~ Py e~
expenditure was approved and
VAT appropriately accounted for.

7. Salaries to employees and
allowances to members were paid
in accordance with minuted 3 ¥ = C
approvals, and PAYE and NI
requirements were properly applied.

B. Assetand investment registers
were complete, accurate, e C g L ;
and properly maintained.

Tud. 15
14



Agreed? | Outline of work undertaken as part of
Yes I No* | | the internal audit (NB not required if

i detailed internal audit report presented

| d**
COVere | to body)

9. Periodic and year-end bank account
reconciliations were properly carried ™+ r > B
out.

10. Accounting statements prepared
during the year were prepared
on the correct accounting basis
(receipts and paymentsfincome
and expendilure), agread with the I c - c
cashbook, were suppored by an
adequate audit trail from underlying
records, and where appropriate,
debtors and creditors were properly
recorded.

11. Trust funds (including charitable
trusts). The Council/Board/ - - G .
Committee has met its
responsibliities as a trustee.

For any risk areas tdentified by the Council/Board/Committee (list any other risk areas below or on separate sheets if
needed) adequate controls existed:

the internal audit (NB not required if

detaifed internal audit report presented
to body)

13.

14,

* If the response is ‘no’, please state the implications and action being taken to address any weakness in control identified
(add separate sheetls if nesdad).

** If the response is ‘not covered’, please state when the most recent internal audit work was done in this area and when it is
next planned, or if coverage is not required, internal audit must explain why not.

Note

During the time covered NWRW did not have its own separate books of account, bank account, elc. They were al part of the
Flintshire accounts. As such they were subject o the Flinishire Financial Procedure Rules and the same level of control as the rest
of the Flintshire financial systems.

During 2015/16 Internal Audit reviewed Accounts Payable, Accounts Receivable and the General Ledger, however the NWRW risk
register was not covered.

This Annual Internal Report relies on the overall work completed during the year.

Tud. 16
15



Internal audit confirmation

| confirm that as the Council's internal auditor, | have not been involved in a management or administrative role within the body
or as a member of the body during the financial years 2014-15 and 2015-16. | also confirm that there are no conflicts of interest
surrounding my appointment.

Name of person who carried out the internal audit: 7, r£p TEL
Signature of person who carried out the internal audit: %

Date: 26 0520\ 6

Tud. 17
16



Guidance notes on completing the Annual Return

1.

10.

1.

12,

13.

14.

You must apply proper practices when preparing this annual return. For guidance, please read the Practitioners’
Guide (Governance and accountability for local councils: A Practitioners’ Guide (Wales)) — available from
One Voice Wales and SLCC. It contains everything you need for the financial year-end and the statutory audit.

The Wales Audit Office Good Practice Exchange (www.audit.wales/good-practicef/finance/community-
council-money) provides further information on the accounts and audit process along with guidance on
governance matters.

Make sure that the Annual Return is fully completed ie, no empty red boxes. Please avoid making any
amendments to the completed return. If this is unavoidable, cross out the incorrect entries, make sure the
amendments are drawn to the attention of the body, properly initialled and an explanation for them is provided
lo the external auditor. Please do not use correction fluid. Annual returns that are incomplete or contain
unapproved and/or unexplained amendments or correction fluid will be returned unaudited and may incur
additional costs.

There are now two boxes for certification and approval by the Body. The second box is only required
if the annual return has to be amended as a result of the audit. You should only complete the top box
before sending the form to the auditor.

Use a second pair of eyes, perhaps the Chalr or a member, to review your Annual Return for completeness
before sending the original form to the auditor.

Make sure that your accounting statements add up, that the balance carried forward from the previous year
(line 7 of 2015) equals the balance brought forward in the current year (line 1 of 2016). Explain any differences
between the 2015 figures on this annual return and the amounts recorded in last year's annual return.

Explain fully any significant variances in the accounting statements. Do not just send in a copy of your detailed
accounting records instead of this explanation. The external auditor wants to know that you understand the
reasons for all variances. Include a detailed analysis to support your explanation and be specific about the
values of individual elements making up the variances.

Make sure that the copy of the bank reconciliation you send to your auditor with the Annual Return covers

all your bank accounts and cash balances. If there are no reconciling items, please state this and provide
evidence of the bank balances. If your Council holds any short-term investments, please note their value on
the bank reconciliation. The auditor should also be able to agree your bank reconciliation to line 9 in section 1.
More help on bank reconciliation is available in the Practitioners’ Guide®.

Every small body is now required to send to the external auditor, information to support the assertions

made in the Annual Governance Statement. Your auditor will tell you what information you need to provide.
Please read the audit notice carefully to ensure you include all the information the auditor has asked for.

You should send copies of the original records (certified by the Clerk and Chair as accurate copies) to the
external auditor and not the original documents themseives.

Please do not send the auditor any information that you are not specifically asked for. Doing so is not helpful.
If the auditor has to review unsolicited information, repeat a request for information, receives an incomplete
bank reconciliation or explanation of variances or receives original documents that must be returned, the auditor
wili incur additional costs for which they are entitled to charge additional fees.

Do not complete the Auditor General for Wales’ Audit Certificate and report. The external auditor
completes this on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales on completion of the audit.

Please deal with all correspondence with the external auditor promptly. This will help you to meet your
statutory obligations and will minimise the cost of the audit.

Please note that if completing the electronic form, you must print the form for it to be certified by the
RFO and signed by the Chair before it is sent to the auditor.

Tud. 18
17



Tud. 19
18



cnoon. oncor N r
Ny“' Sir Ddinbych Sir y Fflint @ N W RWT P
% Conwy gﬁﬁffimi’,’l” '-F“ﬂtsh"ﬂ
COUNTY COUNGIL I

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

AGENDA ITEM: 7

NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE TREATMENT PROJECT
PROGRESS REPORT

PROJECT BOARD

Date : 27" June 2016

Period: 7t December 2015 to 20 June 2016

PROJECT SUMMARY

To procure a sustainable waste management solution for the 5 local authorities in North Wales
(Conwy, Denbighshire, Flintshire, Gwynedd and Isle of Anglesey) that will assist with the
reduction in greenhouse gas emissions from landfill and will minimise the tonnage of waste
residue sent to landfill thus ensuring that the authorities avoid Landfill Allowance Scheme
(LAS) infraction penalties and meet National Waste Strategy targets.

PROJECT STATUS

Overall Project
Status

Following submission of the Final Business Case to Welsh
Government (WG), the Partnership has received
notification of the award of the grant. The grant is valued
at £5.62m annually over the contract’s 25 year operational
term, over £140m in total.

Progress has continued with WTI on finalising all
documentation, with only one single remaining commercial
issue remaining outstanding. Agreement has been
reached with WTI on this, with funders agreement the only
thing remaining. WTI are working with their funders to get
their agreement.

A full update on the procurement is in item 10 on the
agenda.

Discussions re-commenced on the 2" Inter Authority
Agreement in order to finalise it ready for signing. Some
minor amendments to be made for final approval of the
document. Full update is in agenda item 8.

| Budget status |

Confidential Tud. 20
19



& o S Goim NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

Green Annual Accounts for 2015/16 are in agenda item 6, and
the draft budget for 2016/17 is in Appendix 1 below (the
budget is split between the procurement phase and the
contract management phase with a summary for the full

financial year).

Status Meaning

Green There are no problems; all is progressing well and to plan

There are some minor/ less significant problems. Action is
needed in some areas but other parts are progressing
satisfactory

Red There are significant problems and urgent and decisive

action is needed.

PROJECT UPDATE — Activities due for completion by 20" June 2016, plus selected
later activities.

ID Activity RAG Comments Forecast Actual
status

83

104

114

125

126

127

128

129 | Completion of fine See item 10 on July 2016
tuning and agenda
clarification with
WTI

130

131 | Develop contract Green | Flintshire have begun | September
management working on Job 2016
structure for post Description etc and
financial close recruitment process

will follow shortly.

132 | Finalise the IAA2 Green | Seeitem 9 on agenda | July 2016
with legal, technical
and financial officer
groups

133

134 | Work through new There remains one July 2015
mark up of Project remaining commercial
Agreement (PA) issue (see agenda
(contract) as a item 10 (part 2)),

Confidential -Pud. 21

20




| ot NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

result of changes to however the PA
WTI's bid document itself is
otherwise very near
completion.

135 | Work through Green | Thisis covered in October
financial model of agenda item 19 (part 2016
WTI's revised bid 2).

136

137

138 | Set and agree Green | Weekly updates from October On going
detailed Project WTI received on work | 2016
Plan for finalising with the funders.
agreements with
WTI

139 | Set meetings with Green | Weekly conference April 2016
WTI going forward calls taking place

140 | Transfer Station Green | Two site option now October
Network — Conwy to agreed by Project 2015
provide options for Board, Conwy and
site Denbighshire working

on site plans etc. See
agenda item 8.

141 | Agreement to be Green | See 140 above April 2016 | Complete
reached on site for
waste transfer
station for Conwy

and north
Denbighshire
142 | Project plan the Green | Both authorities well April 2017
development of the advanced in their
site (see 140 and design process.
141) — e.g. design
etc
143 | Decide on Foreign | Green | Approach now clear — | October
Exchange approach will be set and 2016

Financial Close

144 | Consider areas of Green | To be considered ata | December

future collaborative future Project Board. 2016
working

145 | Ensure discussions | Green | WTI have already Long term
are live with WTI been in discussions
and other relevant with WG and both
parties (e.qg. Northern Gateway
Northern Gateway developers about the
developers, Welsh use heat, however the
Government) and partnership can
stakeholders provide a vital steer to
related to the use of the discussions and
heat the project.

Confidential Taid. 22

21



'i anb ch
CONWY Denbighshire
Vv “'4 "* COUNTY COUNCIL

Slr y Fflint
Flmtshlre

NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

146 | Develop Contract Green | The Project Board September | Complete
Management have met and
Structure discussed the contract
management structure,
and agreed a way
forward. Flintshire
have begun working
on Job Description etc
and recruitment
process will follow
shortly.
147 | Implement new Green | As 146 above. September
contract
management
structure (appoint
staff etc)

KEY RISKS — No change from that reported at last Project Board (22"

November 2015)

Confidential

-fud. 23

22



NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

Céﬁ . Sir Ddinbych r~ Sir y Filint
e Cowy ot (™ Hinishire

Appendix 1 Draft Budget for 2016/17 (Procurement Phase — Apr to Nov 16)

NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE TREATMENT PROJECT
Draft Budget for 2016/17 - Procurement Phase only - April - Nov 2016

DRAFT BUDGET 2016-17

Draft Budget 2016-17 -

EXPENDITURE HEADING Procurement phase
only Apr - Nov 2016 |Notes
£
Project Director 58,000 Based on £6k per month plus March 16 inwice
Project Director Trawvel etc
Project Manager 38,000 Based on existing cost
Project Manager and travel & other expenses 1,500

Administrative assistance

Lead finance

Interim finance

Lead Technical 3,000 Based on 15/16 cost

IT/ Telephones 300 Based on 15/16 cost

Software

Stationery/Printing/Subscriptions 25

Translation 500 Based on at least two Joint Committee meetings

Status enquiries

Based on £5 per user per month, plus one off £750 for
Remote document managements system 1,230 dvd with all data

Advertising 150 Statement of accounts advert
Joint Working

Procurement recharge

Finance recharge

Legal recharge

Office accommodation recharge

Venues 1,000
Audit fees 1,000
TOTAL PROJECT MANAGEMENT COSTS 104,705

Based on £5k per month (average for Jan-Mar 16 was
a little higher but requirement should drop - discssions
Technical advisors - Entec/Amec/Cofley 40,000 had wth advisors)

Tech advisors - Entec/Amec Sauce/Comms

Based on just over £10k per month (discussion had
Legal advisors - Pinsent Mason/DLA Piper 85,000 with advisors)

Based on 15/16 costs and allowance for re-running
sensitivities following new banks - disucssions had
with advisors. £30k allowed for Paymech Financial

Financial advisors - Grant Thornton 60,000 Models for partnership

Other advisors - AEA Technology/DLA Piper

Insurance advisors - Jardine Lloyd Thompson 1,000 Insurance work required to reach close
TOTAL ADVISOR COSTS 186,000

Potential site survey costs 55,000 Unsure if we need to retain this
Contingency - other

Contingency - general & site clearance 15,000

TOTAL COSTS 360,705

WAG Contribution
Other Income

TOTAL INCOME 0
NET COST 360,705
EQUAL PARTNERSHIP SHARES I 72,141

Confidential Teid. 24
23



NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

y = EVNGOR CYNCOR .
_ Sir Ddinbych P i Y Filint
= Conwy Denbighshire Flintshi
e e S COUNTY COUNCIL e [l:lt?\l “Ire

Appendix 1 Draft Budget for 2016/17 (Procurement Phase — Nov 16 to Mar 17)

NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE TREATMENT PROJECT

Draft Budget for 2016/17 - Contract Management Phase only Dec 2016 - March 2017

DRAFT BUDGET 2016-17
Draft Budget 2016-17 - Contract
EXPENDITURE HEADING Management phase only Dec
16 - Mar 17 Notes
£
Based on costs of £65k per annum
Contract Manager 21,600 (including on-costs)
Contract Manager Travel 800
Recruitrment costs 1,000 Advertising of post
Lead Authority internal recharge (governance, accounting, HR etc) 8,400 Based on £25k per annum
TOTAL CONTRACT MANAGEMENT COSTS 31,800
Baed on an advised requirement of £30k
On going advisor costs 10,000| (reduced to reflect the mid year start)
TOTAL ADVISOR COSTS 10,000
Contingency - general & site clearance 5,000
TOTAL COSTS 46,800
WAG Contribution
Other Income
TOTAL INCOME 0
NET COST 46,800
EQUAL PARTNERSHIP SHARES 9,360
Confidential -bud. 25

24



p‘—s_/ (.'.“'r'“ 5 OGOk . =
o S Chil (G NWRWTP
& oo Fopm (Sl

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

Appendix 1 Draft Budget for 2016/17 (summary combined)

NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE TREATMENT PROJECT

Draft Budget for 2016-17 - combined procurement and contract management phases

DRAFT BUDGET 2016-17
EXPENDITURE HEADING Draft Budget 2016-17 Notes
£
Staffing costs 123,900
Admistrative costs 12,280
TOTAL MANAGEMENT COSTS 136,180
Addvisor costs 196,000
TOTAL ADVISOR COSTS 196,000
Potential site survey costs 55,000
Contingency - general & site clearance 20,000
TOTAL COSTS 407,180
WAG Contribution
Other Income
TOTAL INCOME 0
NET COST 407,180
EQUAL PARTNERSHIP SHARES 81,436
Confidential Tud. 26

25



(.ll\r,rM : (l\:‘.’i . 5
A../] Sir Ddinbych Sir Y Fflint @ N W RWT P
& Conwy gfiﬁffi‘f’u’;ﬂ’i’" '-F""tsh‘fe i
COUSTY COUNCIL [

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

AGENDA ITEM NO: 8

REPORT TO: NWRWTP JOINT COMMITTEE

DATE: 27t JUNE 2016

REPORT BY: PROJECT MANAGER

SUBJECT: WASTE TRANSFER STATIONS REPORT

1.1

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To update the Joint Committee on progress towards securing a site(s) for a Waste
Transfer Station(s) (WTS) in Conwy and / or Denbighshire.

BACKGROUND

At the outset of the procurement process, it was recognised that all authorities
would need to transport their residual waste from their own authorities to wherever
the treatment site was located. This would require at least one waste transfer
station at each local authority. The original IAA stated (Clause 4.5) the following in
relation to what would be included within the agreed common gate fee:-

“...all costs of waste reception, haulage and treatment as well as the costs of
providing and/or building one or more waste reception points and transfer loading
stations within each Council's administrative area. Further to the output based
specification for the Project which shall be approved by the Joint Committee the
Project waste will be collected and taken to a convenient point (or points) in a
Council's administrative area (either for an individual Council or at a point servicing
more than a single Council as a shared Project facility) for onward transfer to waste
treatment and disposal facilities such that there is expected to be no material
adverse impact on the waste haulage costs from collection to waste transfer station
to be borne by each of the Councils.”

As the procurement process progressed beyond the Invitation to Submit Detailed
Solutions (ISDS) stage, the partnership was left with a single bidder, Wheelabrator
(WTI). Following a lengthy a rigorous evaluation process, the Joint Committee made
the decision to continue with the procurement, however the original scope of the
contract was amended to improve value for money for the authorities. The decision
was taken to remove operation of the waste transfer stations from the scope of the
contract and for individual authorities to operate their sites themselves. Haulage of
waste was also removed as a core element of the contract, however was left in the
contract as an option that the authorities could obligate WTI to procure the
partnership’s behalf should it wish.

Following extensive discussion within the partnership on how to share the cost of
operating the waste transfer stations, the following principles were agreed on the
basis that WG do not provide a grant for this cost:-

Tud. 27 1
26



2.4,

2.5.

2.6.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

Cii 48 NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

e Each authority is now responsible for their own transfer station operating
costs, with no recourse to other authorities;

e All partner authorities will contribute to the cost of a new build waste transfer
station (if required). This is to be divided equally as a capital expenditure.
The parcel of land provided is to revert to the donating authority if owned by
them, or if funded by the partnership then the councils would jointly decide
what happens to that facility at the end of the contract term and how its
proceeds/assets are to be distributed.

The above principles were approved by the Joint Committee on 31 July 2014, and
are included within the Second Inter Authority Agreement which is nearly complete
for signing by the authorities just prior to signing the contract.

Within the Second Inter Authority Agreement, a financial cap was placed on the
capital investment for any new waste transfer station. This cap was placed at
£2.5m.

Conwy County Borough Council are (and were) the only partnership authority to not
have their own waste transfer station within their boundary, therefore conducted a
site search process to identify a site for a waste transfer station to be funded by the
partnership.

CONSIDERATIONS

Following extensive discussions at the Project Board, it was agreed that most
efficient solution was for Conwy and Denbighshire to both develop their own WTS,
as finding a single suitable site to serve both authorities was not possible following
Conwy'’s site search process.

In October 2015, the Project Board agreed in principle to the Partnership funding a
two site option, subject to costs being within the previously agreed £2.5m cap.

The Project Board have received regular updates from both Conwy and
Denbighshire on progress of developing their own WTS’s. Below is an update on
progress from both Authorities.

Denbighshire

3.4. Denbighshire’s Design Services are working on outline plans and costings for the
development of a Waste Transfer Station at Kinmel Park Depot, Bodelwyddan.
Plans and figures to be available from 24th June 2016 so are not available at the
time of writing, however provisional estimates the work to be in the region of £500k.
It is anticipated that the work will proceed over the 2016/17 and 2017/18 financial
years.

Conwy

3.5. The preferred site for Conwy following their site search is a Council owned site at

Mochdre. The authority is currently working on plans for the development’s Planning
Permission, with detailed proposals being drawn up. Following planning permission

Tud. 28 2
27



3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

4.1.

5.1.

10.

11.

i 4 NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

it anticipated that works will be completed within Financial Year 2017/18. Cost
estimates are in the region of £1.5m.

As can be seen from the updates above, the sites current cost estimates sit within
the £2.5m cap. The Project Board will monitor the progress of both developments
closely to ensure that costs fall within the cap.

It should be noted that it is agreed that if a site is being developed for purposes
other than transfer of residual waste only (e.g. bulking of recyclates etc as well as
residual waste), then the Partnership will only cover the proportion of the cost
attributable to residual waste. Conwy’s intends for their site to include other services
such as bulking of recyclates therefore the Partnership will only cover the costs
attributable to residual waste. Further information is included in the agenda item 9
on the Inter Authority Agreement.

The technical officers will determine the method for cost apportionment, be that
through tonnages (e.g. residual waste tonnage as a proportion of the total waste /
recyclate dealt with at the site), or some other method such as an independent
expert’'s determination if a tonnage calculation is not deemed suitable.
RECOMMENDATIONS

Note the content of this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Financial implications to the project in terms of development cost of the new WTS
will be investigated further as part of the further options appraisal.
ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
N/A

EQUALITIES IMPACT
N/A

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
N/A

CONSULTATION REQUIRED
None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.1. See main body of report.

Tud. 29 3
28



k EYNGoR oGt .
= ik G 4 4 NWRWTP
& o o (Sl

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985
Background Documents:

None

Contact Officer:  Steffan Owen, NWRWTP

Tud. 30 4
29



| i oot L, 3
= Si Danbych Sir y Filint E@ NWRWTP
%-@ Conwy § "'antshire

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

EITEM AGENDA RHIF: 9

ADRODDIAD I: CYDBWYLLGOR PTGGGC

DYDDIAD: 27 MEHEFIN 2016

ADRODDIAD GAN:RHEOLWR PROSIECT A SWYDDOG CYFREITHIOL
ARWEINIOL

PWNC.: 2il GYTUNDEB RHYNG-AWDURDOD (2ilGRhA)

1. PWRPAS YR ADRODDIAD

1.1 Diweddaru’r Cydbwyllgor ar y trafodaethau ar gwblhau’r yr 2" gytundeb

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

rhyng-awdurdod (2ilGRhA).

CEFNDIR

Cynhaliodd y Bartneriaeth drafodaethau ar bob lefel o lywodraethu yn
ystod 2014 i ddrafftio'r 2lIGRhA fel y gallai gael ei lofnodi gan yr
awdurdodau cyn cyrraedd y Cau Ariannol. Roedd y ddogfen bron yn
gyflawn erbyn diwedd yr haf 2014.

Nid aethpwyd &'r ddogfen ymhellach tan yn nes at y Cau Ariannol.

Er mwyn cwblhau'r ddogfen, cynhaliwyd cyfres o gyfarfodydd ar
ddechrau mis Chwefror 2016 gyda phob un o’r tri griwp o swyddogion
(cyfreithiol, ariannol a thechnegol). Hefyd cafwyd galwad gynhadledd
gyda swyddogion cyfreithiol Cyngor Sir Ynys Mon, a oedd wedi dod yn
0l yn gyda sylwadau ar wahéan i'r cyfarfodydd.

Nodir isod fanylion y trafodaethau ac adborth arall a dderbyniwyd.

3. YSTYRIAETHAU

Cyfarfodydd grwp swyddogion

3.1

Fel y nodwyd yn 2.3 uchod, cyfarfu pob un o'r tri grivp o swyddogion yn
gynnar ym mis Chwefror i gwblhau'r ddogfen. Gweler prif feysydd
trafodaeth isod, gyda rhestr o'r newidiadau angenrheidiol ynghlwm yn
Atodiad 1 isod: -

Gorsafoedd Trosglwyddo Gwastraff - Cynhwysir hyn yng Nghymal 11.7
ac mae'n berthnasol i bob un o'r pum awdurdod sy’'n cyfrannu at gost
cyfalaf y ddwy orsaf trosglwyddo gwastraff - un yng Nghonwy ac un yn
Sir Ddinbych. Yn wreiddiol y bwriad oedd cael un orsaf drosglwyddo

Tud. 31
30



| i oot L, 3
= Si Danbych Sir y Filint E@ NWRWTP
%-@ Conwy § "'antshire

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

yng Nghonwy ond yn dilyn trafodaeth helaeth ar lefel dechnegol a lefel
y Bwrdd Prosiect, penderfynwyd y byddai'n fwy effeithlon a darbodus
datblygu 2 safle llai (un ym mhob sir) yn hytrach na cheisio datblygu un
i gwmpasu’r ddau awdurdod. Mae'r cap o £2.5m ar gyfer y gwariant
cyfalaf yn parhau heb ei newid. Roedd angen diweddaru’r cymal hwn i
adlewyrchu'r opsiwn dau safle, ond roedd angen hefyd ymdrin a'r
trefniadau ariannu.

Adolygu a chynllunio canol tymor — Ymdrinnir ag adolygiad canol tymor
yng Nghymal 10B; fodd bynnag, roedd angen i hwn yn awr ymdrin a’r
broses ar gyfer penderfynu gwneud cais am ganiatad cynllunio parhaol.

Gwastraff wedi’i Gyn-Drin - Yn dilyn deialog gyda WTI a thrafodaethau
mewnol dwys a helaeth, cytunwyd ar gap ar faint o wastraff y gellir ei
drin yn y cyfleuster sy'n weddillion o broses cyn-drin allanol arall. h.y.
os bydd yr awdurdodau yn dymuno anfon eu gwastraff "bag du" i ail-
brosesydd i'w drin (e.e. i wahanu deunyddiau y gellir eu hailgylchu
ymhellach) ac yna anfon y gweddill o'r broses honno i'r cyfleuster, gall
wneud hynny, ond bydd yn cael ei gapio ar 5,000 tunnell. Roedd yr
2iIGRhA bellach angen cydnabod hyn a phennu dyraniad o’r "lwfans"
hwn rhwng yr awdurdodau.

Atodlen 8 (atodlen dalu) — Roedd angen ir atodlen hon gael ei
diweddaru i adlewyrchu diweddariadau i'r Mecanwaith Talu yn y prif
gontract.

Gwasanaethau Cludo — Nid oedd unrhyw gyfeiriad yn y ddogfen at y
Gwasanaethau Cludo. Felly mae gofyn ychwanegu cymal newydd sy'n
disgrifio’r modd y bydd yr awdurdodau yn cydweithio i ddarparu'r
gwasanaethau cludo, gan gynnwys llunio manyleb contract, gan
gyfarwyddo WTI i gaffael y contract(au) gwasanaethau cludo ar eu
rhan. Dylai hyn nodi nad yw'r awdurdodau yn rhwym drwy gontract i
ddefnyddio WTI, a phe na bai'r bartneriaeth yn defnyddio'r opsiwn
hwnnw gyda WTI, yna byddai'r awdurdodau yn gweithio gyda'i gilydd ar
gaffael gwasanaethau cludo ar y cyd.

Adborth arall a gafwyd

3.2

3.3

3.4

Yn ogystal &'r adborth a dderbyniwyd uchod, derbyniwyd adborth ar
wahan gan Gyngor Sir Ynys Mén.

Cynhaliwyd galwad gynhadledd ar 6°¢ Ebrill 2016 gyda Swyddog
Cyfreithiol Ynys Moén, y Rheolwr Prosiect, y Swyddog Cyfreithiol
Arweiniol, y Swyddog Technegol (hefyd Swyddog Technegol CSYM) a
Pinsent Masons yn bresennol.

Yn dilyn yr alwad gynhadledd honno, trafodwyd yr 2ilGRhA mewn
cyfarfod o Swyddogion Monitro yr awdurdodau partner.

Tud. 32
31



p_‘_/ oivGor ccoe .
= Si Danbych Sir y Filint E@ NWRWTP
% GonNwy § "'anshire

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

3.5 O ganlyniad i'r trafodaethau uchod, cytunwyd ar nifer fach o

newidiadau it ddogfen. Amlygir y rhain yn adroddiad y Swyddog
Cyfreithiol Arweiniol sydd ynghlwm isod yn Atodiad 2.

Fersiwn ddiwygiedig yn dilyn adborth

3.6  Yndilyn y broses uchod, mae fersiwn ddiwygiedig newydd bellach wedi
ei hanfon i swyddogion yr awdurdodau partner ar gyfer adolygiad
terfynol cyn iddi fod yn barod i'w llofnodi cyn y Cau Ariannol.

3.7  Nodwyd yr amserlen ar gyfer cyrraedd y Cau Ariannol yn eitem 10 ary
rhaglen (Rhan 2 y ddogfen).

4. ARGYMHELLION

4.1 Nodi'r adroddiad a’i gynnwys.

4.2. Cymeradwyo’r diwygiadau i ddogfen 2iIGRhA fel yr amlinellir yn yr
adroddiad hwn.

5. GOBLYGIADAU ARIANNOL

5.1Mae goblygiadau ariannol a risg i bob un o'r pum awdurdod cyfansoddol o
ganlyniad i fynd i mewn i Gytundeb. Adroddwyd ar y rhain yn flaenorol.

6. EFFAITH GWRTH-DLODI

6.1 Dim

7. EFFAITH AMGYLCHEDDOL

7.1 Dim

8. EFFAITH CYDRADDOLDEB

8.1 Dim

9. GOBLYGIADAU PERSONEL

9.1 Dim

10. ANGEN YMGYNGHORI

Tud. 33
32



& & o G JE NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

10.1 Dim

11. YMGYNGHORI A WNAED

11.1 Cynhaliwyd nifer o gyfarfodydd o’r Grwp Swyddogion Technegol, Grwp
Swyddogion Cyllid a Grwp Swyddogion Cyfreithiol i drafod y materion
allweddol a godwyd yn yr 2ilGRhA drafft, ac yn y Bwrdd Prosiect drwy
gydol y broses.

DEDDF MYNEDIAD | WYBODAETH LLYWODRAETH LEOL 1985

Dogfennau Cefndir:

Dim

Swyddog CyswllIt: Gareth Owens (CSyFf)
Steffan Owen (PTGGGC)

Tud. 34
33



. .(\'Ia':-
Conw § De
AT B P o

.............

GOR nGoe "

Ddinbych Sir y Fflint

ol Caabid

WTY COUNCIL oo I..“,l..?\. .;Ire e

NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

Atodiad 1 — Ychwanegiadau/ diwygiadau i'r 2ilGRhA yn deillio o

Gyfarfodydd Grwpiau Swyddogion ym mis Chwefror

Cymal Ychwanegiad/ Diwygiad Codwyd gan
Cymal newydd | Angen cymal newydd i ymdrin yn benodol &'r Grwp
— Cynllunio awdurdodau sy'n gweithio gyda'i gilydd i sicrhau Cyfreithiol

cynllunio y tu hwnt i 2050. Mae angen i hyn ganiatau

i'r awdurdodau wneud hynny ar unrhyw adeg. Bydd

unrhyw oblygiadau cost yn amodol ar yr un

egwyddorion rhannu costau & phob un arall fel y

nodir yn Atodlen 8.
10B - Cynnwys darpariaeth sy’n cydnabod y gallai'r Grwp
Adolygiad Partneriaid fod a diddordeb dilys mewn defnyddio Cyfreithiol
canol tymor unrhyw hyd oes estynedig y tu hwnt i'r estyniad

rhagweladwy o 5 mlynedd
10B - Proses gwneud penderfyniadau ar gyfer dyrannu Gnwp Cyllid
Adolygiad unrhyw werth gweddilliol y cyfleuster (safle yn
canol tymor parhau i fod ym mherchnogaeth Cyngor Sir y Fflint)

ar y terfyn
Atodlen 1 — Ychwanegu Adolygiad canol tymor at y rhestr Grwp
Tasgau tasgau i sicrhau ei fod yn cael ei gynnwys. Cyfreithiol
prosiect
11.7 - Addasu geiriad i ganiatau ar gyfer 2 GTG (heb fynnu | Bob Grwp
Gorsaf(oedd) | fod rhaid i'r nifer fod yn 2).
Trosglwyddo
Gwastraff
11.7 - Ychwanegu Gorsaf(oedd) Trosglwyddo Gwastraff at | Grwp
Gorsaf(oedd) |y rhestr tasgau i sicrhau eu bod yn cael eu cynnwys | Cyfreithiol a
Trosglwyddo yn y trefniadau llywodraethu. Gnwp Cyllid
Gwastraff
11.7 - Mynnu bod y GTG’oedd sy’n cael eu hariannu neu Grwpiau
Gorsaf(oedd) | eu rhan ariannu gan y bartneriaeth yn cael eu Cyfreithiol a
Trosglwyddo defnyddio at ddibenion y prosiect ac nid eu cau a’'u | Chyllid
Gwastraff gwerthu ymlaen, oni chytunir fel arall gan y

Bartneriaeth.
1.7 - Angen egluro na fydd y bartneriaeth yn ariannu Grwpiau
Gorsaf(oedd) | costau cynnal a chadw a gweithredu parhaus y Cyfreithiol a
Trosglwyddo GTG. Chyllid
Gwastraff
11.7 - Sicrhau os bydd GTG newydd yn cael ei defnyddio | Grwpiau
Gorsaf(oedd) | at ddibenion lluosog (h.y. gweithgareddau heblaw Technegol
Trosglwyddo gwastraff gweddilliol), mai dim ond cyfran o'r costau
Gwastraff sy'n ymwneud & throsglwyddo gwastraff gweddilliol

fydd y Bartneriaeth yn ei ariannu. Awgrymwyd bod
ymgynghorwyr technegol allanol yn dod i mewn i
adolygu'r GTG a dyrannu yn unol & hynny (efallai na
fydd dyraniad tunelledd yn adlewyrchu dyraniad teg
0 gostau).

Tud. 35
34




..........

con oo
Sir Ddinbych Sir y Fflint
Denbighshire -~ .
et e Flintshire

2 .4 COUNTY COUSNCIL —

NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

11.7 - Uchafswm taliad o £2.5m — dylai’r ddogfen ddatgan | Grwp Cyllid
Gorsaf(oedd) bod awdurdodau sy’n adeiladu GTG a ariennir gan y
Trosglwyddo bartneriaeth (CBSC a CSDd) yn ariannu costau
Gwastraff cyfalaf yn y lle cyntaf, a phob awdurdod i ariannu ei

gyfraniad mewn modd y gwél yn dda, a bod

mecanwaith o dalu i'r awdurdodau gyda'r GTG

(CBSC a CSDd) i fod drwy gytundeb.
11.7 - Mae’r gwariant ei hun i'w graffu yn llawn gany Grwp Cyllid
Gorsaf(oedd) | grwpiau technegol a chyllid, a chael cymeradwyaeth
Trosglwyddo ar gyfer y gwariant gan y Bwrdd Prosiect a'r
Gwastraff Cydbwyligor.
Atodlen 8 — Mae’r Sktpa o gwastraff wedi’i gyn-drin i gael ei Grwp
Gwastraff ddyrannu ar gyfran tunelledd pro rata. (Nid oes Technegol
wedi’i Gyn-Drin | angen arolwg llinell sylfaen - dyraniad yn ddigonol)
Atodlen 8 — Mae masnachu cyfran o'u Iwfans 5ktpa rhwng ALlau | Bob Grvp
Gwastraff yn dderbyniol.
wedi’'i Gyn-Drin
Cymal newydd | Dim cyfeiriad ar hyn o bryd yn y ddogfen sy’n ymdrin | Grnip
- a Gwasanaethau Cludo. Angen ychwanegu cymal Technegol
Gwasanaethau | newydd sy'n disgrifio'r modd y bydd yr awdurdodau
Cludo yn cydweithio i ddarparu'r gwasanaethau cludo, gan

gynnwys llunio manyleb contract, a chyfarwyddo

WTI i gaffael y contract(au) gwasanaethau cludo ar

eu rhan

Mae angen hefyd cydnabod nad yw'r awdurdodau

yn rhwym drwy gontract o ddefnyddio WTI, a phe na

bai’'r bartneriaeth yn defnyddio'r opsiwn hwnnw gyda

WTI, yna byddai’r awdurdodau yn gweithio gyda'i

gilydd ar gaffael gwasanaethau cludo ar y cyd.
Dogfen gyfan | Tynnu'r cromfachau sgwar
6.9 Diweddaru dyddiadau i adlewyrchu’r amserlen Grwp

Technegol
D (tud. 4) “Cyfleuster” yn hytrach na “Chyfleusterau”? Grwp
Technegol

Atodiad 1 Ar y brig —Dylai "Cynghorwyr Etholedig" fod yn

"Aelod Gweithredol”
Diffiniadau Dylai "Swyddog Cyllid Arweiniol" gyfeirio at

ddyletswyddau statudol y rél hon (e.e. paratoi
datganiad o gyfrifon).

Tud. 36
35




o S Golr JE  NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

Atodiad 2

16.04.15 PARTNERIAETH TRIN GWASTRAFF GWEDDILLIOL GOGLEDD

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.3

24

3.1

3.2

CYMRU

Yn ddiweddar cylchwyd yr 2ilGRhA drafft ar gyfer sylwadau. Cafwyd nifer o
sylwadau gyda cheisiadau am ddiwygiadau a gynigwyd. Gellir cytuno i nifer
o’r diwygiadau hyn fel rhai synhwyrol a gwelliannau defnyddiol i’r testun sy’n
amcanu at egluro bwriad y drafftio — gweler y diwygiadau hyn yn yr atodiad
sydd ynghlwm.

Ni fu'n bosibl cytuno ar fater allweddol mewn perthynas & newid a gynigwyd o
ran y sefyllifa atebolrwydd, ac mae'r papur hwn yn nodi'r materion hyn.

Cyd-destun

Mae gan y contract gwastraff gyfanswm gwerth o oddeutu £500m.

Mae CSyFf yn llofnodi'r Cytundeb Prosiect (PA) ar ran pob un o'r 5 cyngor yn
y bartneriaeth

Mae’r 2ilIGRhA yn llywodraethu'r berthynas rhwng y 5 partner, gan gynnwys
amlinellu’r prosesau gwneud penderfyniadau, proses ar gyfer datrys
anghydfodau a dyrannu atebolrwydd mewn achos bod naill ai'r CP neu'r
2ilGRhA yn cael ei dorri gan weithredoedd un neu fwy o gynghorau.

Darpariaethau yn yvr 2ilGRhA

Mae Cymal 2.2 yn gwneud darpariaeth ar gyfer cyflwyno hysbysiad diffygdalu
pe bai un o'r cynghorau yn methu & chydymffurfio &'i rwymedigaethau o dan y
2ilIGRhA, gan nodi camau adferol awgrymedig ac "unrhyw ddifrod" sy'n
debygol o gael eu dioddef os na chywirir y diffygdalu. Mae methu &
chydymffurfio &'r rhrwymedigaethau o dan y 2ilGRhA yn gwneud y cyngor sy’n
diffygdalu yn atebol i dalu unrhyw golled sydd wedi, neu a allai, gael ei dioddef
yn sgil methiant o'r fath.

(DS mae prosesau y gall cyngor sy’n diffygdalu eu defnyddio i ddadlau
ynghylch hysbysiadau diffygdalu a datrys anghydfod)

Mae Cymal 2.3.4 2ilGRhA yn ymdrin & phetai cyngor sy’n diffygdalu yn cael ei
derfynu (sy’'n benderfyniad a gedwir i'r Cyngor llawn a rhaid i bob cyngor
gytuno) ar gyfer naill ai-:-

Tud. 37
36



3.3

41

5.1

5.2

oo S Gl JE8  NWRWTP
CONWM g o i “* Flintshire

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

e peidio unioni toriad y gellir ei unioni o fewn 60 diwrnod busnes; neu

e beidio a chynnig datrysiad amgen derbyniol i doriad sylweddol na ellir ei
unioni o fewn 30 diwrnod busnes

yna bydd y cyngor sy’n diffygdalu yn derbyn Adroddiad Atebolrwydd yn nodi'r
"colledion canlyniadol" gan gynnwys y rhai a bennir yn Atodlen 7 (gan nodi
bod gan y cynghorau nad ydynt yn diffygdalu ddyletswydd (gweithredu'n
rhesymol) i liniaru'r colledion ) y maent yn eu dioddef). Nodir bod cynnwys yr
Adroddiad Atebolrwydd i gael ei baratoi gan y Cyngor Arweiniol, gan
weithredu'n rhesymol; yna trafodir a chytunir ar yr adroddiad gan vy
Cydbwyligor cyn i'r adroddiad gael ei gyhoeddi i'r cyngor sy’n diffygdalu.

Mae Atodlen 7 (ynghlwm) yn nodi nifer o benawdau colled

Diwygiadau Arfaethedig

Cynigir y diwygiadau canlynol-

1) dylai'r rhwymedigaeth ar gyfer cyngor sy’n diffygdalu o dan gymalau 2.2 a
2.3.4 gael ei chyfyngu i golled "uniongyrchol" sy’'n cronni i'r partion nad
ydynt yn diffygdalu

2) dylid cynnwys manylion pellach o'r mathau o benawdau colled a ragwelir
yn yr Adroddiad Atebolrwydd yn Atodlen 7

3) dylai’r penawdau colled yn Atodlen 7 (lle bo'n berthnasol) groes gyfeirio at
y cymalau perthnasol o dan y CP

4) dylai'r colledion o dan Atodlen 7 gael eu cyfyngu fel sydd wedi’i farcio
mewn newidiadau wedi’'u tracio i'r rhai sy'n rhesymol

Svlwadau ar y Diwygiadau Arfaethedig

Mae'n egwyddor sylfaenol bod graddau llawn unrhyw rwymedigaeth sy'n codi
dan y CP yn cael ei dyrannu i’r cyngor (cynghorau) sy’n diffygdalu fel nad yw'r
un o'r cynghorau eraill ar eu colled o ganlyniad i gamau gweithredu sydd y tu

hwnt i'w rheolaeth.

Mae'r cymalau atebolrwydd o dan y CRhA1af ac a gynigir yn awr yn yr
2ilGRhA yn fwriadol eang i roi'r gost sy'n gysylltiedig a diffygdalu ar ben uchaf
yr hyn a ganiateir (heb i'r cymal fod yn gosb). Mae'r effaith ataliol hon wedi
bod o fudd i'r bartneriaeth sawl gwaith (yn fwyaf diweddar yn dilyn y newid
arweinyddiaeth wleidyddol yng Nghyngor Sir y Fflint).

Tud. 38
37



5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1
6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7 Sir Deinbych Sir y Fli
Sir Ddinbyc y Flint @
Ly g:’iﬁffi'ﬁ’:ﬂ’&” -Ifj[qggblirej i NWRWTP

' f— North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project
Yn ogystal, mae colledion posibl ar wahan i'r rhai o fewn y CP pe bai'r
bartneriaeth yn dod i ben; mae rhai yn gyffredin i bob cyngor ac mae rhai yn
unigryw

E.e. 1 mae’r prosiect gwastraff yn helpu'r cynghorau i gyflawni eu targedau
ailgylchu a dargyfeirio gwastraff o safleoedd tirlenwi. Os na fydd yn bwrw
ymlaen (neu’n cael ei derfynu), yna mae cynghorau yn wynebu treth tirlenwi o
£200 y tunnell ynghyd a dirwy o £200 y dunnell i LIC am bob tunnell o wastraff
yn is na'r targed ailgylchu

E.e. 2 Bydd Conwy a Sir Ddinbych yn derbyn cyllid refeniw gan Lywodraeth
Cymru i dalu am y gost o fenthyca er mwyn darparu gorsafoedd trosglwyddo
gwastraff. Os bydd y prosiect yn dod i ben (a chyllid LIC yn cael ei golli), yna
bydd y cynghorau hynny yn atebol am y costau benthyca..

Pe bai’r prosiect yn cael ei derfynu, bydd angen i'r cynghorau naill ai gyda'i
gilydd neu'n unigol gaffael dulliau amgen o waredu eu gwastraff. Mae graddfa
a chost caffael o'r fath mewn amser swyddogion a ffioedd ymgynghorwyr yn
sylweddol.

Mae ychwanegu'r gair 'rhesymol' i Atodlen 7 yn cael ei dderbyn.

Argymbhelliad

Bod yr 2ilGRhA yn cael ei ddiwygio fel a nodir yn yr atodiad i'r adroddiad hwn

Bod cymalau 2.2 a 2.3.4 (b) (mewn perthynas & hawliadau annibynnol sy'n
codi rhwng y cynghorau yn unig) yn cael eu diwygio i gyfyngu hawliadau i
"golledion canlyniadol rhesymol"

Bod atodlen 7 yn cael ei diwygio trwy ychwanegu'r gair "rhesymol" a chan yr
esboniad pellach o'r pennawd colled olaf a ddangosir yn y newidiadau tracio

Bod rhes ychwanegol yn cael ei chynnwys yn yr Adroddiad Atebolrwydd i
ymgorffori unrhyw golledion a gafwyd o dan y Cytundeb Prosiect a Dogfennau
Contract

Bod yr 2ilGRhA yn cael ei dderbyn a gofyn i'r Bwrdd Prosiect gymeradwyo'r
ddogfen (yn amodol ar unrhyw newidiadau o ffrydiau gwaith eraill a
diwygiadau gofynnol i alinio'r telerau &'r Cytundeb Prosiect ) gyda’r
diwygiadau hyn

Gareth Owens

Prif Swyddog Llywodraethu

Cyngor Sir y Fflint

Tud. 39
38



CYNGTR omcos "
* CNIEM\J "'\"V g Sir Ddinbych P St Y Fflint
Denbighshi intshi
<A o i Flintshire

ATODLEN 7 — ADRODDIAD

€@ NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

ATEBOLRWYDD

Bydd yr Adroddiad Atebolrwydd yn cynnwys (ond heb fod yn gyfyngedig i):

Swm
crwn)

(bob ffigwr mewn punnoedd

Costau staff (a gorbenion cysylltiedig) wrth

ddatblygu'r prosiect:

o ffioedd ymgynghori a chynghorwyr
(cyfreithiol, ariannol, technegol,
yswiriant ayb);

rheoli prosiect mewnol a monitro;

e cyngor proffesiynol mewnol.

Colli chefnogaeth ariannol
Cymru.

gan Lywodraeth

Colledion a achoswyd o ganlyniad i'r canlynol: -

e colli incwm gwarantedig Trydydd Parti a
nodwyd yn y model ariannol achos
sylfaenol y Contractwr;

atebolrwydd ar y Cynghorau sy'n weddill i
dalu cyfran gynyddol o'r taliadau sy'n
ddyledus i'r Contractwr o dan y Cytundeb
Prosiect;

colli incwm Trydydd Parti heb ei warantu;
a

cost caffael Iwfansau LAS ychwanegol o
ganlyniad i dynnu'n 6l neu derfynu (yn 6l
y digwydd) gan Gyngor

Unrhyw golledion costau, hawliadau ac iawndal
rhesymol eraill sy'n deillio o'r Cynghorau sy'n
parhau o fewn vy Prosiect yn comisiynu
darpariaeth o wasanaethau amgen os nad yw'r
prosiect yn hyfyw ac Cytundeb Prosiect yn cael ei
derfynu.

Costau rhesymol a geir gan y Cyngor Arweiniol

Cydnabod unrhyw ffactorau lliniarol, gan gynnwys
ffynhonnell wastraff amnewidiol (p’'un a ywn
awdurdod lleol ychwanegol y tu hwnt i'r
Cynghorau neu fel arall).

Torricostaucontract

Tud. 40
39




& & o G JE NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

Swm (bob ffigwr mewn punnoedd
crwn)

Yr holl gostau a cholledion rhesymol eraill sy'n

deillio 0, neu mewn cysylltiad &, thorri’r Cytundeb

hwn

Ardystiwyd yn gywir

(Llofnod) (Dyddiad)
Diwygiadau a Gytunwyd i'r Atodiad

2ilGRhA

1) Y dylai amodau'r arian grant LIC gael eu hatodi i'r 2lGRhA

2) Y bydd diffiniadau’r CP yn cael eu gwirio er mwyn sicrhau eu bod yn gyson
a’r rhai yn yr 2ilGRhA ac yn achos unrhyw anghysondebau, y CP fydd yn
cael blaenoriaeth

3) Y dylai’r pennawd colled olaf yn Atodlen 7 gael ei wneud yn fwy penodol

4) Dylai'r canlynol gael eu diwygio fel y dangosir isod
a. “cyfnod penderfynu”
"Cyfnod penderfynu" yw'r cyfnod o bymtheg (15) Diwrnod Busnes
o ddyddiad cytuno neu benderfynu ar y
symiau a nodir yn yr Adroddiad Atebolrwydd,
neu ba bynnag gyfnod amser-arall a gytunir
yn unfrydol gan yr holl Gynghorau

b. Dylai “anghydfod” gael ei ddiwygio fel y dangosir isod
"Anghydfod" yn golygu unrhyw wahaniaeth neu anghydfod
rhwng dau (2) neu fwy o Gynghorau neu un
neu fwy o gynghorau a'r Contractwr sy’n
deillio o, neu mewn cysylltiad &’r, Cytundeb
hwn a/neu’r Prosiect

C. Cymal_3.5.6
“‘mae’r Cynghorau yn cytuno, mewn perthynas a'r Cytundeb hwn a'r
Prosiect yn gyffredinol, y byddant yn talu'r sylw mwyaf bosibl i statws
ac enw da ei gilydd ac na fyddant yn gwneud neu’n methu gwneud
unrhyw beth a all ddod ag anfri ar statws neu enw da eu Cyngor neu
unrhyw Gyngor arall neu ddenu cyhoeddusrwydd niweidiol i'w
Cyngor hwy neu unrhyw Gyngor arall;

d. Cymal 15.3

Tud. 41
40



cous

o Sine Gl JE& NWRWTP

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

“Bydd bob Cyngor arall (gan weithredu’n unigol ond ni cheir indemnio
dyblyg) yn indemnio’r Cyngor Arweiniol ac yn ei gadw wedii
indemnio’n llawn yn erbyn unrhyw golledion, difrod, hawliad, achos,

treuliau, camau gweithredu, gorchmynion, costau a
rhwymedigaethau a ddioddefir gan neu a dynnir o ran neu mewn
cysylltiad a:”

Tud. 42

41



DATED 2016

1) CONWY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
) DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

©) FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

4) GWYNEDD COUNCIL

(5) ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL

SECOND INTER-AUTHORITY AGREEMENT
in relation to the joint procurement of
a Residual Waste Treatment Facility pursuant to
the North Wales Residual Waste Partnership Agreement

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 43
42



CONTENTS

Clause

1 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

2 COMMENCEMENT, DURATION AND TERMINATION

3 PRINCIPLES AND KEY OBJECTIVES

4 DUTIES OF THE LEAD COUNCIL AND OTHER COUNCILS

5 DECISION MAKING

6 JOINT COMMITTEE

7 ANNUAL BUDGET

8 PROJECT BOARD

9 PROJECT OFFICERS

10 PERFORMANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN

10A AIR QUALITY MONITORING

10B INTERIM SERVICES

10C MID-TERM REVIEW

11 SITES AND DECOMMISSIONING

12 PAYMENTS

13 ACCOUNTS

14 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

15 LIABILITY OF THE COUNCILS

16 WITHDRAWAL

17 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

18 DATA PROTECTION

19 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION

20 CHANGES AND CHANGE IN LAW

21 STEP-IN TO THE PROJECT AGREEMENT

22 TERMINATION OF THE PROJECT AGREEMENT

23 COUNCILS' OBLIGATIONS FOLLOWING EXPIRY OR EARLIER
TERMINATION OF THE PROJECT AGREEMENT

24 POLICIES

44267940.16\gh01 TUd.2 44

43

Page

13

16

18

21

22

23

25

26

26

27

27

27

28

30

33

34

34

36

37

38

40

41

41

42

42

44



25 CONFIDENTIALITY AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

26 CONTRACTS (THIRD PARTY RIGHTS)
27 NOTICES

28 GOVERNING LAW

29 ASSIGNMENTS

30 WAIVER AND COSTS

31 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

32 COUNTERPARTS

33 RELATIONSHIP OF COUNCILS

34 MITIGATION

35 STATUTORY RESPONSIBILITIES

36 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (CONTRACTS) ACT 1997
37 VARIATIONS

38 SEVERABILITY

SCHEDULE 1 — PROJECT TASKS

SCHEDULE 2 - JOINT COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

SCHEDULE 3 - PROJECT BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE

SCHEDULE 4 - ADDRESSES OF THE COUNCILS

SCHEDULE 5 - ANNUAL BUDGET

SCHEDULE 6 - ACCOUNTING PERIODS

SCHEDULE 7 - LIABILITY REPORT

SCHEDULE 8 - PAYMENT PROPORTIONS

APPENDIX 1 - DATA PROTECTION POLICY

APPENDIX 2

PART 1 - TRANSFER 1

PART 2 - TRANSFER 2

APPENDIX 3 - DEED OF COVENANT

APPENDIX 4- ANNUAL BUDGET 2016-2017

APPENDIX 5 - WELSH GOVERNMENT FUNDING CONDITIONS

44267940.16\gh01 Tua . 45
44

44

45

45

46

46

46

46

46

47

47

47

47

47

48

49

57

61

62

63

64

65

66

98

100

100

106

112

114

115



THIS AGREEMENT is made on 2016

BETWEEN

(1)

()

@)

(4)

®)

CONWY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL of Bodlondeb, Conwy, North Wales, LL32
8DU ("Conwy Council");

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL of Environmental Services, Kinmel Park Depot,
Bodelwyddan, Denbighshire, LL18 5UX ("Denbighshire Council");

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL of County Hall, Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NB
("Flintshire Council");

GWYNEDD COUNCIL of Council Offices, Shirehall Street, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55
1SH ("Gwynedd Council"); and

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL of Council Offices, Llangefni, Anglesey,
LL77 7TW ("Isle of Anglesey Council")

(together referred to as the "Councils" and individually as a "Council")

BACKGROUND

(A)

(B)

(€)

(D)

(E)

(F)

The Councils have agreed to work together in a partnering relationship to jointly
procure a residual waste treatment facility and deliver residual waste treatment
services in furtherance of the objectives of the North Wales Residual Waste Treatment
Partnership (the "Partnership") and the Project.

The Councils (pursuant to the powers conferred on them by Sections 51 and 55 of
The Environmental Protection Act 1990, Section 19 of the Local Government Act 2000
and all other enabling powers) entered into the first Inter-Authority Agreement on 24
June 2010 (the "First Inter-Authority Agreement") to formalise their respective roles
and responsibilities in relation to the joint working arrangements for the procurement
of the Project and the appointment of Flintshire Council as Lead Council in carrying
out the procurement in accordance with the terms of the Project's outline business
case and the common decision made by each Council to approve the affordability
envelope for the Project and commence the procurement.

The Councils acknowledge that the First Inter-Authority Agreement regulated the
procurement of the Project up to Financial Close. Pursuant to the First Inter-Authority
Agreement, the Councils have agreed to enter into this Agreement which will set out
the respective rights and obligations of each Council during the Contract Period.

The Councils have agreed that the Lead Council shall on or about the date of this
Agreement enter into a contract (the "Project Agreement") with Parc Adfer Limited
(Company No. 9100505) a private sector contractor, (the "Contractor") involving the
design, construction, installation, commissioning, financing, operation and
maintenance of the Facility and the provision of the Services (including the Interim
Services and the Commissioning Services).

Following the successful entry into the Project Agreement, the Councils have agreed
to enter into this Agreement to formalise their respective roles and responsibilities in
relation to the joint working arrangements during the Contract Period, and to appoint
Flintshire Council as Lead Council.

The Councils acknowledge that this Agreement sets out the basis on which risks and
liabilities are apportioned between the Councils during the Contract Period. Such
agreement is intended to reflect the terms of the Project Agreement.

4
44267940.16\gh01 TUd . 46

45



(G)

(H)

()

(K)

(L)

(M)

(N)

1.1

The Councils agree to work together in the implementation and contract management
of the Project Agreement and other Contract Documents and acknowledge that all
decisions relating to the Project and the operation of the Contract Documents shall be
made in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and shall be implemented by
the Lead Council under the Contract Documents for and on behalf of itself and the
other Councils.

The Councils wish to enter into this Agreement and implement the Project pursuant to
the powers conferred on them by sections 51 and 55 of the Environmental Protection
Act 1990, sections 19 and 20 of the Local Government Act 2000, and all other
enabling powers.

Under Section 113 of the Act the Councils may enter into an agreement with each
other for the placing at their disposal the services of officers employed by them.

By virtue of Section 111 of the Act, each of the Councils has power to do anything
which is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of any of
its functions.

By virtue of Section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999 substituted by the Local
Government and Public Involvement Health Act 2007, each of the Councils has a duty
to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its
functions are exercised having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and
effectiveness.

By virtue of Section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000, each of the Councils has
power to do anything that it considers is likely to achieve the promotion or
improvement of the economic, social or environmental well-being of its area.

The Councils have agreed to establish and participate in a joint committee (whose
remit is presently limited to the Project but may be extended to cover other related or
ancillary activities by agreement) to facilitate the delivery and management of the
Project from the date of financial close of the Project when the Project Agreement and
supporting documentation is completed.

The Councils acknowledge that this Agreement shall be certified for the purposes of
the Local Government (Contracts) Act 1997.

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

In this Agreement and the Recitals, unless, the context otherwise requires, the
following terms shall have the meaning given to them below:-

"AB Accounts" has the meaning given in Clause 13.2 (Accounts)

"Accounting Period" means those periods set out in Schedule 6 (Accounting
Periods) as may be amended from time to time in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement

"Act" means the Local Government Act 1972

44267940.16\gh01 Tua . 47

46




"Annual Budget"

means the sum set out in Schedule 5 (Annual Budget)
(represented by the list of required heads of
expenditure) which represents the necessary funding
for the Lead Council to discharge its functions on
behalf of all the Councils under this Agreement as
managed by the Project Board, notified to the Joint
Committee and approved by each Council in respect of
this Project (and the Councils acknowledge that the
Annual Budget does not include the Unitary Charge
payment made under the Project Agreement)

"APCR Element of the
Unitary Payment"

means the amount calculated in accordance with
paragraph 18 of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions)

"Banded Element"

means the banded element(s) of the Unitary Charge
within paragraph 6.3 of Schedule 4 of the Project
Agreement related to processing of Contract Waste

"Band 0 Payment of the
Unitary Payment"

means the amounts calculated in accordance with
paragraph 13 of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions)

"Band 1 Payment of the
Unitary Payment"

means the amounts calculated in accordance with
paragraph 14 of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions)

"Band 1 Tonnage"

means the tonnage of Contracted Waste to be
delivered by each Council per Contracted Year as set
out in Appendix C2 (Band 1 Tonnage) to Schedule 8
(Payment Proportions)

"Band 2 Payment of the
Unitary Payment"

means the amounts calculated in accordance with
paragraph 15 of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions)

"Band 2 Tonnage"

means the tonnage of Contracted Waste to be
delivered by each Council per Contracted Year as set
out in Appendix C3 (Band 2 Tonnage) to Schedule 8
(Payment Proportions)

"Band 3 Payment of the
Unitary Payment"

means the amounts calculated in accordance with
paragraph 16 of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions)

"Band 3 Tonnage"

means the tonnage of Contracted Waste to be
delivered by each Council per Contracted Year as set
out in Appendix C4 (Band 3 Tonnage) to Schedule 8
(Payment Proportions)

"Base Payment Index"

means the indexation factor calculated in accordance
with paragraph 21.2 of Schedule 4 of the Project
Agreement

"Business Day"

means a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on
which banks are open for domestic business in the
City of London

"CBF Account"

means the account to be set up in accordance with the
Project Agreement and to which all Community Benefit
Fund contribution payments will be made into

44267940.16\gh01

Tud?® 48

47




"Chair"

means the chair of the Joint Committee (duly
appointed pursuant to paragraph 12 of Part 2 of
Schedule 2 (Joint Committee Terms of Reference)) or
the Project Board (duly appointed pursuant to Clause
8.4 (Project Board) (as the case may be))

"CIWM"

means the Chartered Institution of Wastes
Management

"Commencement Date"

means the date of this Agreement

"Commissioning Payment"

means the amount calculated in accordance with
paragraph 4.1 of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions)

"Community Benefit Fund"

means the community benefit fund which the Lead
Council must develop and manage in accordance with
the Project Agreement

"Confidential Information"

means all know-how and other information whether
commercial, financial, technical or otherwise relating to
the business, affairs or methods of all or any Council,
which is contained in or discernible in any form
whatsoever (including without limitation software, data,
drawings, films, documents and computer-readable
media) whether or not marked or designated as
confidential or proprietary or which is disclosed orally
or by demonstration and which is described at the time
of disclosure as confidential or is clearly so from its
content or the context of disclosure

"Contract Documents"

means the Project Agreement, the Collateral
Warranties, the Independent Certifier's Deed of
Appointment, the Lease, the Haulage Sub-Contract
(each as defined in the Project Agreement) and any
other document entered into between the Lead Council
and the Contractor or an Affiliate of the Contractor in
respect of the Project

"Contract Management
Costs"

means the costs that each Council shall contribute
towards the Annual Budget as detailed at paragraph 7
(Contract Management Costs) and paragraph 22
(Other Costs) of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions)

"Contract Manager"

means the person appointed to manage the Project

"Contract Period"

has the meaning given to it in the Project Agreement

"Contractor"

has the meaning given to it in Recital (D)

"Cost Sharing Ratio"

means the ratio relating to the sharing of costs
between the Councils as set out in Appendix B (Cost
Sharing) of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions)

"Counternotice"

has the meaning given in Clause 2.2.2 (Initial
Breaches of this Agreement and Remediation)

"Covenantor"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 25
(Confidentiality and Announcements)

44267940.16\gh01

Tud. 49
48




"Decision Period"

means the period of fifteen (15) Business Days from
the date of the agreement or determination of the
amounts set out in the Liability Report, or such other
period as is unanimously agreed by all the Councils

"Deductions"

means the deductions imposed on the Contractor by
the Lead Council pursuant to Schedule 4 (Payment
Mechanism) of the Project Agreement

"Default Interest Rate"

means two per cent (2%) above the base rate of the
Bank of England

"Default Notice"

has the meaning given in Clause 2.2.1
Breaches of this Agreement and Remediation)

(Initial

"Defaulter" has the meaning given in Clause 2.3.1 (Termination of
Participation of a Partner Council or Lead Council for
Material or Irremediable Breaches)

"Dispute” means any difference or dispute between two (2) or
more Councils or one (1) or more Councils and the
Contractor arising out of or in connection with this
Agreement and/or the Project

"DPA" means the Data Protection Act 1998

"EIR" has the meaning given in Clause 19 (Freedom of
Information and Environmental Information)

"Facility" has the meaning given in the Project Agreement

"First Council” has the meaning given to it in Clause 2.2.1 (Initial

Breaches of this Agreement and Remediation)

"First Inter Authority
Agreement"

has the meaning given to it in Recital (B)

"FolA"

has the meaning given in Clause 19 (Freedom of
Information and Environmental Information)

"Forecast Tonnage"

means the tonnage of Contract Waste forecast to be
delivered by each Council as set out in Appendix C1
(Forecast Tonnage) of Schedule 8 (Payment
Proportions)

"Full Indexation Factor"

means the indexation calculated in accordance with
paragraph 21.3 of Schedule 4 of the Project
Agreement

"Haulage Element"

means in respect of a Contract Month, all the costs
incurred by the Contractor in transporting Contract
Waste from Authority Designated Collection Points to
the Facility in Contract Month 'm-1', in accordance with
the provisions of Schedule 33 of the Project
Agreement

"Haulage Element of Unitary
Payment"

means the amounts calculated in accordance with
paragraph 19 of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions)

44267940.16\gh01

Tud?® 50

49




"Intellectual Property"

means any and all patents, trade marks, trade names,
copyright, moral rights, rights in design, rights in
databases, know-how and all or other intellectual
property rights whether or not registered or capable of
registration and whether subsisting in the United
Kingdom or any other part of the world together with all
or any goodwill relating to them and the right to apply
for registration of them

"Interim Services"

means the whole of the optional services or any of
them to be provided pursuant to the Project Agreement
which are necessary for the Contractor to undertake in
order to comply with the Interim Service Requirements,
any relevant Method Statements and the other
provisions of the Project Agreement

"Interim Services Payment"

means the amount calculated in accordance with
paragraph 3.1 of Schedule (Payment Proportions)

"Interim Services Period"

means the period during which any Interim Services
are provided to the Authority in accordance with
Clause 21.3B of the Project Agreement

"Interim Services
Requirements"

means the specification contained in Part A (PR5 —
Interim Service Requirements) of Schedule 2
(Authority's Requirements) of the Project Agreement

"Interim Services Waste
Disposal Payment"

has the meaning given in the Project Agreement

"Interim Services Waste
Transport Payment"

has the meaning given in the Project Agreement

"IP Material"

means the Intellectual Property in the Material

"JC Unresolved Matter"

has the meaning given in Clause 6.4

Committee)

(Joint

"Joint Committee"

shall have the meaning given to it in Clause 6.1 (Joint
Committee) being the joint board of members of the
Councils with delegated power to discharge the
functions of the relevant Council as provided for in this
Agreement in relation to the Project established under
the provisions of Part VI of the Act

"Joint Committee Meeting"

means a meeting of the Joint Committee duly
convened in accordance with Clause 6 (Joint
Committee)

"Lead Council"

means the Council appointed under Clause 4 (Duties
of the Lead Council and Other Councils) as the lead
administering authority for the Project whose rights
and duties are set out in this Agreement

44267940.16\gh01

Tud. 51
50




"Lead Finance Officer"

means the person so appointed from time to time by
the Lead Council to represent the interests of the
Councils in respect of financial matters of the Project
and to ensure the provision of regular update reports
are provided to the Project Board from time to time

"Lease"

has the meaning given in the Project Agreement

"Liability Report"

means a report prepared by the Lead Council (or such
other Council nominated under Clause 2.3.4(b)
(Termination of Participation of a Partner Council or
Lead Council for a Material or Irremediable Breaches)
in the event that the Lead Council is a Defaulter, or
Clause 16.3 (Withdrawal) in the event that the Lead
Council issues the Withdrawal Notice) acting
reasonably setting out the financial and resource
commitments of the relevant Council under Clause
2.3.4(b) (Termination of Participation of a Partner
Council or Lead Council for a Material or Irremediable
Breaches) upon termination, or Clause 16.6
(Withdrawal) upon withdrawal, including the items set
out in Schedule 7 (Liability Report)

"Local Authority"

means a principal council (as defined in section 270 of
the Act) or any body of government in Wales
established as a successor of a principal council

"Maintenance Payment"

shall have the meaning given in Schedule 4 (Payment
Mechanism) of the Project Agreement

"Material"

means all data, text, graphics, images and other
materials or documents created, used or supplied by a
Council in connection with this Agreement (unless
before the first use or supply, the Council notifies the
other Councils that the data, text supplied is not to be
covered by this definition)

"Matter Reserved To The
Councils"

means those actions, matters and/or functions as
defined in Clause 5 (Decision Making)

"Method Statements"

means the Works Method Statement and the Services
Method Statements (each as defined in the Project
Agreement)

"Minimum Payment"

means the minimum amount to be paid by each of the
Councils in accordance with Clause 4.10 and as
calculated in accordance with Schedule 8 (Payment
Proportions)

"Minimum Tonnage"

means the minimum tonnage of Contracted Waste to
be delivered by each Council as set out at Appendix A
of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions)

"Non-Defaulting Councils"

has the meaning given in Clause 2.3.1 (Termination of
Participation of a Partner Council or Lead Council for
Material or Irremediable Breaches)

44267940.16\gh01

Tud'°52

51




"Non Service Period"

means the period from the Commencement Date to
the Services Commencement Date, including the
Commissioning Period, any Interim Services Period
and any period following the Expiry Date or
Termination Date (each as defined in the Project
Agreement)

"Notice of Acceptance"

has the meaning given in Clause 2.2.3 (Initial
Breaches of this Agreement and Remediation)

"Notice of Dispute"

has the meaning given in Clause 2.2.3 (Initial
Breaches of this Agreement and Remediation)

"Other Council"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 2.2.1 (Initial
Breaches of this Agreement and Remediation)

"Partner Council"

means a Council other than the Lead Council

"Partnership"

has the meaning given to it in Recital (A)

"Payment Period"

means each Month during the Contract Period

"Performance and
Improvement Plan"

means the plan to be prepared and updated as and
when necessary by the Contract Manager indicating
any anticipated Authority Changes under the Project
Agreement, major milestones and activities, and
resources required in relation to the Project, to be
presented annually to the Project Board in accordance
with Clause 10 (Performance and Improvement Plan);

"Personal Data"

means personal data as defined in the DPA

"PB Unresolved Matter"

has the meaning given in Clause 8.7 (Project Board)

"Pre-Treated Waste"

has the meaning given in the Project Agreement

"Project"

has the meaning given in the Project Agreement

"Project Agreement"

has the meaning given to it in Recital (D)

"Project Board"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 8.1 (Project
Board)

"Project Board Meeting"

means a meeting of the Project Board duly convened
in accordance with Clause 8 (Project Board)

"Project Officers"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 9 (Project
Officers)

"Project Tasks"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 4.1 (Duties of
the Lead Council and other Councils)

"Readiness Date"

has the meaning given in the Project Agreement

"Site"

means the area edged red on the Site Plan

44267940.16\gh01

Tud. 53
52




1.2

"Site Plan"

means the plan of the Site set out in Part 3 of
Schedule 7 (Site Information) of the Project
Agreement;

"Termination Sum"

has the meaning given to it in the Project Agreement

"Transfer Management
Payment"

means £6,250 (being £75,000 divided by 12)

"Transfer 1" means the ftransfer by which the Site shall be
transferred to the new Lead Council, which transfer
shall be in the form of the draft transfer annexed to this
Agreement at Part 1 of Appendix 2 (Transfer 1)

"Transfer 2" means the transfer by which the Site shall be

transferred to Flintshire County Council which transfer
shall be in the form of the draft transfer annexed to this
Agreement at Part 2 of Appendix 2 (Transfer 2)

"Unitary Payment"

means the amount calculated in accordance with
paragraph 6 of Schedule 4 of the Project Agreement

"Vice-Chair"

means the vice-chair of the Joint Committee (duly
appointed pursuant to paragraph 12 of Part 2 of
Schedule 2 (Joint Committee Terms of Reference));
and

"Withdrawal Notice"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 16.3
(Withdrawal)

"WTS"

has the meaning given to it in Clause 11.7 (New
Waste Transfer Station)

Interpretation

In this Agreement, except where the context otherwise requires:-

1.21

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.24

1.2.5

1.2.6

1.2.7

44267940.16\gh01

each gender includes all genders;

except as where expressly defined within the Agreement, all words and
expressions used throughout this Agreement shall have the same meaning
as given under the Project Agreement;

the singular includes the plural and vice versa;

a reference to any clause, sub-clause, paragraph, schedule, recital or annex
is, except where expressly stated to the contrary, a reference to such clause,
sub-clause, paragraph, schedule, recital or annex of and to this Agreement;

any reference to this Agreement or to any other document shall include any
permitted variation, amendment or supplement to such document;

any reference to legislation (including subsidiary legislation), determinations
and directions shall be construed as a reference to any legislation,
determinations, directions and statutory guidance as amended, replaced,
consolidated or re-enacted;

a reference to a public organisation (to include, for the avoidance of doubt,
any Council) shall be deemed to include a reference to any successor to

Tud?’54
53



1.2.8

1.2.9

1.2.10

1.2.11

1.2.12

1.2.13

1.2.14

such public organisation or any organisation or entity which has taken over
either or both of the waste disposal functions and responsibilities of such
public organisation;

a reference to a person includes firms, partnerships and corporations and
their successors and permitted assignees or transferees;

any reference to a requirement for "consent" or "approval” shall be taken to
be the prior written consent or approval of the relevant body or person;

the schedule, clause, sub-clause and (where provided) paragraph headings
and captions in the body of this Agreement do not form part of this
Agreement and shall not be taken into account in its construction or
interpretation;

words preceding "include", "includes", "including" and "included" shall be
construed without limitation by the words which follow those words;

any reference to the title of an officer or any of the Councils shall include any
person holding such office from time to time by the same or any title
substituted thereafter or such other officer of the relevant Council as that
Council may from time to time appoint to carry out the duties of the officer
referred to; and

in this Agreement, save where otherwise provided, references to amounts
expressed to be “indexed” are references to such amounts, multiplied by:

Index:
Indexz
where "Index:" is the average of the values published for RPIx for the period
October to December immediately preceding the relevant calculation date

and "Index2" is the value of RPIX for the period October to December 2011
being 238.63

1.3 Schedules

The Schedules to this Agreement form part of this Agreement. This Agreement and its
Schedules shall be read and taken together. In the event of any inconsistency or
conflict between these terms and conditions in this Agreement and the contents of any
of the Schedules these terms and conditions shall prevail.

2. COMMENCEMENT, DURATION AND TERMINATION
2.1 Duration of Agreement
211 Subject to Clause 2.1.2 and 2.1.3, this Agreement shall continue in full force

44267940.16\gh01

and effect from the Commencement Date until the earlier of the following
dates:-

(a) all the Councils agree in writing to its termination; or

(b) there is only one (1) remaining Council who has not withdrawn
from this Agreement in accordance with Clause 16 (Withdrawal) or
been terminated pursuant to Clause 2.3 (Termination of
Participation of a Partner Council or Lead Council for Material or
Irremediable Breaches); or

Tud. 55
54



(c) the date falling six (6) months after the expiry or earlier termination
of the Project Agreement, or such later date as the obligations and
liabilities of the Lead Council pursuant to the Project Agreement
have been discharged in full.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Clause 2.1.1, Clause 17 (Dispute
Resolution) of this Agreement shall continue in respect of any Dispute
arising prior to the expiry of this Agreement until the date upon which such
Dispute has been finally agreed or determined.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Clause 2.1.1, this Agreement shall
continue in full force and effect until any decommissioning arrangements
have been finalised and completed.

The Councils agree that following the Commencement Date the rights,
liabilities and obligations of each Council set out within the First Inter-
Authority Agreement shall be superseded by the rights, liabilities and
obligations set out in this Agreement.

2.2 Initial Breaches of this Agreement and Remediation

2.21

222

223

224

225

226

44267940.16\gh01

At any time the Chief Executive of any of the Councils (the “First Council”)
may serve a notice on one of the other Councils (the “Other Council”) a
notice (the “Default Notice”), alleging that the Other Council has failed to
comply with its obligations under this Agreement, setting out any suggested
remedial action and any damage which the First Council has or is likely to
suffer as a result of the alleged failure.

A Council in receipt of a Default Notice shall have fifteen (15) Business Days
(or such longer period as agreed between the Councils (acting
reasonably)),within which to serve on the Chief Executive of the First Council
who served the Default Notice a counternotice (the “Counternotice”), setting
out in respect of every matter contained in the Default Notice proposals for
the remediation of the alleged failure including a proposed timescale in
which the remediation will be completed and making good any loss which
the First Council has suffered or may suffer as a result of the failure or the
reasons why that alleged failure is disputed.

Within ten (10) Business Days (or such longer period as agreed between the
Councils (acting reasonably)) of receipt of a Counternotice, the Chief
Executive of the First Council shall send to the Chief Executive of the Other
Council a notice (the “Notice of Acceptance”) of any proposals contained in
the Counternotice in so far as those proposals are accepted by the First
Council, and may send a notice (the “Notice of Dispute”) of any proposals
contained in the Counternotice insofar as those proposals are not accepted
and setting out in respect of each proposal which is not accepted by the First
Council why it is considered to be unacceptable.

Where any proposal in a Counternotice is accepted in a Notice of
Acceptance, the Other Council shall implement that proposal in accordance
with the timescales set out in the Counternotice, and shall be liable for any
additional losses incurred by the First Council in the event that such
proposal(s) are not implemented in accordance with such timescales.

Where any matter is contained in a Notice of Dispute, it shall fall to be dealt
with under the disputes procedure set out in Clause 17 (Dispute Resolution).

Where a breach by a Council is irremediable or a Council continues to
breach its obligations under this Agreement then the other Councils may
consider terminating the participation of that Council in accordance with

Tud'*56
55



Clause 2.3 (Termination of Participation of a Partner Council or Lead Council
for a Material or Irremediable Breaches).

23 Termination of Participation of a Partner Council or Lead Council for Material or
Irremediable Breaches

2.3.1

232

233

234

44267940.16\gh01

Without prejudice to any other rights or remedies, this Agreement may be
terminated in relation to any Council ("Defaulter") by the other Councils
("Non-Defaulting Councils") acting unanimously in giving written notice to
the Defaulter effective on receipt where the Defaulter breaches any of the
provisions of this Agreement, and:-

(a) in the case of a breach capable of remedy fails to remedy the
same within sixty (60) Business Days (or such other period as
agreed by the Councils) of being notified of each breach in writing
by the Non-Defaulting Councils; or

(b) in the case of a material breach which is incapable of remedy, fails
to propose and implement an alternative solution which is
acceptable to the Non-Defaulting Councils within thirty (30)
Business Days (or such other period as agreed by the Councils) of
being notified of each breach in writing by the Non-Defaulting
Councils.

The Councils acknowledge that a decision to terminate the participation of a
Council shall be treated as a Matter Reserved To The Councils.

If this Agreement is terminated in respect of a Council in accordance with
this Clause 2 (Commencement, Duration and Termination) or a Council
withdraws pursuant to Clause 16 (Withdrawal), save for the obligations set
out in this Clause 2 (Commencement, Duration and Termination), Clause 11
(Sites and Decommissioning), Clause 14 (Intellectual Property), Clause 15
Liability of the Councils), Clause 17 (Dispute Resolution), Clause 19
Freedom of Information and Environmental Information), Clause 23
Councils' Obligations Following Expiry or Earlier Termination), Clause 25
Confidentiality and Announcements), Clause 27 (Notices), Clause 28
(Governing Law) and any other provision which is expressed to survive
termination or withdrawal which is required to give effect to such termination
or withdrawal or the consequence of such termination or withdrawal, that
Council shall be released from their respective obligations described in this
Agreement.

~ o~~~

The Councils acknowledge and agree that:

(a) the Project has been modelled on the basis of participation by the
Councils and that there are considerable economic benefits to be
achieved as a result of such joint working; and

(b) accordingly, in the event that this Agreement is terminated in
relation to any Council pursuant to Clause 2.3.1 (Termination of
Participation of a Partner Council or Lead Council for Material or
Irremediable Breaches) such Defaulter shall be liable to the Non-
Defaulting Council or Councils for their reasonable consequential
loss as set out in a Liability Report issued to the Defaulter within
fiteen (15) Business Days of the notice of termination (such
Liability Report being prepared by the Contract Manager and
provided to all the Councils which shall be discussed and agreed
by the Joint Committee at its next meeting or a specially convened
meeting if the next meeting falls more than two (2) weeks after the
issue of the Liability Report). The Non-Defaulting Councils shall

Tud. 57
56



24

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

have a duty, acting reasonably, to mitigate any losses which they
suffer due to the financial and resource implications set out in the
Liability Report;

(c) where a Defaulter causes the early termination of the Project
Agreement, such Defaulter shall be liable to the other Councils in
accordance with Clause 23 (Councils' Obligations Following Expiry
or Earlier Termination of the Project Agreement) and the Liability
Report shall reflect such additional liabilities;

(d) any failure by the Joint Committee to agree the amounts payable
as set out in the Liability Report shall be referred under Clause 17
(Dispute Resolution) as a dispute for resolution; and

(e) any amounts payable by a Defaulter set out in a Liability Report
shall be paid by the Defaulter within ninety (90) Business Days
following agreement of the Liability Report by the Joint Committee
or determined pursuant to the dispute procedure under Clause 17
(Dispute Resolution) save in respect of any payment due to the
Contractor under the Project Agreement, which shall be paid by the
Defaulter no later than ten (10) Business Days before such
payment is due to be paid by the Lead Council to the Contractor.

Effects of Termination of the Lead Council

The Councils acknowledge and agree that if the Lead Council (or any subsequent
Lead Council) is terminated in accordance with the provisions of Clause 2.3
(Termination of Participation of a Partner Council or Lead Council for Material or
Irremediable Breaches), then the Lead Council (or any subsequent Lead Council),
shall, prior to their termination from the Project:-

2.4.1 novate each of the Contract Documents to the new Lead Council as selected
by the remaining Councils; and

24.2 comply with the obligations set out at Clause 11 (Sites and
Decommissioning) if applicable.

PRINCIPLES AND KEY OBJECTIVES
The Councils intend this Agreement to be legally binding.

The Councils agree to work together to carry out the Project Tasks and activities in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Each of the Councils hereby represents to each other Council that it has obtained all
necessary consents sufficient to ensure the delegation of functions provided by this
Agreement for the Project.

The Councils commit to share data and knowledge relevant to the Project where
appropriate and in accordance with their duties under the DPA.

Without prejudice to the terms of this Agreement, the Councils agree that they will
conduct their relationship in accordance with the following principles:-

3.51 Openness and Trust

in relation to this Agreement the Councils will act in accordance with a duty
of good faith to each other, be open and trusting in their dealings with each
other, make information and analysis available to each other, use such
information to support the Project, discuss and develop ideas openly and

16
44267940.16\gh01 TUd . 58

57



3.5.2

3.5.3

3.54

3.55

3.5.6

3.5.7

3.5.8

44267940.16\gh01

contribute fully to all aspects of making the joint working successful. Whilst
respecting the mutual need for commercial confidentiality, the Councils will
willingly embrace a commitment to transparency in their dealings and in
particular a need to comply with statutory access to information
requirements including the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (Sl
2004/3391) and the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and supporting codes
of practice. The Councils will be aware of the need for and respect matters
of commercial confidentiality and potential sensitivity;

Commitment and Drive

the Councils will be fully committed to working jointly, will seek to fully
motivate employees and will address the challenges of the Project with
drive, enthusiasm and a determination to succeed,;

Skills and Creativity

the Councils recognise that each brings complementary skills and
knowledge which they will apply creatively to achieving the Councils'
objectives, continuity, resolution of difficulties and the development of the
joint working relationship and the personnel working within it. It is
recognised that this will involve the appreciation and adoption of common
values;

Effective Relationships

the roles and responsibilities of each Council will be clear with relationships
developed at the appropriate levels within each organisation with direct and
easy access to each other's representatives;

Developing and Adapting

the Councils recognise that they are engaged in what could be a long term
business relationship for mutual benefit through the achievement of the
Project which needs to develop and adapt and each Council will use
reasonable endeavours to develop and maintain an effective joint process to
ensure that the relationship develops appropriately and in line with these
principles and objectives including ensuring that the Lead Council's
obligations within the Project Agreement are met at all times;

Reputation and Standing

the Councils agree that, in relation to this Agreement and the Project
generally, they shall pay the utmost regard to the standing and reputation of
one another and shall not do or fail to do anything which may bring the
standing or reputation of their Council or any other Council into disrepute or
attract adverse publicity to their or any other Council;

Reasonableness of Decision Making

the Councils agree that all decisions made in relation to this Agreement and
the Project generally shall be made by them acting reasonably and in good
faith; and

Members and Officers' Commitments

each Council shall use its reasonable endeavours to procure that their

respective members and officers who are involved in the Project shall at all
times act in the best interests of the Project, devote sufficient resources to

Tud. 59
58



41

4.2

4.3

4.4

the Project and respond in a timely manner to all relevant requests from the
other Councils.

3.5.9 Welsh Language Measure

the Councils agree to cooperate in good faith with each other in the
compliance of their obligations under the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure
2011.

DUTIES OF THE LEAD COUNCIL AND OTHER COUNCILS

Subject to section 101(4) of the Act, the Councils (acting severally) have agreed, with
effect from the Commencement Date, that Flintshire Council will be the Lead Council
for the carrying out of the administrative and representative functions required in
respect of the Project (following, where relevant, any approvals required in
accordance with this Agreement) (including but not limited to those functions specified
in Schedule 1 (Project Tasks)) (the "Project Tasks") which shall be carried out for and
on behalf of itself and the other Councils and Flintshire Council agrees to act in that
capacity subject to and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

The Councils shall recognise the existence of and comply with the decisions that have
been delegated to the Joint Committee. For the avoidance of doubt the Councils shall
have the right to and shall make individual independent decisions on matters referred
to each of them by the Joint Committee for decision and on matters not delegated or
referred to other entities pursuant to Clause 5 (Decision Making).

The Joint Committee shall decide:
431 the detailed scope and authority of the Lead Council role;

4.3.2 by reference to the Contract Documents the administrative and
representative functions of the Lead Council being:

(a) administrative functions which can be undertaken by the Lead
Council without the need for consultation with the Joint Committee;
and/or

(b) representative functions which will be instructed by the Joint
Committee (whether in accordance with the established standing
orders of the Joint Committee or otherwise) and communicated to
the Contractor by the Lead Council;

4.3.3 consultation and reporting requirements between the Lead Council and the
Joint Committee.

For the avoidance of doubt the Councils have agreed that the role of Lead Council
includes (but is not limited to):-

441 acting on behalf of the Councils in the management and supervision of the
Project;

442 acting under the direction of the Joint Committee provided always that the
Joint Committee cannot direct the Lead Council to act in a manner which
would put it in breach or default of the Contract Documents;

443 acting on behalf of and in the interests of the Partnership;

444 liaising with the Contractor and the Contractor's Representative;

18
44267940.16\gh01 TUd . 60

59



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

445 participating in the Partnership Board (and co-ordination of the ten (10)
Council representatives, being two (2) representatives from each of the
Councils, who are appointed to the Partnership Board for the purposes of
Schedule 18 (Liaison Procedure) of the Project Agreement);

446 acting as the employing or seconder authority for any staff involved in the
administration of the Project who shall report to the Project Board in
accordance with this Agreement (including the Contract Manager);

447 being the point of contact for the purposes of managing the Project;

448 providing such additional administrative resources and office facilities that
may be necessary for the purpose of discharging the Project and holding all
central funds;

449 responsibility for liaison and communication with Welsh Government and co-
ordination of communication and public relations;

4410 responsibility for conducting an internal audit and reporting on its findings to
the Joint Committee;

4.4.11 managing the application of the Annual Budget in respect of the Project and
reporting on expenditure to the Joint Committee; and

4.4.12 having powers to enter into contracts for consultants as required for the
purposes of the Project following prior approval from the Project Board.

If the Lead Council defaults and the Agreement is terminated in respect of it pursuant
to Clause 2.3.1 (Termination of Participation of a Partner Council or Lead Council for
Material or Irremediable Breaches) or the Lead Council withdraws pursuant to
Clause 16 (Withdrawal), then a replacement Lead Council will be appointed by the
Joint Committee and the withdrawing Lead Council or Lead Council as Defaulter (as
the case may be) voting members on the Joint Committee will not have the right to
vote in regard to any such appointment.

The Councils indemnify the Lead Council against any costs not accounted for in the
Annual Budget, including but not limited to any redundancy and/or pension costs. It is
acknowledged that these costs shall be shared between each of the Councils on a
pro-rata basis proportional to the actual tonnage delivered by each Council or as
otherwise agreed by the Joint Committee taking into account any individual liability of
the Councils.

The Councils acknowledge that the Lead Council role in the administration of the
Project Agreement shall be largely discharged by the Contract Manager acting as the
Authority's Representative as defined under the Project Agreement.

The Contract Manager shall:

4.8.1 be employed by or seconded to the Lead Council and report to the Project
Board;

4.8.2 conduct all day to day business for the Project to satisfy the Lead Council's
obligations to the Contractor under the Project Agreement and other
Contract Documents;

4.8.3 potentially have staff reporting to him or her who may be seconded from the
other Councils (not being the Lead Council); and

44267940.16\gh01 TUH 61

60



4.9

4.10

4.1

412

4.13

4.14

4.15

484 notify the Lead Council (without undue delay) of any matter that may
reasonably be expected to have a local and/or political significance to any
Council.

Liability for breach of the Contract Manager's obligations under this Agreement shall
rest with the Lead Council, unless such breach arises as a consequence of the
Contract Manager acting in accordance with an instruction of the Project Board, the
Joint Committee or other Councils (in response to a Matter Reserved to the Councils).

The Councils acknowledge and agree that under the terms of the Project Agreement
there is an obligation on the Lead Council from the Readiness Date to deliver to the
Contractor Contract Waste which has been collected by it and the other Councils. The
Councils further acknowledge that there will be a commitment to make payments for
not less than the Minimum Tonnage of Contract Waste to the Contractor per year.
Accordingly, if any Council fails to deliver its Minimum Tonnage guarantee of Contract
Waste in any Contract Year, such Council shall still be liable for its Minimum Payment
as calculated in accordance with paragraph 13.1, 13.2, 13.3, 13.4 and 13.5
respectively of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions) to the extent caused by its failure to
deliver its share of Contract Waste.

The Councils further acknowledge that in each Contract Year, the Lead Council shall
have the right to deliver or procure the delivery of, up to a maximum of five thousand
(5,000) tonnes of Pre-Treated Waste. Accordingly, each of the Councils' entitlement to
deliver a share of the five thousand (5,000) tonnes of Pre-Treated Waste shall be on a
pro-rata basis, in respect of the tonnage delivered by each Council in accordance with
the percentage split identified in Appendix B of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions) per
Contract Year. Pursuant to the terms of the Project Agreement, any Pre-Treated
Waste that is delivered to the Contractor in excess of five thousand (5,000) tonnes in a
Contract Year may be rejected by the Contractor.

The Councils agree and undertake to commit to the Project in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement and not to commission and/or undertake any procurement
and/or project that seeks or would procure the delivery of all or any part of the Project
outside the terms of this Agreement (including (without limitation) wilfully diverting
Contract Waste away from the Project) unless and until it shall have withdrawn from
the Project in accordance with Clause 16 (Withdrawal). The Councils acknowledge
that their commitment to a Minimum Tonnage guarantee for residual waste remains
whether they consider alternative waste collection or recycling programmes and that
pursuant to Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions) they shall be collectively liable to the
Contractor for the Minimum Tonnage guarantee payments.

Each Council warrants to the other Councils that it shall observe and comply with the
terms of each of the Contract Documents and this Agreement (and shall not by way of
any act or omission cause the Lead Council to breach the terms of any Contract
Document) and shall, subject to the remaining provisions of this Agreement, indemnify
the other Councils in respect of any loss, damage or expense caused as a result of its
causing a breach of any of the Contract Documents and this Agreement.

Each Council shall co-operate with the other Councils in good faith in order to facilitate
the performance of their respective obligations under the Contract Documents and to
avoid and/or mitigate any additional costs, expenses, delays or disruption to the
Project provided that (subject to the specific obligations within this Agreement) no
Council shall be under any duty to fulfil obligations which are the responsibility of any
other Council.

Each Council acknowledges that it shall not exercise or waive any right under any of
the Contract Documents where such exercise or waiver has not first been approved in
accordance with this Agreement.

0
44267940.16\gh01 -I-Ud2 62

61



4.16

417

4.18

Each Council in entering into and/or approving the entry into of the Contract
Documents shall be deemed to have satisfied itself of all relevant matters and shall
not rely on any representations made by any other Council in respect of the Contract
Documents.

For the duration of this Agreement, the Lead Council shall act as the primary interface
with the Contractor, Welsh Government and any other body necessary to carry out the
Project Tasks in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

For the duration of this Agreement, the Lead Council shall act diligently and in good
faith in all its dealings with the Contractor and the other Councils and it shall use all
reasonable endeavours to carry out the Project Tasks in accordance with any Welsh
Government guidance and any other applicable legislation.

DECISION MAKING

In terms of the need for decisions and other actions to be taken and carried out for the
Project Tasks, the Councils have identified the following four (4) categories together
with the means by which they will be taken and in each case, the Councils
acknowledge that the responsibility for decision making in respect of certain Project
Tasks is identified in Schedule 1 (Project Tasks):-

5.1.1 "Contract Manager Matter" — being the day to day management of the
Project (in accordance with the terms of the Project Agreement) pursuant to
Clause 4.8 (Duties of Lead Council and Other Councils) but shall not include
any decision which could reasonably be expected to have local and/or
political significance to any of the Councils and/or in respect of any decision
to which Clauses 5.1.2, 5.1.3 or 5.1.4 apply, in which case the decision shall
be elevated to the Project Board, provided always that the Contract Manager
may refer any matter to the Project Board if he/she so decides;

51.2 "Project Board Matter" - being a matter which is to be decided upon
(pursuant to Clause 8 (Project Board), Schedule 3 (Project Board Terms of
Reference)) or be a matter referred to the Project Board by the Contract
Manager at a quorate meeting of the Project Board by those present and
entitled to vote. Any decision made by the Project Board in relation to a
Project Board Matter shall be binding on all of the Councils. Any decision to
be made on a matter to which Clauses 5.1.3 or 5.1.4 apply shall be elevated
to the Joint Committee, provided always that the Project Board can refer any
matter to the Joint Committee if they so decide;

51.3 "Joint Committee Matter" — being a matter which is to be decided upon at a
quorate meeting of the Joint Committee by those present and entitled
pursuant to Clause 6 (Joint Committee), Schedule 2 (Joint Committee Terms
of Reference) to vote or be a matter referred to the Joint Committee by the
Project Board. Any decision made by the Joint Committee in relation to a
Joint Committee Matter shall be binding on all of the Councils. Any decision
to be made on a matter to which Clause 5.1.4 applies shall be referred by
the Joint Committee as a Matter Reserved To The Councils. The Joint
Committee may determine that any Joint Committee Matter may be referred
back to each Council for decision as a Matter Reserved To The Councils
and/or make a decision to delegate any matter to the Project Board for
decision; and

5.1.4 "Matter Reserved To The Councils" — being a matter which will have to be
referred to each Council for decision (at a meeting of either the relevant
cabinet or full Council at the discretion of each Council) which shall include
(but not be limited to) any decision which has (or is reasonably expected to
have) an annual financial impact on the Project above the Annual Budget
and, for the avoidance of doubt, any such matter will not be dealt with by the

44267940.16\gh01 TUH . 63

62



5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Project Board or the Joint Committee (as the case may be) until the matter
has been determined by all of the Councils. If the Councils fail to reach the
same decision in respect of such matter then the matter shall be referred
under Clause 17 (Dispute Resolution) as a dispute for resolution.

The Councils agree that in due course, should they elect to set up a joint scrutiny
committee, each Council shall seek the necessary approvals in order to set up such a
committee.

Each Council acknowledges and agrees that the Lead Council shall have the power
and the entitlement to require a decision that in its opinion (acting reasonably) shall
either:

5.3.1 mean a substantive change to the size or nature of the Facility; or
5.3.2 mean a substantive change to the size or nature of the Project,

to be referred as a Matter Reserved To The Councils and such decision shall not be
implemented unless approved by all of the Councils.

JOINT COMMITTEE

The Councils shall form the joint committee ("Joint Committee"), which shall, for the
avoidance of doubt, supersede and replace the "Joint Committee" formed pursuant to
the First Inter-Authority Agreement to carry out the functions set out in Schedule 2
(Joint Committee Terms of Reference).

The Joint Committee shall not have power to approve any Matter Reserved To The
Councils pursuant to Clause 5.1.4 (Decision Making).

At meetings of the Joint Committee each elected member from each Council shall
have one vote. Subject to the Lead Council's right to refer a decision pursuant to
Clause 5.3 as a Matter Reserved To The Councils, decisions at meetings of the Joint
Committee will be taken by a majority vote.

If, at a meeting of the Joint Committee, a matter is not determined by a majority vote
pursuant to Clause 6.3, that matter ("JC Unresolved Matter") shall be deferred for
consideration at the next Joint Committee Meeting which shall be convened within
ten (10) Business Days of that meeting. If at the reconvened Joint Committee Meeting
the JC Unresolved Matter is not determined by a majority vote, the Chair shall have a
casting vote in respect of that JC Unresolved Matter.

Without prejudice to Clause 6.4, if one Council requests that a decision of the Joint
Committee be deferred, the Chair shall defer such decision until the next Joint
Committee Meeting which shall be convened within the next ten (10) Business Days of
that meeting.

Each Council shall provide all relevant information reasonably required upon request
by the Joint Committee and shall comply with any decisions of the Joint Committee to
request such information.

Each Council shall consult with the other Councils to ensure the diligent progress of
the day to day matters relating to any Joint Committee Matters.

The administrative costs and expenses of the Joint Committee incurred in accordance
with the Annual Budget for setting up and conducting meetings of the Joint Committee
shall be reimbursed by the Councils and arrangements for such reimbursement shall
be agreed between the Councils and reviewed each year when the draft Annual
Budget is prepared by the Project Board, considered by the Joint Committee and
approved by the Councils.

2
44267940.16\gh01 -I-Ud2 64

63



6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

The costs and expenses of the Joint Committee for the Contract Year 2016-2017
(which will precede the preparation of the first Annual Budget and be a transitional
Contract Year) are as set out in Appendix 4 (Annual Budget 2016- 2017).

When acting as a member of a Joint Committee, the members shall be deemed to be
working on behalf of their own Council even where the particular matter under
consideration relates to or also relates to one of the other Councils.

When working on behalf of the Project, officers shall be deemed to be working on
behalf of all their employing Councils, and made available and working on behalf of
the other Councils under section 113 of the Act.

In consequence of the above, both members and officers shall be treated as falling
within the statutory immunity provided by section 265 of the Public Health Act 1875, as
amended, in respect of the Project.

None of the Councils shall have any liability to the other Councils in respect of any
loss which those other Councils may suffer as a consequence of any action or
omission by any officer whilst working on the Project on behalf of the Joint Committee.

The Lead Council will provide clerical support for the Joint Committee including
convening meetings and maintaining minutes.

Constitutional arrangements for the Joint Committee are set out in Part 2 of Schedule
2 (Joint Committee Terms of Reference).

The Joint Committee shall delegate such operational functions to the Project Board as
specified in Schedule 1 (Project Tasks) which may in turn delegate appropriate
matters to the Contract Manager, as provided for in Clause 5 (Decision Making).

ANNUAL BUDGET

The Joint Committee shall by not later than September in each Contract Year consider
and recommend a draft Annual Budget prepared by the Project Board for the following
Contract Year which, in its opinion and based on the preceding Contract Year’s actual
spend and the Performance and Improvement Plan prepared pursuant to Clause 10.1
(Performance and Improvement Plan), it reasonably requires to achieve its objectives
in relation to the Project and to secure the funding requirement for the Lead Council to
fulfil its obligations under this Agreement on behalf of the Councils. For the avoidance
of doubt the Joint Committee has no budget setting or managing responsibility and the
approval of the Annual Budget (as part of the Councils' wider budget setting
procedure) is a Matter Reserved To The Councils.

The draft Annual Budget shall contain draft estimates of revenue income and
expenditure of the Joint Committee for or in relation to the discharge of the Joint
Committee's agreed functions. The estimates shall include details as to how the
expenditure is to be financed including a breakdown of the contributions required from
each Council.

During the Non Service Period, the Councils agree that each Council shall contribute
towards the Annual Budget on an equal basis in accordance with Part A (Non Service
Period Cost Allocation) of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions). From the first
Accounting Period in the Services Period until expiry or termination of this Agreement,
the Councils shall contribute towards the Annual Budget on a pro rata basis in respect
of the tonnage delivered by each Council in accordance with Appendix B of Schedule
8 (Payment Proportions).

Each of the Councils shall irrevocably make available to the Lead Council their share
of the agreed Annual Budget. The Annual Budget (including any contingency sum)
shall not be exceeded without the prior approval of the Councils.

44267940.16\gh01 TUH 65

64



7.5 The Lead Council shall be the accountable body for the Annual Budget and shall,
pursuant to Clauses 13.1 to 13.5 (Accounts), prepare and keep accounts and shall
make all accounts records and other documents available for inspection by any
Council on request. The Joint Committee role is to oversee and procure the monitoring
of the Annual Budget for the purposes of Councils' scrutiny.

7.6 The Lead Council shall within twenty-eight (28) days of the conclusion of an
Accounting Period prepare and serve on each Council a schedule of payments
itemised by reference to the heads of expenditure set out in Schedule 5 (Annual
Budget) and certified by the Lead Finance Officer as being in respect of that Council’s
proportion of the costs which have been properly incurred in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement for that Accounting Period. Such schedule of payments shall
be payable by the Councils within thirty-five (35) days.

7.7 The costs associated with providing internal resources in relation to the Project Tasks
shall (if not included within the Annual Budget and shared between the Councils),
subject to Clause 7.9, be borne by the Council providing that internal resource unless
such costs have received prior written approval from the Contract Manager (subject to
where such additional costs and/or external costs exceed or are anticipated to exceed
an aggregate total of five thousand pounds (£5,000) (indexed) in value in any single
Contract Year they shall require the Contract Manager to secure prior written approval
from the Project Board) and that such sums fall within the Project spend profile agreed
by the Councils set out at Schedule 5 (Annual Budget). Any additional costs and
external costs sought from Project funds which are not included in the spend profile at
Schedule 5 (Annual Budget) will be dealt with pursuant to Clause 7.8 below.

7.8 The Councils hereby agree that:-

7.81 if one of the Councils wishes to carry out any work or incur any cost or
expenses in relation to the Project exceeding an aggregate total of one
thousand pounds (£1,000) (indexed) in any single Contract Year or requests
the Joint Committee, the Project Board or any member or officer appointed
to or engaged to support the Project to carry out any work or to incur any
cost or expense that is not envisaged by the spend profile set out at
Schedule 5 (Annual Budget) then such Council shall seek the prior written
approval of the Contract Manager to approve it and allocate Project funding
else it shall have to bear the cost itself; and

7.8.2 if one of the Councils carries out any work or incurs any cost or expenses or
requests the Joint Committee, the Project Board or any member or officer
appointed to or engaged to support the Project to carry out any work or to
incur any cost or expense in relation to the Project that is not envisaged by
the Contract Manager to be an efficient use of time and/or resources, that
matter shall, at the discretion of the Contract Manager or at the request of
the relevant Council, be referred to the Project Board for a decision as to
whether such work, cost or expense is part of the Project or whether such
work, cost or expense should be the entire responsibility of the Council so
carrying it out or requesting it (as the case may be),

subject to such approval or decision not being unreasonably withheld or delayed by
the Contract Manager and/or the Project Board and in the case of dispute Clause 17
(Dispute Resolution) shall apply.

7.9 The Councils hereby agree that if one of the Councils believes it is likely to incur
disproportionate internal resource costs in relation to the Project (compared to the
Project spend profile set out at Schedule 5 (Annual Budget)) pursuant to Clause 7.7
that matter shall be referred to the Project Board for a decision as to whether such
costs will be disproportionate and whether any contributions should be made to this
cost by the other Councils.

4
44267940.16\gh01 TUdz. 66
65



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

PROJECT BOARD

The Councils shall form the Project Board ("Project Board") for the purpose of the
management of the Project and of the Contract Manager, and the implementation and
monitoring of those Project Tasks specified as being a function of the Project Board, in
each case in accordance with the Project Board's Terms of Reference as set on in
Schedule 3 (Project Board Terms of Reference).

The Project Board shall have the powers to make decisions and recommendations
within its terms of reference as set out in Schedule 3 (Project Board Terms of
Reference) but shall not have power to approve any Joint Committee Matter or any
Matter Reserved To The Councils pursuant to Clause 5 (Decision Making).

Notwithstanding the above, the following specific functions are given to the Project
Board:-

8.3.1 prior approval of all reports for decision by the Joint Committee save if
impractical in the case of a special meeting; and

8.3.2 monitoring of:

(a) the Annual Budget as agreed by the Joint Committee and
approved by the Councils, the results of which shall be reported to
the Joint Committee on an annual basis;

(b) the costs expended against the Annual Budget to ensure that the
Project remains within budget; and

(c) the Unitary Charge payments or other payments to the Contractor
for Services (including the Commissioning Services and the Interim
Services) delivered against the overall forecast Unitary Charge for
each Contract Year.

Each Council shall appoint one senior officer representative (with the necessary
powers to act as required) to the Project Board. The Chair of the Project Board shall
be a director of the Lead Council appointed by the Project Board from time to time.
Each such representative shall have one vote on any matter to be determined by the
Project Board. Decisions at meetings of the Project Board will be taken by a majority
vote.

The quorum necessary for a Project Board Meeting shall be a senior officer
representative of each Council. The Contract Manager, the Lead Finance Officer, the
legal, procurement and technical officers for each Council shall be entitled to attend
the meetings of the Project Board but not vote.

The section 151 officer and/or the monitoring officer for each Council shall be entitled
to attend and participate in Project Board Meetings in a non-voting capacity unless
appointed as the senior officer representative in accordance with Clause 8.4 above.

If, at a meeting of the Project Board, a matter is not determined by a majority vote
pursuant to Clause 8.4, such matter ("PB Unresolved Matter") shall be deferred for
consideration at the next Project Board Meeting which shall be convened within ten
(10) Business Days of that meeting. If at the reconvened Project Board Meeting the
PB Unresolved Matter is not determined by a majority vote, subject to the Lead
Council's right to refer a decision pursuant to Clause 5.3 (Decision Making) as a
Matter Reserved To The Councils, that matter shall be referred for a decision by the
Joint Committee.

The Councils may, at their discretion, replace their representatives appointed to the
Project Board provided that such replacement shall be on the same basis as the

44267940.16\gh01 TUH 67

66



8.9

8.10

8.11

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

10.

10.1

10.2

original appointed and provided further that no senior technical officer of the Project
Board shall be removed or replaced by any Council without that Council giving prior
written notice as soon as reasonably practicable of its intention to remove or replace
that representative.

Each Council shall also appoint one (1) substitute representative in the event that
appointed representatives to the Project Board are unable or incapable of discharging
their functions.

Each Council's substitute representative shall be entitled to attend meetings of the
Project Board but shall only be entitled to vote in the absence of his or her
corresponding voting representative.

The Project Board shall meet as and when required in accordance with the timetable
for the Project.

PROJECT OFFICERS

The Joint Committee shall determine from time to time the necessity of the officers set
out below (the "Project Officers") for the purposes of the Project:

9.1.1 the Contract Manager; and

9.1.2 such further officers (including but not limited to financial advisors, legal
advisors and technical advisors) acting under the direction of the Contract
Manager in his responsibilities in respect of the Project (insofar as the costs
of such officers have been identified within the Annual Budget or otherwise
provided for by one (1) or more of the Councils).

The Councils shall make their officers available as reasonably necessary for the
purpose of the Project.

As and when requested by the Joint Committee, the Lead Council shall appoint the
Project Officers (advised by the head of human resources or equivalent officer of the
Lead Council) and shall act within the employment procedure rules and policies of the
Lead Council.

Project Officers may be:

9.4.1 appointed specifically and exclusively for the purpose of the Project to the
employment of the Lead Council, on terms and for such duration as may be
appropriate to that purpose, and the Lead Council shall make them available
full-time or part-time for the performance of their functions under this
Agreement; or

94.2 seconded by one or more of the Councils for the purpose of the Project to
the Lead Council on terms and for such duration as may be appropriate to
that purpose, and the relevant Council shall make them available full-time or
part-time for the performance of their functions under this Agreement.

PERFORMANCE AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN

The Contract Manager shall continually monitor all aspects of the Project's
performance and prepare the Performance and Improvement Plan for approval by the
Joint Committee.

No later than 30 June in any Contract Year, the Contract Manager shall present to the
Joint Committee a draft Performance and Improvement Plan for the following Contract
Year, including any resource requirements for the Project along with the draft Annual
Budget submitted in accordance with Clause 7.1 (Annual Budget) to the Project Board

6
44267940.16\gh01 -I-Ud2 68

67



to enable the Project Board to be made aware of any significant changes (including
the required consideration and review of the rail option) which they may refer for
approval and recommendation to the Joint Committee including any anticipated
Authority Changes under the Project Agreement.

10.3 The Performance and Improvement Plan for the Project, as amended where
necessary and as approved by the Joint Committee, shall form:

10.3.1  the basis of the Joint Committee’s request to each Council for future
budgetary provision and for resources pursuant to Clause 7.1 (Annual
Budget); and

10.3.2 aninstruction from the Joint Committee to the Project Board.
10A  AIR QUALITY MONITORING

The Councils agree that there will be monthly (pm 2.5) air quality monitoring undertaken
for the Contract Period. The costs associated with such additional monitoring will be
shared by the Councils in accordance with paragraph 20 (PM2.5 Costs) of Schedule 8
(Payment Proportions). Any variation to this shall be approved by all the Councils as a
Matter Reserved to the Councils.

10B INTERIM SERVICES

10B.1 The Councils acknowledge that pursuant to Clause 21B (Interim Services) of the Project
Agreement, the Contractor is obliged to provide the Interim Services throughout the
Interim Services Period.

10B.2 The Councils agree that on or before the date which falls eighteen (18) Months prior to
the Planned Readiness Date, they shall determine the following:-

10B.2.1 if they wish all or part of the Interim Services to be provided or procured by
the Contractor;

10B.2.2 the extent of the Interim Services that they wish to be so provided or
procured and any performance standards that they believe should be
implemented;

10B.2.3 the date on which such Interim Services are to commence; and

10B.2.4 if they wish the provision or procurement of the Interim Services to continue
until the earlier to occur of the Termination Date and the Readiness Date.

10B.3 Each Council shall be responsible for payment of their proportion of the Interim
Services Payment in accordance with paragraph 3 of Schedule 8 (Payment
Proportions).

10C MID-TERM REVIEW

10C.1 The Councils agree that a mid-term review of the Project shall take place no later than
fifteen (15) years following Service Commencement. The Councils shall conduct the
mid-term review to determine and reach agreement in respect of the following:-

10C.1.1 the operational life of the Facility and whether to extend the Expiry Date by a
period of up to five (5) years as per Clause 23.1, 23.2 and 23.3 (Extension);

10C.1.2 how to manage and distribute any residual value of the Facility upon expiry
or early termination of the Project (for the avoidance of doubt, excluding the
value of the Site, which shall be retained by Flintshire Council in accordance
with Clause 11 (Sites and Decommissioning)); and

44267940.16\gh01 Tudl. 69
68



11.

10C.1.3 arrangements that are appropriate in respect of the continuing operation or
otherwise of the Facility upon expiry or early termination of the Project, in
accordance with Clause 23.4 (After Project Agreement Expiry or Earlier
Termination) and Clause 11.3 (Arrangements on Expiry or Early
Termination).

SITES AND DECOMMISSIONING
Arrangements on Expiry or Early Termination

Subject to Clause 11.3, the Councils acknowledge that, upon the expiry or termination
of the Project Agreement the Site shall be retained by Flintshire Council.

In the event that Flintshire Council (or a subsequent Lead Council following the earlier
operation of this Clause) is terminated or withdraws from the Project (pursuant to
Clause 2.3 (Termination of Participation of a Partner Council or Lead Council for
Material or Irremediable Breaches) or Clause 16 (Withdrawal) of this Agreement) then
the Site will transfer to the new Lead Council for the duration of the Project and upon
expiry of the Project, the then Lead Council shall ensure that the Site is transferred
back to Flintshire Council (in each case in accordance with Clauses 11.3 and 11.4).

The Councils acknowledge that on early termination of the Project Agreement, they
shall, prior to the termination of this Agreement, seek to agree such arrangements as
are appropriate in respect of the continuing operation or otherwise of the Facility. The
Councils agree that if an early termination of the Project Agreement occurs after the
Readiness Date, then the Councils will agree such alternative contractual
arrangements (at all times having regard to the circumstances of the termination) so
as to enable the continued operation of the Facility for the remainder of the twenty-five
(25) years, as if the Project Agreement had not terminated. If, however, early
termination of the Project Agreement occurs prior to the Readiness Date, then the
Councils shall agree alternative arrangements in respect of the Site and the Councils
shall be equally liable for any associated costs. If the Councils fail to agree upon any
alternative arrangements within sixty (60) Business Days (or such longer period as
agreed by the Councils (acting reasonably)) following the early termination of the
Project Agreement, then the Site shall be decommissioned in accordance with Clause
11.6 (Decommissioning).

Transfer to New Lead Council

11.4.1  The Councils shall, where the current Lead Council is a Defaulter pursuant
to Clause 2.3 (Termination of Participation of a Partner Council or Lead
Council for Material or Irremediable Breaches) or has given notice to
withdraw pursuant to Clause 16 (Withdrawal), nominate one of the remaining
Councils to take on the role as the new Lead Council for the purposes of the
Project in the event that the current Lead Council is terminated or withdraws.
Upon such termination or withdrawal, the new Lead Council will take a
transfer of the Site from the current Lead Council and shall notify Flintshire
Council in writing of the identity of such nominee.

11.4.2 In accordance with Clause 11.4.1

(a) the current Lead Council and the new Lead Council shall enter into
Transfer 1; and

(b) the new Lead Council shall enter into a deed of covenant in
substantially the same form as that attached to this Agreement at
Appendix 3 (Deed of Covenant).

11.4.3 Following completion of Transfer 1, the new Lead Council shall:

8
44267940.16\gh01 -I-Ud2 70

69



(a) apply to register Transfer 1 at the Land Registry without delay;

(b) deal with any requisitions raised by the Land Registry promptly and
properly; and

(c) send Flintshire Council official copies of the title within five (5)
Business Days of completion and registration.

11.4.4 The current Lead Council shall use reasonable endeavours to assist the new
Lead Council in complying with the obligations set out in this Clause 11.4.

11.5 Transfer to Flintshire Council

In the event that Transfer 1 has been completed during the Contract Period, the
following provisions shall apply on the Expiry Date:

11.5.1 on that date which is five (5) Business Days after the Expiry Date:

(a) the Lead Council and Flintshire Council shall enter into Transfer 2;
and
(b) Flintshire Council shall enter into a deed of covenant in

substantially the same form as that attached to this Agreement at
Appendix 3 (Deed of Covenant).

11.5.2  Following completion of Transfer 2, Flintshire Council shall:
(a) apply to register Transfer 2 at the Land Registry without delay;

(b) deal with any requisitions raised by the Land Registry promptly and
properly; and

(c) send the Lead Council official copies of the title within five (5)
Business Days of completion of the registration.

11.5.3 The Lead Council shall use reasonable endeavours to assist Flintshire
Council in complying with the obligations set out in Clause 11.5 above.

11.6 Decommissioning

Where the Facility is to be decommissioned following termination or expiry of the
Project Agreement, the Lead Council shall enter into appropriate arrangements in
respect of such decommissioning and the costs of such decommissioning will be split
equally between the Councils, unless Flintshire Council (in its absolute discretion but
subject to any planning permission restrictions) elects in writing no later than twelve
(12) months prior to expiry and in respect of an early termination as soon as
reasonably practicable, not to undertake decommissioning at the time of expiry or
early termination of the Project, in which case Flintshire Council shall be solely liable
for any future decommissioning costs.

11.7 New Waste Transfer Station

The Councils acknowledge and agree that a new waste transfer station (the "WTS") is
intended to be built by or on behalf of Conwy Council for the purposes of providing
Conwy Council and Denbighshire Council with a new facility for the bulking of Contract
Waste prior to its onward transport to the Facility. The Councils agree that the capital
costs incurred in relation to the site acquisition (if not already owned by Conwy
Council) and construction of such WTS (including all such necessary ancillary works
and associated costs) shall be funded by the Councils on an equal basis up to a cap
of two million, five hundred thousand pounds (£2,500,000). If the new WTS is built on

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 71
70



12.

12.1

12.2

12.2A

12.3

12.4

a site that is owned by Conwy Council, then, subject to Clause 11.3, upon expiry or
early termination of the Project the WTS shall be retained by Conwy Council. If,
however, the Partnership jointly fund and provide a site for the new WTS, then upon
expiry or early termination of the Project the Councils agree to discuss and seek to
determine appropriate arrangements in respect of the continued use or disposal of the
WTS. For the avoidance of doubt it is acknowledged and agreed by the Councils that
the ongoing operational costs associated with the new WTS are outside the scope of
this Agreement.

Title Matters

The Councils acknowledge that any title matters that arise during the Contract Period
in respect of the Site shall be the shared responsibility of each of the Councils and to
the extent that the Lead Council is liable for any costs in respect of any such title
matters, then these costs shall be shared between each of the Councils on a pro-rata
basis proportional to the actual tonnage delivered by each Council.

Planning Permission

The Councils acknowledge that to the extent that the Lead Council is liable pursuant
to the terms of the Project Agreement for any costs associated with obtaining any
required planning permission and/or consents in respect of the Site, then these costs
shall be shared equally between each of the Councils, to the extent that such costs
arise during the Non-Service Period. Any such costs that arise during the Service
Period shall be apportioned between the Councils on a pro rata basis in respect of the
tonnage delivered by each Council in accordance with Appendix B of Schedule 8
(Payment Proportions).

PAYMENTS

Incoming payment to the Lead Council of Welsh Government Funding and other
sums

Any Welsh Government Funding to the Councils in respect of the Project shall be paid
to the Lead Council and each of the Councils' entitlement shall be on a pro rata basis
in proportion to the tonnage delivered by each of the Councils in accordance with
Appendix B of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions), the Lead Council making such
payments to the other Councils in accordance with the timeframe indicated at
Appendix E of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions). In the event that the Lead Council
fails to pay a Council within the period referred to above the Lead Council shall be
liable to pay interest to the relevant Council at the Default Interest Rate, calculated
from the due date for payment until (but excluding) the actual date of payment.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Welsh Government Funding shall include provision for
Council costs in respect of the management of Contract Waste prior to its haulage and
Treatment (i.e. the costs of operating the relevant waste transfer stations).

The Councils acknowledge the conditions of the Welsh Government Funding as set
out at Appendix 5 (Welsh Government Funding Conditions).

Invoices from Contractor

The Councils acknowledge that the Lead Council's ability to agree and make
payments to the Contractor is governed by the terms of the Project Agreement
(specifically the Payment Mechanism).

The Councils acknowledge that Clause 45 (Payment and Invoicing) of the Project
Agreement governs the process by which the Contractor invoices the Lead Council in
respect of payments due under the Project Agreement and that, for the purposes of
Clause 45 (Payment and Invoicing) of the Project Agreement, Flintshire Council (as

0
44267940.16\gh01 -I-Ud3 72

71



12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

12.11

12.12

12.13

Lead Council) will be responsible for making payment to the Contractor following
receipt of such invoices.

On a monthly basis the Contract Manager (on behalf of the Lead Council) shall be
responsible for taking decisions as to the appropriateness of any adjustments or
Deductions (and contract default points or other remedies of the Lead Council) to be
applied and made to the Contractor's invoice to the Lead Council due to poor
performance or non-performance.

Each Council shall pay its proportion of the payment that is owed to the Contractor
(each a "Payment Proportion") in accordance with paragraph 27 (Payments to the
Lead Council) of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions).

In the event that a Council fails to pay its Payment Proportion to the Lead Council
within the period specified in paragraph 27 of Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions), that
Council shall be liable to pay interest to the Lead Council at the Default Interest Rate,
calculated from the due date until (but excluding) the actual date of payment.

The Councils shall ensure that there are always cleared funds paid in accordance with
their respective share of contributions calculated in accordance with Schedule 8
(Payment Proportions) such that, subject to each Council fulfilling its payment
obligations, the Lead Council shall always be capable of meeting its payment
obligations to the Contractor. The Councils shall not withhold payment of any intra-
Councils sum due to the Lead Council which may be due to intra-Council disputes.

The Councils shall procure that, as regards this Project, the Lead Council is to remain
cost and cash neutral for the planned term of the Project only insofar as the Lead
Council satisfies its Payment Proportion and the payment obligations of the other
Councils are set out in the Annual Budget.

The Councils agree that Flintshire Council as Lead Council shall (with the agreement
of the Partner Councils) be entitled to withhold payment of any disputed amounts as
between the Lead Council and the Contractor in accordance with Clause 45 (Payment
and Invoicing) of the Project Agreement but that the Lead Council shall not be entitled
to withhold payment on the basis of a dispute solely between the Councils (any such
dispute to be resolved in accordance with the provisions of Clause 17 (Dispute
Resolution)).

Flintshire Council as Lead Council shall not agree to set-off any amounts owed by the
Contractor to the Lead Council in accordance with Clause 46 (Set-Off) of the Project
Agreement without the agreement of the Partner Councils (such agreement to include
an agreement as to how each Council's respective Payment Proportion shall be
amended as a result of such set-off).

Subject to Clause 12.13 the Councils shall review their Payment Proportions for the
items set out in paragraph 27 (Payments to Lead Council) of Schedule 8 (Payment
Proportions) (using fair and objective criteria supplied by the Project Board and
recognising the principle of mutual benefit) on 30 September following the Services
Commencement Date and at one (1) yearly intervals thereafter (or such other period
as is agreed by the Councils) and shall agree any necessary amendments to this
Clause 12. In default of such agreement, no amendment shall be made.

The Lead Council shall (following agreement by the Project Board and notification to
the Joint Committee) be authorised to make adjustments, reconciliations or payments
to recompense for significant anomalies in the mutual benefit of the Project between
the Councils (and for the avoidance of doubt where an anomaly between the Councils'
modelled contributions exceeds fifty thousand pounds (£50,000) (indexed) per
Accounting Period it shall be construed as significant).

Payments from Contractor

44267940.16\gh01 TUﬂ . 73

72



12.14

12.15

12.16

12.17

12.18

12.19

12.20

Any payments to be made by the Contractor to the Lead Council in accordance with
the terms of the Project Agreement (whether via an indemnity or through the
imposition of Deductions or sanctions whose effects as between the Councils are set
out in paragraph 20 of Part B (Service Period Cost Allocation) of Schedule 8 (Payment
Proportions) or otherwise) shall be apportioned between the relevant Councils on a
pro-rata basis in respect of the actual tonnage delivered by each Council unless such
payment (or a part of such payment) relates specifically to a loss incurred by an
individual Council (or Councils), in which case the relevant Council(s) shall be entitled
to such payment (or relevant part of such payment).

The Lead Council shall, where payments apportioned to a Council pursuant to Clause
12.14 exceed fifty thousand pounds (£50,000) (indexed) at the end of an Accounting
Period, pay the sum of the Deductions to a Council within twenty (20) Business Days,
unless otherwise agreed by the Project Board.

The Councils acknowledge that any residual amounts that have not been paid out to
the relevant Council in accordance with Clause 12.15 above, shall upon expiry or
termination of this Agreement be paid to the relevant Council or where the relevant
Council is terminated or withdraws from this Agreement, then any amounts due shall
be taken into account and set-off against the liabilities of that Council pursuant to the
Liability Report.

Taxation

Each Council shall bear its own liability for any taxation or duty chargeable in the
United Kingdom in respect of its participation in the arrangements under this
Agreement and each Council undertakes to indemnify the other Councils in respect of
any such taxation assessed on and paid by the other in respect of which the former is
primarily liable.

Any supply made by one (1) Council to any other Council pursuant to this Agreement
shall be exclusive of any value added tax chargeable on it, which shall (where
required by law), be paid by the Council to whom the supply is made in addition to the
payment for the supply, subject to the provision to it of a valid value added tax invoice.

All payments to be made by one (1) Council to another Council under this Agreement
shall be made in full without deduction of or withholding for or on account of any
present or future taxes, levies, duties, charges, fees, deductions or withholdings of any
nature unless the Council making the payment is required by law to make any such
deduction or withholding. If such withholding or deduction is so required by law, then
the Council making the payment shall increase the amount of the payment so that the
other Council receives the same amount as it would have received in the absence of
the requirement to make the withholding or deduction, and the Council making the
payment shall give to the other Council an appropriate certificate as may be required
by law showing the amount.

If the Council receiving the payment subsequently obtains relief or credit in respect of
the withholding or deduction, then it shall promptly repay to the Council which made
the payment an amount equal to the credit or relief obtained up to a maximum of the
amount by which the payment was increased to take account of the withholding or
deduction. The Councils shall co-operate with a view to allowing each Council to
obtain any available relief or credit in respect of any such withholding or deduction in
respect of taxation and in particular but without prejudice to the foregoing generality
shall give any information reasonably required by the other Council in connection with
the making of a claim for relief under an applicable double taxation treaty.

Set-Off

2
44267940.16\gh01 -I-Ud3 74

73



12.21

12.22

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

The Lead Council may retain or set-off any amount owed to it by a Partner Council
under this Agreement which has fallen due and payable against any amount due to
the respective Partner Council under this Agreement.

Community Benefit Fund

[The Councils acknowledge that pursuant to the Project Agreement, the Lead Council
has an obligation to contribute one hundred and eighty thousand pounds (£180,000)
per Contract Year, towards the Community Benefit Fund by way of a payment into the
CBF Account. The Councils shall be responsible for payment of their proportion in
accordance with paragraph 21 (Community Benefit Fund) of Schedule 8 (Payment
Proportions).]

ACCOUNTS
Accounts to reconcile Annual Budget

Clauses 13.2 to 13.5 shall only apply to Conwy Council, Denbighshire Council,
Gwynedd Council and Isle of Anglesey Council, and only where Clause 7.8 applies.

Each Council shall be required to prepare accounts including (reporting by exception)
details of any expenditure incurred pursuant to Schedule 5 (Annual Budget) (the "AB
Accounts") in respect of each Accounting Period and for such further and/or other
accounting periods as the Project Board shall determine and which shall be
incorporated into Schedule 6 (Accounting Periods).

Each Council shall:-

13.3.1  in the AB Accounts make true and complete entries of all relevant payments
and receipts made by it during the previous Accounting Period;

13.3.2  within ten (10) Business Days of the end of the Accounting Period, provide
to the Lead Council unaudited AB Accounts for such Accounting Period
together with certification that such AB Accounts comply with this Clause
13.3;

13.3.3 nominate an individual to be responsible for ensuring that Council's own
compliance with this Clause 13 and the name, address and telephone
number of each individual nominated pursuant to this Clause 13.3 shall be
notified to the other Councils in accordance with Clause 27 (Notices); and

13.3.4 acknowledge that the Lead Council shall within ten (10) Business Days of
receipt of the AB Accounts submitted by each of the Councils, in accordance
with Clause 13.3.2 prepare a reconciliation statement identifying the
payments made by each Council and the balance due from or owing to each
Council.

The Lead Council shall within twenty (20) Business Days of the preparation of the
reconciliation statement send out a copy of the reconciliation statement together with
either a balancing schedule of payments or credit payment to each Council. A Council
receiving a schedule of payments for payment shall pay it in full within twenty (20)
Business Days. Any error in a balancing schedule of payments must be notified to the
Lead Council within five (5) Business Days of such balancing schedule of payments
being sent out. An amended balancing schedule of payments will be issued by the
Lead Council and the Council receiving such schedule of payments shall pay it in full
within twenty (20) Business Days.

If an individual nominated by a Council pursuant to Clause 13.3.3 changes, that
Council shall notify the other Councils forthwith of the replacement nominees.

44267940.16\gh01 TUH 75

74



13.6

13.7

13.8

14.

141

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

15.

15.1

Audits

Subject to ensuring compliance with each Council's audit requirements, the Councils
agree that the auditor for the Lead Council shall carry out the audit of the Project.

The Lead Council shall at all times maintain an up to date register of the assets and
committed liabilities of each of the Councils in relation to the Joint Committee and the
Councils will each advise the Lead Council of any such assets and committed
liabilities.

The books of account for the Joint Committee shall be the subject of the audit
arrangements of the Lead Council and shall be open to inspection by the Councils.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
Each Council will retain all Intellectual Property in its Material.

Each Council will grant all of the other Councils a non-exclusive, perpetual,
non-transferable and royalty free licence to use, modify, amend and develop its IP
Material for the Project Tasks and any other purpose resulting from the Project Tasks
whether or not the party granting the licence remains a party to this Agreement.

Without prejudice to Clause 14.1, if more than one (1) Council owns or has a legal or
beneficial right or interest in any aspect of the IP Material for any reason (including
without limitation that no one (1) Council can demonstrate that it independently
supplied or created the relevant IP Material without the help of one (1) or more of the
other Councils), each of the Councils who contributed to the relevant IP Material will
grant to all other Councils to this Agreement a non-exclusive, perpetual,
non-transferable and royalty free licence to use and exploit such IP Material as if all
the other Councils were the sole owner under the Copyright Design and Patents Act
1988 or any other relevant statute or rule of law.

For the avoidance of doubt, any entity or person who is at the date of this Agreement
a party to this Agreement and who has licensed any Intellectual Property under this
Agreement will have a non-exclusive, perpetual right to continue to use the licensed
Intellectual Property.

Each Council warrants that it has or will have the necessary rights to grant the
licences set out in Clauses 14.2 and 14.3 in respect of the IP Material to be licensed.

Each Council shall indemnify the other Councils against any loss caused by that
Council arising out of any dispute or proceedings brought by a third party alleging
infringement of its Intellectual Property rights.

Each Council agrees to execute such further documents and take such actions or do
such things as may be reasonably requested by any other Council (and at the
expense of the Council(s) making the request) to give full effect to the terms of this
Agreement concerning management and control of Intellectual Property.

LIABILITY OF THE COUNCILS

The Lead Council shall indemnify and keep fully indemnified each of the other
Councils to this Agreement against any losses, damage, claims, proceedings,
expenses, actions, demands, costs and liabilities suffered by or incurred in respect of
or in connection with:

15.1.1  any damage to property, real or personal; and/or

15.1.2 any injury to, or the death of, any person whomsoever; and/or

4
44267940.16\gh01 TUd% 76

75



15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

15.6

15.7

15.8

15.1.3  any third party actions, claims or demands

to the extent such damage, injury, death, third party actions, claims or demands arise
from any breach by the Lead Council of its obligations under the Contract Documents
or any negligent act, omission or default (including breach of this Agreement) in
relation to such obligations and the Lead Council shall make payment to the other
Councils sums for which it becomes liable under this Clause 15.1 within twenty (20)
Business Days of the date of another Council's written demand unless the Lead
Council was acting in accordance with an instruction of the Project Board, Joint
Committee or other Councils (in response to a Matter Reserved to the Councils).

No claim shall be made against the Lead Council to recover any loss or damage which
may be incurred by reason of or arising out of the carrying out by the Lead Council of
its obligations under this Agreement unless and to the extent such loss or damage
arises from any breach by the Lead Council under Clause 15.1.

Each of the other Councils (acting severally but there shall be no double
indemnification) shall indemnify and keep fully indemnified the Lead Council against
any losses, damage, claims, proceedings, expenses, actions, demands, costs and
liabilities suffered by or incurred in respect of or in connection with:

15.3.1 any damage to property, real or personal; and/or
15.3.2 any injury to, or the death of, any person whomsoever; and/or
15.3.3  any third party actions, claims or demands

if to the extent such damage, injury, death, third party actions, claims or demands
arise from breach of the Contract Documents caused by the indemnifying party or
from negligence or other act, omission or default (including breach of this Agreement)
on the part of the indemnifying party in relation to the Project and each Council shall
make payment to the Lead Council sums for which it becomes liable under this Clause
15.3 within twenty (20) Business Days of the date of the Lead Council's written
demand.

The Councils agree and acknowledge that the amount to be paid to the Lead Council
by any of the other Councils under Clause 15.3 shall be borne by each of the Councils
to the extent of its responsibility, however in the event that the responsibility is a
shared one between the Councils (so that it is not reasonably practicable to ascertain
the exact responsibility between the Councils) then the amount to be paid shall be
divided between the Councils who share such responsibility in such proportions as the
Joint Committee may decide.

In the event of a claim under this Clause 15 in which it is not reasonably practicable to
determine the extent of responsibility as between the Councils (including the Lead
Council), then the amount shall be divided between the Councils (including the Lead
Council) as the Project Board may decide.

A Council (including the Lead Council) who receives a claim for losses, expenses,
actions, demands, costs and liabilities shall notify and provide details of such claim as
soon as is reasonably practicable to the other Councils.

Criminal fines or sanctions of individual Councils incurred through Council activities
which are not in furtherance of the Project shall not be apportioned and the liability
shall remain with the Council responsible for such fine or sanction.

No Council shall be indemnified in accordance with this Clause 15 unless it has given
notice in accordance with Clause 15.6 to the other Council against whom it will be
enforcing its right to an indemnity under this Agreement.

44267940.16\gh01 TUET 77

76



15.9

15.10

15.11

15.12

15.13

16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

Each Council shall not be responsible or be obliged to indemnify the other Councils
(including the Lead Council) to the extent that the indemnified Council recovers the
relevant costs or losses under such policy of insurance (or would have recovered had
it used reasonable endeavours to do so) (save that the indemnifying Council shall be
responsible for the deductible under any such policy of insurance and any amount
over the maximum amount insured under such policy of insurance).

Any liability of the Lead Council to the Contractor in respect of any indemnity or other
provision contained within the Project Agreement (which for the avoidance of doubt
shall include Compensation Events and any other remedy of the Contractor under the
Project Agreement which results in a financial obligation on the Lead Council)
contained within the Project Agreement shall be for the account of the Council in
breach of the indemnity in question (and where such breach has not been caused
wholly by one (1) Council in such proportions as are agreed or determined by the Joint
Committee else in accordance with Clause 17 (Dispute Resolution) to reflect the
respective liability of each Council).

The Lead Council will have regard to the Required Insurances in accordance with the
provisions of the Project Agreement.

The Councils shall ensure that adequate insurance cover is effected and maintained in
respect of any liabilities they may have in the event of any neglect or default on their
part.

The Lead Council acting through the Project Board shall ensure that adequate
insurance cover is effected and maintained in respect of any property and assets held
by them for the purposes of the Joint Committee.

WITHDRAWAL
Termination by a Council is not Withdrawal

For the avoidance of doubt Clause 2.3.1 (Termination of Participation of a Partner
Council or Lead Council for a Material or Irremediable Breaches) addresses early
termination for breach by a Council.

Withdrawal

If for any reason any Council (including the Lead Council) determines to withdraw from
this Agreement then Clauses 16.3 to 16.6 shall apply.

If any Council wishes to withdraw from the Project it shall provide written notice to all
the other Councils as soon as reasonably practicable ("Withdrawal Notice"). The
Lead Council (or such other Council as nominated by the Joint Committee in the event
that the Lead Council issues the Withdrawal Notice) shall within fifteen (15) Business
Days of receipt of the Withdrawal Notice provide to all the Councils a Liability Report
which shall be discussed by the Joint Committee at its next meeting or a specially
convened meeting if the next meeting falls more than two (2) weeks after the issue of
the Liability Report. Those Councils who do not wish to withdraw from the Project shall
have a duty, acting reasonably, to mitigate any losses which they suffer due to the
financial and resource implications set out in the Liability Report. Any failure by the
Joint Committee to agree the amounts payable as set out in the Liability Report shall
be referred under Clause 17 (Dispute Resolution) as a dispute for resolution.

Within the Decision Period the relevant Council shall indicate either:-
16.4.1  that it withdraws from the Project and this Agreement; or

16.4.2 that it wishes to continue with the Project and this Agreement.

6
44267940.16\gh01 -I-Ud3 78

7



16.5

16.6

16.7

16.8

16.9

16.10

17.

171

17.2

Where a Council does not indicate its intentions as required by Clause 16.4 then it
shall at the expiry of the Decision Period be taken to have indicated that they wish to
continue with the Project and this Agreement.

Where a Council indicates that it wishes to withdraw from the Project in accordance
with Clause 16.4.1 then the Council who shall have indicated its wish to withdraw shall
pay all amounts due to be paid by it in accordance with the Liability Report within
twenty (20) Business Days following agreement of the Liability Report by the Joint
Committee or determined pursuant to the dispute procedure under Clause 17 (Dispute
Resolution) and shall comply with its obligation to contribute to the Project up to the
date of its withdrawal.

Effects of Withdrawal

Unless agreed otherwise by the remaining Councils, the Council who shall have
indicated its wish to withdraw from the Project shall not remove its appointees to the
Project Board for a period of three (3) months commencing on the date of such
Council's withdrawal, provided that the costs associated with those appointees to the
Project Board shall be borne by the remaining Councils to the Project and this
Agreement in equal shares. For the avoidance of doubt, the Council who shall have
indicated its wish to withdraw from the Project acknowledges that its voting members
shall remain on the Joint Committee for a period for six (6) months but shall be unable
to vote on matters pertaining to the Project with effect from the date of its confirmation
under Clause 16.4.1.

If the Lead Council is the withdrawing Council, then the Lead Council shall be
required, prior to its withdrawal from the Project, to novate each of the Contract
Documents to the new Lead Council as selected by the remaining Councils.

The Lead Council (and any subsequent Lead Council) agrees that if it exercises its
rights to withdraw from the Project pursuant to this Clause 16 (Withdrawal) then it shall
transfer its interest in the Site to the new Lead Council (as selected by the remaining
Councils), for use for the purposes of the Project only, in accordance with Clause 11
(Sites and Decommissioning).

Any Council to which the Site is transferred pursuant to Clause 11.3 (Transfer to New
Lead Council) acknowledges and agrees that upon expiry of the Project the Site shall
be transferred back to Flintshire Council (at no cost to Flintshire Council.) in
accordance with Clause 11.4 (Transfer to Flintshire Council)

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Subiject to section 103 of the Act, any dispute arising in relation to any aspect of this
Agreement shall be resolved in accordance with this Clause 17. The Councils
undertake and agree to pursue a positive approach towards dispute resolution which
seeks (in the context of this partnership between the Councils) to identify a solution at
the lowest operational level that is appropriate to the subject of the dispute which
avoids legal proceedings and maintains a strong working relationship between the
Councils. Any interim determination will be applied but will be subject to the full
dispute resolution procedure.

General disputes or disagreements

In the event of any dispute, disagreement or difference between the Councils relating
to this Agreement (whether this may be a matter of contractual interpretation or
otherwise) then save in relation to disputes or disagreements relating to a Matter
Reserved To The Councils, the matter shall be dealt with by referral in the first
instance to the Project Board who shall meet within ten (10) Business Days of
notification of the occurrence of such dispute and attempt to resolve the disputed
matter in good faith.

44267940.16\gh01 TUH 79

78



17.3

17.4

17.5

17.6

17.7

17.8

18.

18.1

18.2

Elevation of disputes

If the Project Board fails to resolve a dispute or disagreement within five (5) Business
Days of meeting pursuant to Clause 17.2, or fails to meet in accordance with the
timescales set out in Clause 17.2, the dispute shall be referred to the Joint Committee
for resolution at the next programmed meeting (or a special meeting of the Joint
Committee shall be called to resolve the dispute as agreed by the Councils).

In relation to a dispute or disagreement relating to a Matter Reserved To The
Councils, or if the Joint Committee fails to resolve a dispute or disagreement within
five (5) Business Days of meeting pursuant to Clause 17.3, then the Councils in
dispute or the Joint Committee (as the case may be) may refer the matter for
resolution to the Chief Executive(s) or equivalent officer(s) (as appropriate) of each of
the Councils as a pre-condition to mediation followed by:

17.4.1 a mediation facilitated by the President of the CIWM or his nominated
representative or such other party as the Councils may agree (or the CIWM
may direct) for resolution by them; or

17.4.2 the exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts of England and Wales where a
dispute or disagreement relates specifically to the vires of the Councils;

and on referral to mediation or the Courts of England and Wales the Project Board
shall furnish the Joint Committee with a briefing report on the dispute or disagreement
for information.

Any dispute and/or disagreement to be determined by the Chief Executives (as
appropriate), CIWM or the Courts of England and Wales or such other body as agreed
by the Councils (as the case may be) under this Agreement shall be promptly referred
for determination to them and in any event within thirty (30) Business Days of the
Project Board's failure to reach agreement.

The Councils shall on request promptly supply to the Chief Executive(s) or CIWM (as
the case may be) all such assistance, documents and information as may be required
for the purpose of determination and the Councils shall use all reasonable endeavours
to procure the prompt determination of such reference.

If the CIWM is appointed to determine in dispute pursuant to Clause 17.5, then the
CIWM shall be deemed to act as an expert and not as an arbitrator and its
determination shall (in the absence of manifest error) be conclusive and binding upon
the Councils.

The costs of the resolution of any dispute and/or disagreement between the Councils
under this Agreement shall be borne equally by the Councils to the dispute in question
save as may be otherwise directed by the Chief Executive(s) (as appropriate), CIWM
or the Courts of England and Wales (as the case may be).

DATA PROTECTION

In relation to all Personal Data, each Council shall at all times comply with the DPA,
(as a data controller if necessary) which includes (but is not limited to) maintaining a
valid and up to date registration or notification under the DPA covering the data
processing activities to be performed in connection with the Project Tasks.

Each Council:-

18.2.1  shall process Personal Data belonging to any other Council only on the
instructions of that Council (subject to compliance with applicable law);

8
44267940.16\gh01 -I-Ud3 80

79



18.2.2 shall only undertake processing of Personal Data reasonably required in
connection with the Project Tasks and shall not transfer any Personal Data
to any country or territory outside the European Economic Area;

18.2.3  shall comply with the data protection policy at Appendix 1 (Data Protection
Policy) as may be updated or amended from time to time as agreed by the
Councils; and

18.2.4 shall use all reasonable endeavours to procure that all relevant
sub-contractors and the Contractor comply with this Clause 18.2. For the
avoidance of doubt a relevant sub-contractor is one which processes
Personal Data belonging to one or any of the Councils.

18.3 The Councils shall not disclose Personal Data to any third parties other than:-

18.3.1 to employees and sub-contractors and the Contractor and Contractor
Related Parties to whom such disclosure is reasonably necessary in order
for the Councils to carry out the Project Tasks; or

18.3.2 to the extent required under a court order or to comply with any applicable
laws including (but not limited to) any statute, bye law, European Directive or
regulation,

provided that any disclosure to sub-contractors or the Contractor under Clause 18.3.1
shall be made subject to written terms substantially the same as, and no less stringent
than, the terms contained in this Clause 18 and that the Councils shall give notice in
writing to all other Councils of any disclosure of Personal Data belonging to them
which they or a sub-contractor or the Contractor are required to make under
Clause 18.3.2 immediately as they are aware of such a requirement.

18.4 Any Council may, at reasonable intervals, request a written description of the technical
and organisational methods employed by any other Council and the relevant
sub-contractors referred to in Clause 18.3.1. Within five (5) Business Days of such a
request, the Council requested to do so shall supply written particulars of all such
measures as it is maintaining detailed to a reasonable level such that the requesting
Council can determine whether or not, in connection with the Personal Data, it is
compliant with the DPA. All Councils shall use all reasonable endeavours to ensure
that the sub-contractors and the Contractor also comply with such request from any
other Council.

18.5 All Councils shall ensure that any Personal Data they obtain and provide to any other
Council has been lawfully obtained and complies with the DPA and that the use
thereof in accordance with this Agreement shall not breach any of the provisions of the
DPA.

18.6 If:-

18.6.1 under the DPA any Council is required to provide information to a data
subject (as defined in the DPA) in relation to Personal Data when such data
is in the possession or under control of any other Council; and

18.6.2 the required Council informs the controlling Council in writing that this is the
case,

then the controlling Council shall guarantee reasonable and prompt co-operation to
the required Council in meeting its obligations under the DPA including making copies
of the relevant Personal Data to the extent the same are in its possession.

18.7 Each Council shall provide the other as soon as reasonably practicable, with such
information in relation to Personal Data and their processing as the other Council may

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 81
80



18.8

19.

19.1

19.2

19.3

194

19.5

reasonably request in writing and the party asked to provide the relevant data may
reasonably be able to provide in order for the other Council to:-

18.7.1  comply with its obligations under this Clause and the DPA; and

18.7.2 assess whether the processing of the relevant Personal Data in connection
with this Agreement is breaching or may breach the DPA in a manner which
is material and not effectively sanctioned by any guidance statement issued
by the Information Commissioner.

The Councils shall each take reasonable precautions (having regard to the nature of
their respective obligations under this Agreement) to preserve the integrity of any
Personal Data.

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION

Each Council acknowledges that the other Councils are subject to the requirements of
the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (“FolA”) and the Environmental Information
Regulations 2004 (“EIR”) and each Council shall where reasonable assist and co-
operate with the other Councils (at their own expense) to enable the other Councils to
comply with these information disclosure obligations.

Where a Council receives a request for information under either the FolA or the EIR in
relation to information which it is holding on behalf of any of the other Councils in
relation to the Project, it shall:-

19.2.1 transfer the request for information to the other Councils as soon as
practicable after receipt and in any event within two (2) Business Days of
receiving a request for information;

19.2.2  provide the other Councils with a copy of all information in its possession or
power in the form that the Councils reasonably require within ten (10)
Business Days (or such longer period as the Councils may specify) of the
Council requesting that information; and

19.2.3 provide all necessary assistance as reasonably requested by the other
Councils to enable the Council to respond to a request for information within
the time for compliance set out in the FolA or the EIR.

Where a Council receives a request for information under the FolA or the EIR which
relates to this Agreement or the Project, it shall inform the other Councils of the
request for information as soon as practicable after receipt and in any event at least
two (2) Business Days before disclosure and shall use all reasonable endeavours to
consult with the other Councils prior to disclosure and shall consider all
representations made by the other Councils in relation to the decision whether or not
to disclose the information requested.

The Councils shall be responsible for determining in their absolute discretion whether
any information requested under the FolA or the EIR:-

19.4.1 is exempt from disclosure under the FolA or the EIR; or
19.4.2 s to be disclosed in response to a request for information.

Each Council acknowledges that the other Councils may be obliged under the FolA or
the EIR to disclose information:-

19.5.1  without consulting with the other Councils where it has not been practicable
to achieve such consultation; or

0
44267940.16\gh01 -I-Ud4 82

81



19.5.2 following consultation with the other Councils and having taken their views
into account.

20. CHANGES AND CHANGE IN LAW

201 The Councils agree to be bound by the obligations on the Lead Council set out in
Clause 43 (Authority and Contractor Changes) and Schedule 21 (Change Protocol) of
the Project Agreement.

20.2 In relation to any proposed variations under the Project Agreement (whether the
proposed variation is a Qualifying Change in Law, an Authority Change, a Contractor
Change or any other matter affecting the Project which may have an equivalent
effect), the Councils shall work with the Contractor to achieve the best value solution
for the Project in respect of such Qualifying Change in Law, Authority Change,
Contractor Change or any other such matter as described in this Clause 20.2.

20.3 If, following a decision of the Project Board, the Joint Committee or the Councils (in
respect of a Matter Reserved To The Councils) (as applicable) the Councils decide to
support a proposed variation under the Project Agreement (or where the same is
required as a result of a Qualifying Change in Law), then Lead Council shall seek an
Authority Change or agree a Contractor Change (as applicable) with the Contractor in
the Project Agreement, and:

20.3.1  where the proposed Authority Change is agreed by the Project Board, the
Joint Committee or the Councils (in respect of a Matter Reserved To The
Councils) (as applicable) to have a mutual benefit to the Project the costs of
such proposed Authority Change shall be shared between the Councils by
agreement else in absence of agreement according to the Cost Sharing
Ratio set out at Appendix B (Cost Sharing) of Schedule 8 (Payment
Proportions);

20.3.2 where the proposed Authority Change is agreed by the Project Board, the
Joint Committee or the Councils (in respect of a Matter Reserved to the
Councils) (as applicable) to not have a mutual benefit to the Project the
Council seeking such Authority Change in the Project Agreement shall bear
responsibility for payment and indemnify the other Councils to hold them
harmless against losses caused to each other Council by such Authority
Change;

20.3.3 in requesting an Authority Change such proposing Council shall consider
and address the impact on the other Councils;

20.3.4 where a potential Authority Change falls within the grounds set out in
paragraph 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 21 (Change Protocol) of the Project
Agreement such Authority Change shall not be proposed or implemented,;
and

20.3.5 where the proposed Change is a Contractor Change which would result in a
cost saving, the Councils shall agree as part of the consideration of such
Contractor Change the proportionate sharing of such cost saving between
the Councils.

21. STEP-IN TO THE PROJECT AGREEMENT

211 The Councils acknowledge the provisions of Clause 33 (Authority Step-In) of the
Project Agreement where the Lead Council has rights to step into service delivery
where it reasonably believes that it needs to take action in connection with the
services because a serious risk exists to the health and safety of persons or property
or to the environment or to discharge a statutory duty.

44267940.16\gh01 TUﬂ- 83

82



21.2

22.

221

222

23.

23.1

23.2

233

Under the provisions of Clause 33 (Authority Step-In) of the Project Agreement the
Lead Council shall only be permitted to exercise such step in rights where agreed by
all the Councils.

TERMINATION OF THE PROJECT AGREEMENT

Should the Lead Council become entitled to terminate the Project Agreement or
otherwise serve a notice pursuant to Clause 39A (Title Disruption Event), Clause 57
(Uninsurability), Clause 67 (Termination for Contractor Default), Clause 69
(Termination on Force Majeure) or Clause 71 (Termination on Corrupt Gifts and
Fraud) of the Project Agreement, the Councils shall meet as soon as reasonably
practicable thereafter to decide as a Matter Reserved To The Councils whether the
Project Agreement should be terminated (and for the avoidance of doubt no partial
termination is contemplated, any changes of scope in the Project to be addressed as
an Authority Change), taking into account:

22.1.1 the point during the Contract Period at which termination of the Project
Agreement would occur;

22.1.2 the financial consequences of such termination and the rights of the
Contractor pursuant to Schedule 17 (Compensation on Termination) of the
Project Agreement;

22.1.3 the financial consequences of continuing with the Project;
22.1.4  the views of each Council concerning such termination;

22.1.5 any alternative providers or means of provision of the works and/or services
available to the Lead Council (and the other Councils);

22.1.6  whether the Councils are required to step in to provide the works and/or
services; and

22.1.7  any other matters relevant to the termination or continuance of the Project.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Lead Council shall not be entitled to issue a notice of
voluntary termination in accordance with Clause 73 (Voluntary Termination by the
Authority) of the Project Agreement unless such action has been approved by all of
the Councils as a Matter Reserved To The Councils.

COUNCILS' OBLIGATIONS FOLLOWING EXPIRY OR EARLIER TERMINATION
OF THE PROJECT AGREEMENT

Extension

The Councils acknowledge that pursuant to Clause 3.3 (Option to Extend the Contract
Period) of the Project Agreement, there is an option for the Authority to extend the
Expiry Date by a period of up to five (5) years. The Councils agree that any decision
to extend the Expiry Date shall be a Matter Reserved To The Councils.

The Councils shall determine no later than sixty (60) months prior to expiry of the
Project Agreement what information is required (if any) from the Contractor, which will
enable the Councils to determine if any extension of the Expiry Date is required by the
Councils.

The Councils acknowledge that any decision to extend the Contract Period must be
determined and notified to the Contractor no later than thirty-six (36) months prior to
the Expiry Date in accordance with Clause 3.3 of the Project Agreement.

After Project Agreement Expiry or Earlier Termination

2
44267940.16\gh01 -I-Ud4 84

83



234 The Councils agree that following expiry or early termination of the Project Agreement
they shall, prior to termination of this Agreement, seek to agree such arrangements as
are appropriate in respect of the continuing operation or otherwise of the Facility in
accordance with Clause 11 (Sites and Decommissioning). The Councils acknowledge
however that on expiry of the Project in line with the Expiry Date under the Project
Agreement, there is no obligation on Flintshire Council to utilise the Site for any
continued arrangements with the Partnership (or any of the Councils separately) and
any arrangements that are agreed in respect of the continued utilisation of the Site will
need to be agreed and documented in a separate agreement.

23.5 The Councils acknowledge that the Lease shall terminate upon a termination of the
Project Agreement.

Termination Payments
23.6 The Councils shall be liable (and shall indemnify each other):

23.6.1 for equal proportions of the Termination Sum payable to the Contractor
following an early termination of the Project Agreement where such
termination occurs during the Works Period;

23.6.2 for a proportion of the Termination Sum calculated on a pro rata basis in
respect of the actual tonnage delivered by each of the Councils where such
termination occurs during the Services Period;

save in respect of any Termination Sum payable in accordance with:

23.6.3 Clause 66 (Compensation on Termination for Authority Default) of the
Project Agreement, or

23.6.4 Clause 4.4 (Relevant Discharge Terms) of the Project Agreement; and
23.6.5 Schedule 28 (Relevant Discharge Terms) of the Project Agreement,

in which case the Councils agree that the Council or Councils whose acts or
omissions gave rise to the termination shall be liable for a greater proportion (or all) of
the Termination Sum as agreed or determined by the Joint Committee, to reflect the
respective liability of the Council or Councils (as the case may be).

23.7 The Councils' liability on early termination of the Project Agreement shall be defined
by reference to the Lead Council's obligation to pay compensation on early termination
to the Contractor as follows:

23.7.1 Clause 10.12 (Termination) and Part 5 of Schedule 17 (Compensation on
Termination) of the Project Agreement;

23.7.2 Clause 39A.8 (Title Disruption Event) and Part 5 of Schedule 17
(Compensation on Termination) of the Project Agreement;

23.7.3 Clause 57 (Uninsurability) and Part 5 of Schedule 17 (Compensation on
Termination) of the Project Agreement;

23.7.4 Clause 65 (Termination for Authority Default) and Part 2 of Schedule 17
(Compensation on Termination) of the Project Agreement;

23.7.5 Clause 67 (Termination for Contractor Default) and Part 3 of Schedule 17
(Compensation on Termination) of the Project Agreement;

23.7.6 Clause 69 (Termination on Force Majeure) and Part 5 of Schedule 17
(Compensation on Termination) of the Project Agreement;

44267940.16\gh01 Tudl. 85
84



23.8

24.

241

25.

25.1

252

253

254

23.7.7 Clause 71 (Termination on Corrupt Gifts and Fraud) and Part 4 of Schedule
17 (Compensation on Termination) of the Project Agreement;

23.7.8 Clause 73 (Voluntary Termination by the Authority) and Part 2 of Schedule
17 (Compensation on Termination) of the Project Agreement;

23.7.9 Clause 4.4 (Unenforceability of Contract) and Schedule 28 (Relevant
Discharge Terms);

23.7.10 Any other provision within the Project Agreement that affects liability on
termination of the Project Agreement; and

23.7.11 Any other liability that the Lead Council may reasonably incur which flows
from or is connected to the termination of the Project Agreement.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement it is agreed that no Council
shall be entitled to derive any financial or other benefit from an early termination event
at the cost of any other Council.

POLICIES

The Authority's Policies as set out at Schedule 13 (Authority's Policies) to the Project
Agreement shall apply in relation to the operation of the Project Agreement within the
Administrative Area.

CONFIDENTIALITY AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Councils shall comply with the confidentiality provisions of the Lead Council set
out in the Project Agreement as if they were set out in this Agreement.

The Councils acknowledge that nothing in the Contract Documents shall be deemed
confidential unless expressly stated so in those Contract Documents.

Each Council (the "Covenanter") shall, both during the currency of this Agreement
and at all times following its termination or expiry, keep private and confidential and
shall not use or disclose (whether for its own benefit or that of any third party) any
Confidential Information about the business of and/or belonging to any other Council
or the Contractor which has come to its attention as a result of or in connection with
this Agreement, in particular (but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing)
Confidential Information relating to the Project Agreement.

The obligation set out in Clause 25.1 shall not relate to information which:-

2541 comes into the public domain or is subsequently disclosed to the public
(other than through default on the part of the Covenanter or any other
person to whom the Covenanter is permitted to disclose such information
under this Agreement); or

25.4.2 any disclosure to enable a determination to be made under Clause 17
(Dispute Resolution);

25.4.3 s required to be disclosed by law; or

2544 was already in the possession of the Covenanter (without restrictions as to
its use) on the date of receipt; or

25.4.5 is required or recommended by the rules of any governmental or regulatory
body including any guidance from time to time as to openness and
disclosure of information by public bodies; or

4
44267940.16\gh01 TUdA. 86

85



255

256

25.7

26.

27.

27.1

27.2

27.3

25.4.6 s necessary to be disclosed to provide relevant information to any insurer or
insurance broker in connection with obtaining any insurance required by this
Agreement.

Where disclosure is permitted under Clauses 25.4.3, 25.4.4 or 25.4.6, the recipient of
the information shall be subject to a similar obligation of confidentiality as that
contained in this Clause 25 and the disclosing Council shall make this known to the
recipient of the information.

No Council shall make any public statement (which shall include speaking or
presenting at public conferences or other analogous situations) or issue any press
release or publish any other public document relating, connected with or arising out of
this Agreement and/or the Project Agreement (excluding any disclosure required by
legal or regulatory requirements) without obtaining the prior written approval of the
other Councils as to the contents thereof and the manner of its presentation and
publication provided that prior approval shall be required if such public statement
materially affects any Council.

Each Council agrees to make available to the other Councils any books and records
which may be required for the purposes of an internal audit and the Councils agree
that any disclosure of such books and records to an appointed external auditor shall
not breach the provisions of this Agreement.

CONTRACTS (THIRD PARTY RIGHTS)

The Councils as parties to this Agreement do not intend that any of its terms will be
enforceable by virtue of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 by any person
not a party to it.

NOTICES

Any notice or demand in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and may
be delivered by hand, prepaid first class post, special delivery post, facsimile or email
(with a copy following by facsimile or post), addressed to the recipient at the address
or facsimile number as the case may be set out in Schedule 4 (Addresses of the
Councils) or such other recipient address or facsimile number as may be notified in
writing from time to time by any of the parties to this Agreement to all the other
Councils to this Agreement.

The notice or demand shall be deemed to have been duly served:-

27.21  if delivered by hand, when left at the proper address for service;

27.2.2 if given or made by prepaid first class post or special delivery post, forty-
eight (48) hours after being posted (excluding days other than Business
Days);

27.2.3  if given or made by facsimile, at the time of transmission;

27.2.4 if given or made by email, at the time of transmission,

provided that, where in the case of delivery by hand or transmission by facsimile or

email such delivery or transmission occurs either after 4.00pm on a Business Day or

on a day other than a Business Day service shall be deemed to occur at 9.00am on

the next following Business Day.

For the avoidance of doubt, where proceedings to which the Civil Procedure Rules

apply have been issued, the provisions of the Civil Procedure Rules must be complied
with in respect of the service of documents in connection with those proceedings.

44267940.16\gh01 TU& 87

86



274

28.

29.

29.1

30.

30.1

30.2

30.3

31.

32.

Each Council shall notify the other Councils in writing within five (5) Business Days of
any change in its address for service.

GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection
with it shall be governed by and construed in all respects in accordance with the laws
of England and Wales. Subject to Clause 17 (Dispute Resolution), the English and
Welsh Courts shall have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any disputes which may arise
out of or in connection with this Agreement.

ASSIGNMENTS

The rights and obligations of the Councils under this Agreement shall not be assigned,
novated or otherwise transferred (whether by virtue of any legislation or any scheme
pursuant to any legislation or otherwise) save in circumstances of an amalgamation of
the Councils to any person other than to any public body (being a single entity)
acquiring the whole of the Agreement and having the legal capacity, power and
authority to become a party to and to perform the obligations of the relevant Council
under this Agreement being:-

29.1.1  a Minister of the Crown pursuant to an Order under the Ministers of the
Crown Act 1975; or

29.1.2 any Local Authority which has sufficient financial standing or financial
resources to perform the obligations of the relevant Council under this
Agreement.

WAIVER AND COSTS

No failure or delay by any Council to exercise any right, power or remedy will operate
as a waiver of it nor will any partial exercise preclude any further exercise of the same
or some other right, power or remedy unless a waiver is given in writing by that
Council.

Each Council shall pay their own respective costs and expenses incurred in
connection with the preparation, execution, completion and implementation of this
Agreement, except as expressly provided for in this Agreement.

Save where otherwise provided, the Councils will pay interest on any amount payable
under this Agreement not paid on the due date from that date to the date of payment
at the Default Interest Rate.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains all the terms which the parties have agreed in relation to the
subject of this Agreement and supersedes any prior written or oral agreements,
representations, communications, negotiations or understandings between the
Councils relating to such subject matter. No Council has been induced to enter into
this Agreement or any of these documents by statement or promise which they do not
contain, save that this Clause shall not exclude any liability which one (1) Council
would otherwise have to the other in respect of any statements made fraudulently by
that Council.

COUNTERPARTS
This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts each of which so

executed shall be an original but together shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

6
44267940.16\gh01 -I-Ud4 88

87



33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

37.1

37.2

37.3

37.4

RELATIONSHIP OF COUNCILS

Each Council is an independent body and nothing contained in this Agreement shall
be construed to imply that there is any relationship between the Councils of
partnership or (except as expressly provided in this Agreement) of principal/agent or of
employer/employee. No Council shall have the right to act on behalf of another, make
any representations or give any warranties to third parties on behalf or in respect of
any other Council nor to bind (or hold themselves out as having authority or power to
bind) any other Council by contract or otherwise except to the extent expressly
permitted by the terms of this Agreement or where a statutory provision otherwise
requires. In particular for the avoidance of doubt, none of the provisions relating to the
principles of working in partnership shall create, or be deemed to create, any
partnership as defined by The Partnership Act 1890.

MITIGATION

Each Council shall at all times take all reasonable steps to minimise and mitigate any
loss for which the relevant Council is entitled to bring a claim against the other
Council(s) pursuant to this Agreement.

STATUTORY RESPONSIBILITIES

Without prejudice to the remedies and contractual rights of the Lead Council in respect
of a risk, liability or obligation expressly provided in this Agreement as being a risk,
liability or obligation of one or more of the Councils, nothing in this Contract shall
operate as an obligation upon, or in any other way fetter or constrain, the Councils in
any other capacity, nor shall the exercise by the Councils of their duties, powers and
functions in any other capacity lead to any liability under this Agreement on the part of
the Councils to the Lead Council.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (CONTRACTS) ACT 1997

The certificate in respect of this Agreement to be provided by the Councils (not being
the Lead Council) in respect of their powers to enter into this Agreement and support
the Lead Council model whereby the Lead Council enters into the Project Agreement
with the Contractor and accepts a contingent liability for the Relevant Discharge
Terms (as defined in the Project Agreement) on behalf of itself assuming the other
Councils are committed to underwriting their proportion of any compensation payable
under the Relevant Discharge Terms pursuant to section 3 of the Local Government
(Contracts) Act 1997 shall be provided by the Councils (not being the Lead Council) to
the Lead Council on or before the date of this Agreement.

VARIATIONS

The Councils may vary the terms of this Agreement including admitting additional
Councils to the Joint Committee, the terms of such admission to be agreed by the
Councils.

Where an additional Council is admitted to the Joint Committee it shall enter a deed of
variation in a form agreed by the Joint Committee and from the date of its admittance
to the Joint Committee all provisions of this Agreement shall apply to the admitted
Council and the definition of “Councils” shall include it.

No amendment to this Agreement shall be binding unless it is in writing and signed by
the duly authorised representatives of each of the Councils and expressed to be for
the purpose of such amendment.

The Councils shall endeavour to review this Agreement on an annual basis to monitor
and reflect on the operation of the Project and the performance of the obligations set
out in this Agreement.

44267940.16\gh01 TUH 89

88



38. SEVERABILITY

In the event of any provision of this Agreement being or becoming legally ineffective,
invalid, illegal or unenforceable as declared by the courts of other competent authority
the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be invalidated and the Councils
shall negotiate in good faith in order to agree a mutually satisfactory substitute
provision.

AS WITNESSED the duly authorised representatives of the Councils have signed this
Agreement as a deed on the date written at the beginning of this Agreement.

8
44267940.16\gh01 Tud?®90
89



16 'PNL

SCHEDULE 1 - PROJECT TASKS

TASK CLAUSE/ CONTRACT LEAD PROJECT BOARD JOINT COUNCILS'
SCHEDULE MANAGER COUNCIL MATTER COMMITTEE MATTER/MATTER
MATTER MATTER MATTER RESERVED TO
THE COUNCILS'
CABINETS
Issue Default Notice for Council breach of 2.21 Y
Agreement
Respond to Default Notice with Counternotice | 2.2.2 Y
proposing remediation of Default Notice
matters
Issue of Notice of Acceptance and/or Notice 223 Y
of Dispute concerning Counternotice
proposals to remediate beaches of
Agreement
Implement Notice of Acceptance 224 Y
Issue of written notice of termination of 231 Y
Agreement by Non-Defaulting Councils to
Defaulter
Agree to terminate Agreement 2.3.2 Y
Liability for losses caused due to termination 234 Y
by a Defaulter
All necessary consents obtained 3.3 Y
Share data and knowledge relevant to the 3.4 Y
Project
Conduct relationship in accordance with 3.5 Y
stated principles
Agreement that Flintshire Council shall be 41 Y
Lead Council
Recognition of existence of Joint Committee 4.2 Y
and compliance with decisions delegated to
Joint Committee
49

44267940.16\gh01

90




¢6 PNl

TASK CLAUSE/ CONTRACT LEAD PROJECT BOARD JOINT COUNCILS'
SCHEDULE MANAGER COUNCIL MATTER COMMITTEE MATTER/MATTER
MATTER MATTER MATTER RESERVED TO
THE COUNCILS'
CABINETS
Deciding detailed scope of Lead Council role | 4.3.1 Y
Deciding administrative and representative 4.3.2 Y
functions of the Lead Council
Communicate representative functions to 4.3.2
Contractor
Consultation and reporting requirements 4.3.3
between Lead Council and Joint Committee
Act on behalf of Partnership in management 441
and supervision of Project
Acting under direction of Joint Committee 4.4.2
Act on behalf of the interests of the 443
Partnership
Liaising with Contractor and Contractor's 444
Representatives
Participating in Partnership Board under 445
Project Agreement
Act as employing authority for Lead Council 446
staff or supervisor of Councils' seconded staff
Act as point of contact for Partner Councils 447
for the purposes of managing Project
Providing additional resources and office 4438
facilities
Responsibility for liaison and communication 449
with Welsh Government and co-ordination of
communication and public relations
Managing application of Annual Budget for 4.411
Core Project Team and reporting to Project
Board
Reporting on expenditure to Joint Committee | 4.4.11
50

44267940.16\gh01

91




€6 PnL

TASK CLAUSE/ CONTRACT LEAD PROJECT BOARD JOINT COUNCILS'
SCHEDULE MANAGER COUNCIL MATTER COMMITTEE MATTER/MATTER
MATTER MATTER MATTER RESERVED TO
THE COUNCILS'
CABINETS
Having powers to enter into contracts with 4412
consultants
Appointing a replacement Lead Council if the | 4.5 Y
Lead Council defaults or withdraws from the
Agreement
Performing much of Lead Council role 4.7
Commitment to a Minimum Tonnage 4.10 Y
guarantee
No competing procurement to the Project 4.12 Y
unless outside the terms of the Agreement
Warranty to comply with the Contract 413 Y
Documents (and indemnity in respect of loss)
Co-operate in good faith 4.14 Y
No exercise or waiver of right under Contract | 4.15 Y
Documents without approval
Primary interface with Contractor, Welsh 417
Government and other bodies
Overview and scrutiny responsibility (where 5.2 Y
necessary)
Provision of information on reasonable 6.6 Y
request of Joint Committee
Consultation with Councils to allow diligent 6.7 Y
progress day to day
Reimbursement of administrative costs and 6.8 Y
expenses of Joint Committee in accordance
with Annual Budget
Review of administrative costs and expenses | 6.8 Y
of Joint Committee each year when draft
Annual Budget prepared
51

44267940.16\gh01

92




76 ‘PNL

TASK CLAUSE/ CONTRACT LEAD PROJECT BOARD JOINT COUNCILS'
SCHEDULE MANAGER COUNCIL MATTER COMMITTEE MATTER/MATTER
MATTER MATTER MATTER RESERVED TO
THE COUNCILS'
CABINETS
Consideration of administrative costs and 6.8 Y
expenses of Joint Committee each year when
draft Annual Budget prepared
Approval of administrative costs and 6.8 Y
expenses of Joint Committee each year when
draft Annual Budget prepared
Preparing a draft Annual Budget for the 71 Y
following Contract Year
Consider and recommend a draft Annual 71 Y
Budget for the following Contract Year by 31
December in each Contract Year
Approval of Annual Budget 71 Y
Approval to exceed Annual Budget (including | 7.4 Y
contingency sums)
Making available share of Annual Budget 7.4 Y
irrevocably to Lead Council
Accountable body for the Joint Committee 7.5 Y
Oversee or procure monitoring of Annual 7.5 Y
Budget for Councils' scrutiny
Serve Annual Budget invoice on Councils at 7.6
end of each Accounting Period
Payment of Annual Budget invoice each 7.6 Y
Accounting Period
Costs of providing internal resources 7.7 Y
Decision on whether a Council internal 7.9 Y
resource costs are disproportionate
compared to the Annual Budget spend profile
Prior approval of all reports for decision by 8.3.1 Y
Joint Committee (except if impracticable due
to special meeting)
52

44267940.16\gh01

93




G6 PNL

TASK

CLAUSE/
SCHEDULE

CONTRACT
MANAGER
MATTER

LEAD
COUNCIL
MATTER

PROJECT BOARD
MATTER

JOINT
COMMITTEE
MATTER

COUNCILS!
MATTER/MATTER
RESERVED TO
THE COUNCILS'
CABINETS

Monitoring of Annual Budget to ensure it
remains within budget

8.3.2

Determine from time to time the necessity of
Project Officers

9.1

Make available officers as necessary for
purposes of the Project

9.2

Appoint the Project Officers for the purpose of
the Project where necessary as requested by
the Joint Committee

9.3

Prepare Performance and Improvement Plan
for approval by Joint Committee

10.1

Present to the Joint Committee a draft
Performance and Improvement Plan no later
than 30 June in any Contract Year

10.2

Decision on whether there is any significant
change to the Project Plan, work programme
and resource plan for the Project to be
approved by the Joint Committee

10.2

Approval of the Performance and
Improvement Plan

10.3

Request to each Council for future budgetary
provision and for resources

10.3.1

Seek to agree arrangements in respect of the
Site following an early termination of the
Project Agreement

Observation and compliance with the terms of
the Lease / not causing Lead Council to
breach Lease

Receive any Welsh Government Funding
from and make payment to the other Councils
of such credits or contribution

121

Monthly Unitary Payment to the Contractor

12.3

44267940.16\gh01

53

94




96 PNL

TASK

CLAUSE/
SCHEDULE

CONTRACT
MANAGER
MATTER

LEAD
COUNCIL
MATTER

PROJECT BOARD
MATTER

JOINT
COMMITTEE
MATTER

COUNCILS!
MATTER/MATTER
RESERVED TO
THE COUNCILS'
CABINETS

Responsibility for any adjustments or
Deductions to the Contractor's invoice

12.5

Payment of proportion of the Monthly
Contract Payment to Flintshire Council

12.6

Ensure that there are always cleared funds
paid

12.8

Review Payment Proportions on 30
September following the Service
Commencement Date and at one (1) yearly
intervals thereafter

12.12

Power to make adjustments, reconciliations
or payments to recompense for significant
anomalies in Project mutual benefit

12.13

Apportion any payment made by the
Contractor

12.14

Prepare accounts including expenditure
incurred pursuant to the Annual Budget

13.2

Determine Accounting Period in relation to
AB Accounts

13.2

Ensure true and complete entries of all
relevant payments and receipts in the AB
Accounts

13.3.1

Provide the Lead Council with unaudited AB
Accounts for an Accounting Period with
certification that such AB Accounts comply
with this agreement

13.3.2

Nominate and notify to the other Councils the
name, address and telephone number of an
individual responsible for ensuring that
Council complies with Clause 13 of this
Agreement

13.3.3

44267940.16\gh01

54

95




TASK CLAUSE/ CONTRACT LEAD PROJECT BOARD JOINT COUNCILS!

MANAGER COUNCIL MATTER COMMITTEE MATTER/MATTER
el ERLLE MATTER MATTER MATTER RESERVED TO
THE COUNCILS'
CABINETS
Prepare and send a reconciliation statement 13.34 Y
with either a balancing invoice or credit
payment
Notify a change to the nominated individual 13.5 Y
pursuant to Clause 13
Maintain an up to date register of the assets 13.7 Y

and committed liabilities of each Council in
relation to the Joint Committee

Grant a non-exclusive, perpetual, non- 14.2 Y
transferable and royalty free licence to use,
modify, amend and develop its IP Material for
the Project Tasks

.6 ‘PNl

Indemnify any loss arising out of any dispute 14.6 Y
or proceedings brought by a third party
alleging infringement of its Intellectual
Property rights

Indemnify against any losses, damage, 15.1/15.3 Y Y
claims, proceedings, expenses, actions,
demands, costs and liabilities in connection
with any damage to property; any injury to, or
death of any person; and any third party
actions, claims or demands

Determine the extent of responsibility and 15.5 Y
how the amount should be divided in the
event of a claim

Notify and provide details of a claim for 15.6 Y
losses, expenses, actions, demands, costs
and liabilities

Administer all Required Insurances in 15.11 Y
accordance with the provisions of the Project
Agreement

55

96

44267940.16\gh01




86 PnL

TASK

CLAUSE/
SCHEDULE

CONTRACT
MANAGER
MATTER

LEAD
COUNCIL
MATTER

PROJECT BOARD
MATTER

JOINT
COMMITTEE
MATTER

COUNCILS!
MATTER/MATTER
RESERVED TO
THE COUNCILS'
CABINETS

Ensure that adequate insurance cover is
effected and maintained in respect of any
liabilities

15.12

Y

Ensure adequate insurance cover is effected
and maintained in respect of any property
and assets held by them for the purposes of
the Joint Committee

15.13

Provide written Withdrawal Notice

16.3

Y

Provide a Liability Report that is discussed by
the Joint Committee

16.3

Y (If nominated by
JC)

To determine the proportion of the
Termination Sum to be paid by each Council
taking into account each Council's respective
liability.

23.6

Any decision which has (or is reasonably
expected to have) an annual financial impact
on the Project above the Annual Budget.

n/a

44267940.16\gh01

56

97




SCHEDULE 2 - JOINT COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

PART 1

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The terms of reference of the Joint Committee are:-

1.1 to promote joint working in the delivery of the Project through:-
1.1.1 facilitating constructive partnership working;
1.1.2 engaging with key interested bodies and stakeholders when appropriate; and
1.1.3 carrying out such other activities calculated to facilitate, or which are conducive to the
successful delivery of the Project; and

1.2 to ensure that the Project is developed in accordance with good industry practice, is in the best
interests of all Councils and delivers value for money.

2. The key functions of the Joint Committee are to:-

2.1 consider and make recommendations concerning the Councils' collective budget for the Project on
an annual basis noting:

211 the predicted outturn of the Councils' collective payments to the Contractor for services
received under the Project Agreement as approved by the Councils;

21.2 the profile of such payments; and

21.3 the draft Annual Budget prepared by the Project Board and approved by each Council;

2.2 consider and make recommendations in respect of all Contract Documents in relation to the
Project;

2.3 monitor and manage the risks associated with the Project;

24 address at a members' level any issues raised by the Councils' representatives on the Partnership
Board or Contract Management Board (pursuant to the Project Agreement) which require
discussion; and

2.5 ratify requests for additional funding related to the resources for the Project.

3. For the avoidance of doubt, the following matters are Matters Reserved To The Councils i.e.
reserved for an individual Council decision:-

3.1 approval of inter-Council partnership governance arrangements;

3.2 increase of budget over agreed Council contributions; and

3.3 any matter specified as such in Schedule 1 (Project Tasks).

4. The key responsibilities of the Joint Committee include those tasks set out in Schedule 1 (Project
Tasks) which are each designated as a "Joint Committee Matter" and in addition the following:-

4.1 providing strategic direction to the Project Board,;

4.2 receiving and reviewing the Contractor's summary of its performance under the Project Agreement
which is issued each quarter;

4.3 receiving and reviewing the Project monitoring update which is issued each year;

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 99

98



4.4 promoting partnership working between the Councils;

4.5 ensuring adherence to the Data Protection Policy as set out at Appendix 1 (Data Protection Policy)
(as amended or updated from time to time);

4.6 approval of the annual Governance Statement which shall be published with the annual account at
the end of each financial year;

4.7 consideration of the Annual Budget and recommendation of the same to the Councils for approval
in accordance with Clause 7 (Annual Budget);

4.8 preparation of statutory accounts pursuant to The Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendment)
Regulations 2010;

4.9 ensuring that the Lead Council provides all financial and statistical reports on an open book basis
upon request by the Councils or their internal or external auditors, permitting any such authorised
persons to inspect, audit and take copies of all reports, books, accounting records, vouchers and
any other documents considered relevant and seek reasonable explanations for any matter under
examination; and

4.10 agreeing the programme of work to be carried out by the Lead Council's internal audit service,
ensuring that the Lead Council's internal audit service provides as and when necessary a
statement of assurance to the Councils regarding the payment process and Project monitoring
arrangements.

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 5100

99



10.

11.

12.

PART 2
CONSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS

The membership of the Joint Committee shall comprise of ten (10) elected members appointed in
accordance with this Schedule 2.

Each Council shall appoint two (2) elected members of their Executive as members of the Joint
Committee, both of whom, subject to the following shall be voting members. For the avoidance of
doubt, each Council shall only have one (1) counted vote on any matter before the Joint
Committee.

Members of the Joint Committee shall be appointed in accordance with the standing orders of that
Council.

In appointing members to the Joint Committee, each Council will include among its appointees,
unless there are overriding reasons to the contrary, the member of the Executive of that Council
who has portfolio responsibility for waste management functions within that Council.

In the event that any member is unable to make a decision the matter will be referred to the
respective Council at an appropriate level (including but not limited to Council leader or Council
Executive) and a binding decision will be made by such Council as soon as reasonably practicable
and in any event within forty (40) Business Days.

Each member of the Joint Committee shall have responsibility for championing the Project within
their own Council and for securing, as far as possible that any matter which is recommended to
that Council by the Joint Committee for decision shall be considered and determined expeditiously
and having due regard to the benefits to each Council of the joint procurement and implementation
of the Project.

Each Council shall also appoint one (1) substitute member in the event that appointed members
are unable or incapable of discharging their functions.

Each Council's substitute member shall be entitled to attend meetings of the Joint Committee but
shall only be entitled to vote in the absence of his or her corresponding voting member.

Each Council may, at their discretion, replace their representatives appointed to the Joint
Committee, provided that:-

(a) at all times, they have representatives appointed to the Joint Committee in
accordance with the roles identified in Part 1 of this Schedule 2 (Joint
Committee Terms of Reference); and

(b) any such replacement nominated in writing on not less than five (5) Business
Days' notice shall have no lesser status or authority than that set out in Part 1 of
this Schedule 2 (Joint Committee Terms of Reference) unless otherwise agreed
by the Councils.

The Chair of the Joint Committee shall be an elected member of the Joint Committee appointed
pursuant to paragraph 12.

The Vice-Chair of the Joint Committee shall be an elected member of the Joint Committee
appointed pursuant to paragraph 12.

The Chair and the Vice-Chair of the Joint Committee shall be elected at the annual general
meeting and appointments shall take effect until the next annual general meeting. The Chair will be
nominated by annual rotation between the Councils commencing with a Flintshire Council member
of the Joint Committee and the subsequent order of rotation for the following two (2) years shall be
agreed by the Joint Committee.

44267940.16\gh01 TUE? 101

100



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

The Joint Committee shall meet as and when required to suit the needs of the Project in
accordance with the Project timetable provided that there shall be a minimum of two (2) meetings
per year, one (1) of which shall be specified as the annual general meeting and, subject to
paragraph 13, at appropriate times and on reasonable notice (to be issued through the Project
Board) to carry out the Joint Committee Matters referred to in Schedule 1 (Project Tasks). The
venue for the meetings shall be agreed by the Joint Committee.

A printed copy of the agenda and reports for each meeting and the minutes of the previous meeting
shall be despatched at least five (5) Business Days before such meeting is to be held to each
representative appointed to the Joint Committee. The Chief Executive of the Lead Council shall use
reasonable endeavours to procure that the agenda and all relevant papers meet this deadline. All
agendas, reports and minutes in relation to the Joint Committee shall be in English and Welsh.

The quorum necessary for a Joint Committee Meeting shall be five (5) members of the Joint
Committee comprising at least one (1) member from each of the Councils (in person or by remote
attendance where permitted by and in accordance with the Lead Authority's procedure rules for
committees).

Each Council shall be entitled to invite appropriate third parties to observe Joint Committee
Meetings and such third parties shall be entitled to be present in support of such Joint Committee
Meetings at the discretion of the Chair of the Joint Committee. Such observers shall not have a
vote. For the avoidance of doubt, the section 151 officer and/or monitoring officer for each Council
shall be entitled to attend and participate in Joint Committee Meetings in a non-voting capacity.

Save as is inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement the Lead Council's procedure rules for
governing committees and awarding contracts shall apply.

The Joint Committee shall have the powers to make decisions and recommendations within its
terms of reference as set out in Part 1 of this Schedule 2 (Joint Committee Terms of Reference) but
shall not have power to approve any Matter Reserved To The Councils pursuant to Clause 5.1.4
(Decision Making).

The Joint Committee decisions shall comply with the Authority's Policies. If the Joint Committee
proposes to make a decision contrary to the Authority's Policies then those decisions must be
referred to each Council for resolution as a Matter Reserved To The Councils.

Reports to be submitted to the Joint Committee (including those pertaining to the Annual Budget)
shall be considered by the Project Board prior to submission to the Joint Committee.

The Chair may summon a special meeting of the Joint Committee at any time by written notice to
the Lead Council specifying the business to be considered at the special meeting.

A special meeting shall be summoned on the requisition in writing of any Joint Committee Members
acting on behalf of his or her Council, which requisition shall specify the business to be considered
at the special meeting.

Arrangements for holding a special meeting will be in accordance with the timetable set out in
paragraph 13.

In the event that a special meeting is called the Lead Council shall notify all members of the Project
Board as a matter of urgency.

44267940.16\gh01 TUd ?02

101



SCHEDULE 3 - PROJECT BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. The Project Board will manage the progress and implementation of the Project including identifying
all works necessary to be carried out and instructing the internal and external financial, legal,
procurement and technical advisors to carry out the same. The Contract Manager shall be
empowered (within pre-agreed parameters) to deal direct with the Contractor and other third
parties.

2. The Project Board will act as a representative for each of the Council’'s "Corporate Officer
Management Team" described in Schedule 4 (Addresses of the Councils) to ensure consistency
with individual Council objectives and visions.

3. The Project Board will consider and determine those matters allocated to it in Schedule 1 (Project
Tasks).
4, The Project Board will as and when necessary report to the Joint Committee and provide advice to

the Joint Committee on those matters referred to the Joint Committee as set out in Schedule 1
(Project Tasks) and Schedule 2 (Joint Committee Terms of Reference).

5. For the avoidance of doubt the following specific functions are given to the Project Board:-

(a) prior approval of all reports for decision by the Joint Committee save if
impracticable in the case of a special meeting;

(b) preparation of the draft Annual Budget;
(c) monitor the Project to ensure that it remains within budget;
(d) to provide strategic guidance to the Project to ensure that it delivers the desired

outcomes for the Councils;

(e) to ensure that the Project and Partnership is presented positively to external
stakeholders;

) to oversee the Project's progress to ensure it is delivered within agreed
timescales;

(9) to approve the completion of each stage of the Project before sign off;

(h) to review and approve, as appropriate, key documents relating to the Project

such as the Contract Documents;

(i) to ensure that the Project is sufficiently resourced in regard to finance and
staffing;

() to approve the scope of work, selection, and terms of engagement of advisors;

(k) to approve Project reviews and ensure that action is taken against any

recommendations made; and

0] to agree items for presentation to Joint Committee for approval or information.

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 103
102



SCHEDULE 4 - ADDRESSES OF THE COUNCILS

RECIPIENT'S ADDRESS FAX EMAIL CORPORATE
NAME NO. OFFICER
MANAGEMENT
TEAM
Conwy County | Bodlondeb, 01492 Delyth.e.jones@conwy.gov.uk Executive Group
Borough Council:- Conwy, 576116
North Wales
LL32 8DU
Denbighshire County Hall, | 01824 Legal@denbighshire.gov.uk Senior
County Council:- Wynnstay 706293 Leadership Team
Head of Corporate Eoth’
Governance uihin
LL151YN
Flintshire  County | County Hall, | 01352 Gareth.Legal@flintshire.gcsx.gov.uk Strategic
Council:- Mold, 702494 Leadership Team
Head of Legal and EI:;sQ;\;eB
Democratic
Services
Gwynedd Council:- | Council 01286 IwanGDEvans@gwynedd.gov.uk Leadership
Offices, 679466 Group
Head of Democracy Shirehall
and Legal Service Street
Caernarfon,
Gwynedd
LL55 1SH
Isle of Anglesey | Council 01248 rwjcs@anglesey.gov.uk Strategic
County Council:- Offices, 752134 Leadership Team
Llangefni,
Head .Of . Anglesey
Function/Council
) o LL77 7TW
Business/Monitoring
Officer
44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 104

103




SCHEDULE 5 - ANNUAL BUDGET

For the avoidance of doubt the Annual Budget is required for the Joint Committee to note the Project Board's
recommendations for funding the Lead Council's obligations under this Agreement.

The Annual Budget does not include the Unitary Charge payment due under the Project Agreement.

The following is a non-exhaustive list of the heads of expenditure that may be expected to be incurred by the
Councils in relation to the Project Tasks:

1. internal expenditure (staff costs and associated overheads);

2. internal financial support;

3. internal legal support;

4. other professional services (including asset management, architects, quantity surveyors, surveyors,

procurement and planning);

5. communications;

6. external expenditure (staff costs and associated overheads);

7. project management/technical and administrative support;

8. financial advisors;

9. technical advisors;

10. insurance advisors;

11. legal advisors;

12. other professional services (including asset management, architects, QS, surveyors, procurement,

site investigation, remediation and planning);

13. waste analysis;

14. ICT;

15. communications advisors;

16. associated overheads may include such expenses as travel expenses, room hire, printing,

accommodation and ICT costs; and

17. agreement to the incurring of costs and the appropriateness of sharing such costs between the
Councils will be in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

44267940.16\gh01 Tudf. 105
104



44267940.16\gh01

SCHEDULE 6 - ACCOUNTING PERIODS

Start of Accounting End of Accounting
Period Period
1 April 30 June
1 July 30 September
1 October 31 December
1 January 31 March
Tud. 106

105



SCHEDULE 7 - LIABILITY REPORT

The Liability Report shall include (but shall not be limited to):

Amount (all figures in round pounds)

Staff costs (and associated overheads) in progressing
the Project:-

e consultancy and advisors fees (legal,
financial, technical, insurance etc.);

e internal project management and
monitoring;

e internal professional advice.

Loss of funding support from Welsh Government.

Losses incurred due to:-

e loss of guaranteed Third Party Income identified
in the Contractor's base case financial model;

e liability on the remaining Councils to pay an
increased proportion of the payments due to the
Contractor under the Project Agreement;

e loss of non-guaranteed Third Party Income; and

e the cost of acquiring additional LAS allowances
as a consequence of the withdrawal or
termination (as the case may be) by a Council.

Any other reasonable losses, costs, claims and
damages arising from the remaining Councils within the
Project recommissioning alternative service provision if
the Project is no longer viable and the Project
Agreement is terminated.

Reasonable costs incurred by the Lead Council.

Any losses incurred under the Project Agreement and
Contract Documents.

Recognition of any mitigating factors including a
substitute waste source (whether an additional local
authority beyond the Councils or otherwise).

All other reasonable costs and losses arising out of or in
connection with a breach of this Agreement.

Certified as correct

(Signed)

(Date)

44267940.16\gh01 TU&T 107

106




SCHEDULE 8 - PAYMENT PROPORTIONS

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. %08
107



1.

2

CONTENTS

DEFINITIONS

INTRODUCTION AND INTERPRETATION

PART A — NON SERVICE PERIOD COST ALLOCATION

9

INTERIM ARRANGEMENTS

COMMISSIONING ARRANGEMENTS

COSTS IN RELATION TO EXISTING COUNCIL OWNED ASSETS

DEVELOPMENT COSTS FOR NEW PARTNERSHIP ASSETS AND ASSOCIATED COSTS

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT COSTS

DECOMMISSIONING & SITE RECLAMATION COSTS

PROCEEDS FROM DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

PART B — SERVICE PERIOD COST ALLOCATION

10 GENERAL PRINCIPLES IN RELATION TO COST ALLOCATIONS BASED ON TONNAGE

11 PRINCIPLES FOR DEALING WITH EXCESS PAYMENTS AND ADDITIONAL INCOME AND
WINDFALL GAINS

12 MECHANISM TO REALIGN TONNAGE BANDS (INCLUDING MINIMUM TONNAGE LEVELS)

13 TREATMENT COST PAYMENTS — BAND 0 ELEMENT OF THE UNITARY PAYMENT

14 TREATMENT COST PAYMENTS — BAND 1 ELEMENT OF THE UNITARY PAYMENT

15 TREATMENT COST PAYMENTS — BAND 2 ELEMENT OF THE UNITARY PAYMENT

16 TREATMENT COST PAYMENTS — BAND 3 ELEMENT OF THE UNITARY PAYMENT

17 LANDFILL COST PAYMENTS

18 APCR ELEMENT OF THE UNITARY PAYMENT

19 HAULAGE ELEMENT OF THE UNITARY PAYMENT

20 PM2.5 COSTS

21 COMMUNITY BENEFIT FUND

22 OTHER COSTS

23 ADDITIONAL INCOME

24 EXCESS PAYMENTS

25 WELSH GOVERNMENT FUNDING

26 RECONCILIATION

27 PAYMENTS TO LEAD COUNCIL

44267940.16\gh01 Tua. 109

108



28 PAYMENTS BY LEAD COUNCIL
Appendix A — Minimum Tonnage
Appendix B — Cost Sharing

Appendix C1 — Forecast Tonnage
Appendix C2 — Band 1 Tonnage
Appendix C3 — Band 2 Tonnage
Appendix C4 — Band 3 Tonnage
Appendix C5 — Maximum Tonnage
Appendix D — Outgoing Payments

Appendix E — Incoming Payments

44267940.16\gh01

Tud. %10
109



1.1

2.1

2.2

DEFINITIONS

Defined terms within this Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions) shall have the meaning specified in
Clause 1 (Definitions and Interpretation) of this Agreement or in the Project Agreement, as
appropriate.

INTRODUCTION AND INTERPRETATION

This Schedule 8 (Payment Proportions) is divided into the following parts:

. Part A — Non Service Period cost allocation

° Part B — Service Period cost allocation

The key principles generally applicable in relation to the allocation of costs and income between
the Councils are:

. Non Service Period costs will be shared equally between the Councils with the exception
of Interim Services Payments and Commissioning Payments, which will be allocated
based on each Councils usage (unless otherwise specified in this Agreement).

. Service Period costs and income will be split between the Councils pro rata to the
tonnages delivered or forecast to be delivered by each Council.

PART A — NON SERVICE PERIOD COST ALLOCATION

3. INTERIM ARRANGEMENTS
Payments to the Contractor for the Interim Services will be based on each Councils actual usage of
the Interim Services.
3.1 Interim Services Payments
ISPm (acbFG) = ISWTPm1 acpFe) + (TMPm (acpFc) * Is) + (ISWDPm-1 acpFe) * (1 + ISM) —
ISNADm (a.cp,F,G) — ISPSDm (acpF.G) + ISPTCmacDFG)
Where:
ISPm the Interim Services Payment for Contract Month 'm' for Isle of Anglesey Council
(ACDF.G) 'A', Conwy Council 'C', Denbighshire Council 'D', Flintshire Council 'F' and
Gwynedd Council 'G' respectively
ISWTPm-1 the Interim Services Waste Transport Payment in Contract Month 'm-1' for Isle of
(ACDF.G) Anglesey Council 'A', Conwy Council 'C', Denbighshire Council 'D', Flintshire
Council 'F' and Gwynedd Council 'G' respectively
TMPm for each Contract Month 'm’ during the Interim Services Period the Transport
(ACD,F,G) Management Payment in Contract Month ‘m’ (a.coF.c) for Isle of Anglesey Council
'A', Conwy Council 'C', Denbighshire Council 'D', Flintshire Council 'F' and
Gwynedd Council 'G' respectively
s the Interim Services Payment Indexation Factor for Contract Year'y'
ISWDPm-1 the Interim Services Waste Disposal Payment in Contract Month 'm-1' for Isle of
(AC/D/F.G) Anglesey Council 'A’, Conwy Council 'C', Denbighshire Council 'D', Flintshire
Council 'F' and Gwynedd Council 'G' respectively
44267940.16\gh01 TUQ 111

110



ISM the premium of 10%

ISNADm the Interim Services Non-Acceptance Deduction calculated in accordance with
(AC,D,F,G) paragraph 3.3

ISPSDm the Interim Services Performance Standard Deductions calculated in accordance
(AC,D,F,G) with paragraph 3.4

ISPTCm the Maintenance Payment

(A,C,DF,G)

3.1.1 In accordance with the terms of the Project Agreement, the Contractor shall be
responsible for, and will not be recompensed for, any additional costs incurred in the
treatment/disposal of Contract Waste during the Interim Services Period which are not
covered by the Interim Services Payment.

3.2 Interim Services Indexation

3.2.1 The Transport Management Payment will be indexed by 15 on the relevant Indexation

Date.

3.3 Interim Services Non-Acceptance Deduction

3.3.1 Where, during the Interim Services Period, the Contractor has Not Accepted Contract
Waste, the Interim Services Non Acceptance Deduction (ISNAD) shall be calculated and
applied as follows and will be payable by the Contractor subject to the Councils using
reasonable and practical endeavours in the circumstances to minimise and mitigate such

costs:

ISNAD m acpFc = ISNADR * ISCWNAm @cDFG)

Where:

ISNADR = ALGF.cpFe) — (LFGF * 12)

And further where:

ISNADm the Interim Services Non-Acceptance Deduction for Contract Month 'm' for

(ACD,F,G) Isle of Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’,
Flintshire Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively

ISNADR the Interim Services Non-Acceptance Deduction Rate per tonne

ALGF the actual demonstrable landfill gate fee cost per tonne incurred by the Isle of

(ACDF.,G) Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council * C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire
Council ‘F and Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively, having used reasonable
and practicable endeavours in the circumstances to minimise and mitigate
such cost, in respect of each tonne of ISCWNAm-1

LFGF the Landfill Gate Fee

ISCWNAm the tonnage of Contract Waste Not Accepted in Contract Month “m-1” for Isle

(A.C,DF.G) of Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’,
Flintshire Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively

l2 the Full Indexation Factor

44267940.16\gh01

Tud.A412
111




3.4 Interim Services Performance Standard Deductions

3.4.1 The Councils acknowledge that, as Performance Standards will be agreed as part of the
scoping of the Interim Services in accordance with the Project Agreement, it is only then
that the Interim Services Performance Standard Deductions can be formulated and
agreed.

3.4.2 The Interim Services Performance Standard Deductions in respect of Contract Month ‘m’
shall be calculated in accordance with the Performance Measurement Framework (as
contained within Part B of Schedule 2 (Authority's Requirements) of the Project
Agreement) and shall be applied in respect of Performance Standard Deductions incurred
in Contract Month ‘m-1". In no circumstances shall such Deductions exceed the Interim
Services Performance Standard Deduction Cap.

3.4.3 The Councils acknowledge that, Interim Services Performance Standard Deductions shall
not accrue towards the Contractor Default thresholds in limb (q) of such definition.

3.5 Contract Month following the end of the Interim Service Period

3.5.1 Each Councils payment for the final Contract Month of the Interim Services Period will be

added to the first payment in respect of the Commissioning Period.
4. COMMISSIONING ARRANGEMENTS
4.1 Commissioning Payment
411 The Commissioning Payment for each relevant Payment Period during the
Commissioning Period shall be calculated in accordance with paragraph 4.1.2.
4.1.2 The Commissioning Payment (CP) for each Contract Month ‘m’ shall be:
CPm acpre) = CGFCm acbre + CPTCm (acprc) + CTHCm acpre) + (TMPm (acpro) * 14) -
CNADm acpFc — CPSDm (acpFc) - CTMANm (acpre + AHWPm (acpre + AWPm (acpFG) +/-
ISPacpF.c)
Where:
CPm the Commissioning Payment for Contract Month 'm’ for Isle of Anglesey Council ‘A’,
(ACD/F,G) Conwy Council * C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd
Council ‘G’ respectively

CGFCnm the Commissioning Gate Fee Charge for Contract Month ‘m’ for Isle of Angelsey

(ACDF,G) ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire Council ‘F’' and
Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively, equal to:
(CGF * CWm-1 * l4); where
CGF equals the Commissioning Gate Fee; and
CWhm-1(acpF,G) equals the tonnage of Contracted Waste in Contract Month 'm-1' for
Isle of Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire
Council ‘F* and Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively. In respect of the first Contract
Month of the Commissioning Period only, CWm-1 (ac,pF.c) shall be deemed to be
1,080 tonnes

l4 the Commissioning Payment Indexation Factor for Contract Year'y'

44267940.16\gh01 TUﬂl. 113

112



CPTCm the Commissioning Pass Through Costs for Contract Month 'm' calculated in
(ACDF.G) accordance with paragraph 4.3 for Isle of Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’,
Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire Council ‘F* and Gwynedd Council ‘G’
respectively
CTHCm the Commissioning Transport Haulage Charge in Contract Month ‘m-1’ for Isle of
(ACD,F,G) Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire
Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively
TMPm the Transport Management Payment for Contract Month ‘m’ for Isle of Anglesey
(AC/D/F,G) Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire Council ‘F’ and
Gynedd Council ‘G’ respectively
CNADm the Commissioning Non-Acceptance Deduction for Contract Month 'm' for Isle of
(ACD/F.G) Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire
Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively, calculated in accordance with
paragraph 4.4
CPSDn the Commissioning Performance Standard Deductions for Contract Month 'm' for
(ACDF.G) Isle of Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire
Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively, calculated in accordance with
paragraph 4.5
CTMANm the Commissioning Transport Mileage Adjustment for Contract Month 'm' for Isle of
(ACD/F,G) Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire
Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively, calculated in accordance with
paragraph 4.6
AHWP, the Ad Hoc Waste Payment for Contract Month “m” for Isle of Anglesey Council ‘A’,
(ACD/F,G) Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd
Council ‘G’ respectively.
AWPH the Additional Waste Payment for Contract Month “m” for Isle of Anglesey ‘A’
(AC,DF,G) Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd
Council ‘G’ respectively.
ISP (acpFc) | the amount payable for the provision of Interim Services in respect of the final
Contract Month of the Interim Services Period for Isle of Anglesey Council ‘A’
Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd
Council ‘G’ respectively, calculated in accordance with paragraph 3.1
41.3 In accordance with the terms of the Project Agreement, the Contractor shall be
responsible for, and will not be recompensed for, any additional costs incurred in the
treatment/disposal of Contract Waste during the Commissioning Period which are not
covered by the Commissioning Payment.
4.2 Commissioning Gate Fee indexation

421 The Commissioning Payment Indexation Factor for Contract Year ‘y’ represents the
increase or decrease in the Index over the period since the setting of the Indexvase at the
Price Reference Date as shown below and shall be calculated as follows:

lg= (Indexy) / (lndexbase)

Where:

44267940.16\gh01

Tud. 114
113



l4 the Commissioning Payment Indexation Factor for the
relevant Contract Year

Indexy the average of the values published for the Index for the
three (3) Month period immediately preceding the calendar
month prior to the Readiness Date

IndeXbase means the average of the values published for the Index for
the period October to December immediately preceding the
Price Reference Date being, 238.03

422 The Commissioning Payment Indexation Factor shall be applied from the Readiness Date
and each anniversary thereafter.

4.3 Commissioning Pass Through Costs
CPTCma.cpFc = NNDRm@acDFc + MPm (acDF.c)

Where:

CPTCmncpre |the Commissioning Pass Through Costs for Contract Month ‘m’ for Isle of
Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire
Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively

NNDRm for each Contract Month ‘m’ during the first ninety (90) days of the
ACDF.G) Commissioning Period the NNDR incurred by the Contractor for any Contract
Month ‘m-1" for the lIsle of Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C,
Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd Council ‘G’. The
NNDR for the relevant month will be divided between the Partner Councils
proportionate to the Commissioning Waste delivered during that month. For
the avoidance of doubt, the Commissioning Pass Through Costs include all
NNDRm related to the first ninety (90) days of the Commissioning Period, even
if such payments are made by the Contractor outside such ninety (90) day
period

MPm (a.cDF.0) the Maintenance Payment which Flintshire Council shall be required to
confirm to the Contractor on the fifth (5th) Business Day of each Payment
Period. This amount shall be divided between the Partner Councils
proportionate to the Commissioning Waste delivered during that month

4.4 Commissioning Non-Acceptance Deduction

441 Where, during the Commissioning Period, the Contractor does Not Accept Contract
Waste, the Commissioning Non-Acceptance Deduction (CNAD) shall be calculated and
applied as follows, subject to the Authority using reasonable and practical endeavours in
the circumstances to minimise and mitigate such costs:

CNADm@.cpF,c) = (CNADR * CWNAm@a.coFe) + CTMANm@aCDF,G)

Where:
CNADm the Commissioning Non-Acceptance Deduction for Contract Month 'm' for Isle
of Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’,
44267940.16\gh01 TUQ. 115

114



(ACDF.G)

Flintshire Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively

CNADR

(A,C,D,F,G)

the Commissioning Non-Acceptance Deduction Rate per tonne for Isle of
Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire

Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively, being:
CDncprc — (CGF * la)
where:

CD is the demonstrable direct costs for the treatment and/or disposal of
Contract Waste Not Accepted converted to a cost per tonne for Isle of
Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire
Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively (excluding all costs relating
to the matters referred to in the calculation of the Transport Administration
Charge and the Commissioning Transport Mileage Adjustment), subject to
each relevant Authority using reasonable and practical endeavours in the
circumstances to minimise and mitigate such costs; and

CGF is the Commissioning Gate Fee.

the Commissioning Payment Indexation Factor for Contract Year'y'

CWNAm

(A,C,D,F,G)

for each Contract Month ‘m’ in the Commissioning Period the tonnage of
Contract Waste Not Accepted in Contract Month 'm-1' for Isle of Anglesey
Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire Council
‘F’ and Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively

CTMANmM is the Commissioning Transport Mileage Adjustment calculated in

(ACDF.G)

accordance with paragraph 4.6.2 in respect of Contract Month ‘m-1’ for Isle of
Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire
Council ‘F* and Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively in the Commissioning
Period, subject to paragraph 4.6.

4.5 Commissioning Performance Standard Deductions

4.51

The Commissioning Performance Standard Deductions (CPSD) in respect of Contract
Month ‘m’ shall be calculated in accordance with the Performance Measurement
Framework (as contained within the Payment Mechanism) and shall apply in respect of
Performance Standard Deductions incurred in Contract Month 'm-1’. In no circumstances
shall such Deductions exceed the Commissioning Performance Standard Deduction Cap.

452 For the avoidance of doubt, Commissioning Performance Standard Deductions shall not
accrue towards the Contractor Default thresholds in limb (q) of such definition.
4.6 Commissioning Transport Mileage Adjustment
461 The Commissioning Transport Mileage Adjustment (CTMAN) in respect of Contract

44267940.16\gh01

Waste delivered directly by or on behalf of the Authorities to a Contingency Delivery Point
following the implementation of the Contingency Plans during the Commissioning Period
for Contract Month 'm' shall be calculated in accordance with the following, and such
Commissioning Transport Mileage Adjustment shall not apply to any Contract Waste Not
Accepted as referred to in paragraph 4.4 above in respect of which Commissioning Non-
Acceptance Deductions shall be applied.

Tud. 116
115



46.2 The total Commissioning Transport Mileage Adjustment for delivery of Contract Waste to
a Contingent Delivery Point, in respect of limb (b) of the definition of a Delivery Event
(TMACm) for Contract Month, ‘m’ shall be calculated as:

CTMACm.c.oF.6) = Y CTMAC|m-1

Where:

CTMACjm-1 = (3 MAC; + TACoe * I2) * XM/TM

And where:

CTMACH the Commissioning Transport Mileage Adjustments for Additional Mileage
(ACD,F,G) relating to delivery of Contract Waste to a Contingency Delivery Point as
calculated for Contract Month ‘m’ for Isle of Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy
Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire Council ‘F* and Gwynedd
Council ‘G’ respectively

YJCMACjm- | the sum of the Commissioning Transport Mileage Adjustment relating to
1 delivery of Contract Waste to a Contingency Delivery Point for Additional
Mileage in respect of each journey §’ in respect of each Delivery Event within a
Contract Month ‘m-1’

MAC; the Mileage Adjustment Cost for Additional Mileage in respect of all journeys j’
in respect of each Delivery Event occurring within a Contract Month

TACoe the Transport Administration Charge in respect of the Delivery Event. For the
avoidance of doubt this charge is only levied once on the first occurrence of
the relevant Delivery Event

XM the Additional Mileage incurred in the month ‘m’ attributable to Council X,
being Isle of Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council
‘D’, Flintshire Council ‘F’ and Gwynedd Council ‘G’ respectively

™ the total Additional Mileage incurred in the month ‘m’, being the sum of the
Additional Mileage incurred in respect of Isle of Anglesey Council ‘A’, Conwy
Council ‘C’, Denbighshire Council ‘D’, Flintshire Council ‘F* and Gwynedd
Council ‘G’ respectively

5. COSTS IN RELATION TO EXISTING COUNCIL OWNED ASSETS

51 Any costs to be incurred in order to prepare, operate and/or maintain any assets owned by the
Councils to meet the requirements of the Project shall be borne by the relevant Councils and shall
not be subject to any sharing and/or allocation.

6. DEVELOPMENT COSTS FOR NEW PARTNERSHIP ASSETS AND ASSOCIATED COSTS

6.1 Any costs incurred to develop and build any new Partnership assets and any associated capital
expenditure reasonably incurred will be shared equally by the Councils.

6.2 Each Councils share shall be equal to:
ADCS = NPAC * E«
where

44267940.16\gh01 TUQ 117

116



ADCS a Council's development cost share

NPAC new Partnership assets development costs

E% means equal share being 20.00%

6.3 The income from the sale of the assets at the expiry or termination of the Project shall be shared in
a similar manner.

6.4 Where land has been provided by a Council to allow the development of a new Partnership asset
then such land shall be returned to the relevant Council and will not form part of the development
costs apportioned pursuant to paragraph 6.2.

6.5 Where the development cost of the asset includes the cost of the land as such having been
provided jointly by the Councils then the Councils shall jointly agree how to dispose of the asset at
the expiry or termination of the Project and share any proceeds or costs arising from such disposal.

7. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT COSTS

71 Contract Management Costs will be shared equally by the Councils.

7.2 Each Council's share shall be equal to 20% of the Contract Management Costs incurred in any
period.

7.3 Each Councils share shall be equal to:

CCMCS =CMC * E%

where
CCMCS a Council's Contract Management Cost share
CMC Contract Management Cost
E% means equal share being 20.00%

8. DECOMMISSIONING & SITE RECLAMATION COSTS

8.1 Subject to paragraph 8.3, decommissioning and site reclamation costs incurred upon expiry or
termination of the Project Agreement to return the Site to its original state shall be shared equally
by the Councils.

8.2 Each Council's share shall be equal to:

CDRCS =DSRC * E%
where
CDRCS a Council's decommissioning and site reclamation cost share
DSRC decommissioning and site reclamation costs
44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 73. 18

117




E% means equal share being 20.00%

8.3 Where at the time of expiry or early termination of the Project Agreement Flintshire Council
proposes to continue using the Facility in accordance with Clause 11.6 then Flintshire Council shall
be solely liable and responsible for any future decommissioning and reclamation costs. In such an
event paragraph 8.2 shall not apply.

9. PROCEEDS FROM DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

9.1 Where the decommissioning of the Facility includes a sale of the assets or the Facility is sold to a
new operator then any proceeds received pursuant to such sale shall be shared equally by
Councils.

9.2 Each Council's share shall be equal to:

CSPSA =PSA* E

where
CSPSA a Council's share of proceeds from sale of assets or the Facility
PSA proceeds from sale of assets or the Facility
E% means equal share being 20.00%
44267940.16\gh01 TUH. 119

118



PART B — SERVICE PERIOD COST ALLOCATION

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

11.

12.

121

12.2

13.

13.1

GENERAL PRINCIPLES IN RELATION TO COST ALLOCATIONS BASED ON
TONNAGE

Payments to the Contractor for the Treatment of Contract Waste will be based on the
actual tonnages delivered by each of the Councils subject to the guaranteed Minimum
Tonnage.

Payments to the Contractor for the Haulage Services will be based on the actual
tonnages delivered by each of the Councils, subject to not exceeding the Forecast
Tonnages in Appendix C1.

Where tonnage delivered by a Council exceeds the Forecast Tonnages in Appendix
C1, the Council delivering such excess tonnage shall be solely responsible for the
costs associated with the transport of such tonnage.

Where a Council fails to deliver the guaranteed Minimum Tonnage, the guaranteed
Minimum Tonnage will be deemed to have been delivered for the purposes of
calculating the treatment of waste payments. Payments made in such instances will
result in an 'excess payment' and will be placed in a reserve account.

PRINCIPLES FOR DEALING WITH EXCESS PAYMENTS AND ADDITIONAL
INCOME AND WINDFALL GAINS

Excess payments shall be 'placed in a reserve' to be used by the Councils (at the Joint
Committee's discretion) and subject to review and agreement by the Joint Committee
such excess shall be used in the manner deemed appropriate at the time including but
not limited to being utilised to fund project expenses, or being shared on a periodic
basis upon expiry or termination of the Project, utilising the percentages used to
allocate the tonnage bandings as set out in Appendix B.

The reserve shall be subject to periodic reviews with the first review being no later
than the end of the first full year of the Service Period.

The Councils agree that any additional income shall be shared between each of the
Councils on a pro-rata basis proportional to the cumulative actual tonnage delivered
by each Council.

MECHANISM TO REALIGN TONNAGE BANDS (INCLUDING MINIMUM TONNAGE
LEVELS)

The Councils may subject to mutual agreement notwithstanding the bandings set out
in this Schedule 8 agree to a realignment of the tonnage banding among themselves.

A Council is not precluded from exchanging (by mutual agreement with the relevant
Councils) its tonnage allocation with another Council, provided that any such
arrangement shall ensure that there is no price impact on other Councils.

TREATMENT COST PAYMENTS — BAND 0 ELEMENT OF THE UNITARY
PAYMENT

Calculation of the Band 0 Element of the Unitary Payment - Anglesey

The Band 0 Element of the Unitary Payment (BOP) for any Contract Month 'm' for the
Isle of Anglesey Council shall be calculated in accordance with the following formula:

BOPam = BOTam * BORy * |1

where

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 120,

119



BOPAm

the Band 0 Element of the Unitary Payment for Contract Month
'm' for Isle of Anglesey Council

BOTAm

the tonnage delivered in Contract Month 'm' for Isle of Anglesey
Council in respect of Band 0 Tonnage

BORy

the Band 0 Rate for Contract Year'y'

the Base Payment Index for Contract Year 'y'

13.2 Calculation of the Band 0 Element of the Unitary Payment — Conwy

The Band 0 Element of the Unitary Payment (BOP) for any Contract Month 'm' for the
Conwy Council shall be calculated in accordance with the following formula:

BOPcm = BOTcm * BORy * |4

where

BOPCm

the Band 0 Element of the Unitary Payment for Contract Month
'm' for Conwy Council

BOTCm

the tonnage delivered in Contract Month 'm' for Conwy Council in
respect of Band 0 Tonnage

BOR,

the Band 0 Rate for Contract Year'y'

l4

the Base Payment Index for Contract Year 'y'

13.3 Calculation of the Band 0 Element of the Unitary Payment — Denbighshire

The Band 0 Element of the Unitary Payment (BOP) for any Contract Month 'm' for the
Denbighshire Council shall be calculated in accordance with the following formula:

BOPom = BOTom * BORy * |1

where

BOPDm

the Band 0 of the Unitary Payment for Contract Month 'm' for
Denbighshire Council

BOTDm

the tonnage delivered in Contract Month 'm' for Denbighshire
Council in respect of Band 0 Tonnage

BORy

the Band 0 Rate for Contract Year'y'

l4

the Base Payment Index for Contract Year'y'

13.4 Calculation of the Band 0 Element of the Unitary Payment - Flintshire

The Band 0 Element of the Unitary Payment (BOP) for any Contract Month 'm' for the
Flintshire Council shall be calculated in accordance with the following formula:

44267940.16\gh01

Tud. 121
120




BOPrm = BOTrm * BORy * |4

where

BOPFm

the Band 0 of the Unitary Payment for Contract Month 'm' for
Flintshire Council

BOTrm

the tonnage delivered in Contract Month 'm’ for Flintshire Council
in respect of Band 0 Tonnage

BORy

the Band 0 Rate for Contract Year'y'

l4

the Base Payment Index for Contract Year'y'

13.5 Calculation of the Band 0 Element of the Unitary Payment - Gwynedd

The Band 0 Element of the Unitary Payment (BOP) for any Contract Month 'm' for the
Gwynedd Council shall be calculated in accordance with the following formula:

BOPom = B0Tem * BORy * I

where

BOPcm

the Band 0 of the Unitary Payment for Contract Month 'm' for
Gwynedd Council

BOTem

the tonnage delivered in Contract Month 'm' for Gwynedd Council
in respect of Band 0 Tonnage

BOR,

the Band 0 Rate for Contract Year'y'

l4

the Base Payment Index for Contract Year 'y'

For the avoidance of doubt, in respect of paragraphs 13.1 to 13.5:

- All Contracted Waste accepted on a cumulative basis in a Contract Year is
Minimum Tonnage until the limit as set out in Appendix A is reached on a
cumulative basis in a Contract Year.

- Once the limit of Minimum Tonnage (Appendix A) is reached on a cumulative
basis in a Contract Year, BOP@am, cm, bm Fm, am) Will equal zero for all subsequent
months in the Contract Year.

14. TREATMENT COST PAYMENTS — BAND 1 ELEMENT OF THE UNITARY
PAYMENT
141 The Band 1 Element of the Unitary Payment is only applicable where the actual

tonnage delivered by a Council is in excess of its guaranteed Minimum Tonnage.

14.2 Band 1 Element of the Unitary Payment for Band 1 Tonnage - Anglesey

The Band 1 Element of the Unitary Payment payable for tonnage falling in Band 1
(B1Pa) for any Contract Month 'm' for the Isle of Anglesey Council shall be calculated
in accordance with the following formula:

44267940.16\gh01

Tud. 122,
121




B1P1am = B1Tatim * B1R1y * |2

where

B1Pam the Band 1 Element of the Unitary Payment for tonnage falling in
Band 1 for Contract Month 'm' for Isle of Anglesey Council

B1TATim actual tonnage delivered in month 'm' by Isle of Anglesey Council
payable at the Band 1 Rate for Band 1 for the bandings as set
out in Appendix C2

B1Ry the Band 1 Rate for Band 1 for Contract Year'y'

2 the Full Indexation Factor for Contract Year'y'

14.3 Band 1 Element of the Unitary Payment for Band 1 Tonnage - Conwy

The Band 1 Element of the Unitary Payment payable for tonnage falling in Band 1
(B1P¢) for any Contract Month 'm' for Conwy Council shall be calculated in accordance
with the following formula:

B1Pc =B1Tcm *B1Ry * I2

where

B1Pcm the Band 1 of the Unitary Payment for tonnage falling in Band 1
for Contract Month 'm' for Conwy Council

B1Tcm actual tonnage delivered in month 'm' by Conwy Council payable
at the Band 1 Rate for Band 1 for the bandings as set out in
Appendix C2

B1Ry the Band 1 Rate for Band 1 for Contract Year'y'

l2 the Full Indexation Factor for Contract Year'y'

14.4 Band 1 Element of the Unitary Payment for Band 1 tonnage - Denbighshire

The Band 1 Element of the Unitary Payment payable for tonnage falling in Band 1
(B1Pp) for any Contract Month 'm' for Denbighshire Council shall be calculated in
accordance with the following formula:

B1Pom = B1Tom *B1Ry * I2

where
B1Ppm the Band 1 of the Unitary Payment for tonnage falling in Band 1
for Contract Month 'm' for Denbighshire Council
B1Tom actual tonnage delivered in month 'm' by Denbighshire Council

payable at the Band 1 Rate for Band 1 for the bandings as set out
in Appendix C2

44267940.16\gh01

Tud. 123
122




B1R,

the Band 1 Rate for Band 1 for Contract Year'y'

the Full Indexation Factor for Contract Year'y'

14.5 Band 1 Element of the Unitary Payment for Band 1 Tonnage - Flintshire

The Band 1 Element of the Unitary Payment payable for tonnage falling in Band 1
(B1Pe) for any Contract Month 'm' for Flintshire Council shall be calculated in
accordance with the following formula:

B1Prm = B1Trm* B1Ry * I2

where

B1PFm

the Band 1 of the Unitary Payment for tonnage falling in Band 1
for Contract Month 'm' for Flintshire Council

B1Tem

actual tonnage delivered in month 'm' by Flintshire Council
payable at the Band 1 Rate for Band 1 for the bandings as set out
in Appendix C2

RIR,

the Band 1 Rate for Band 1 for Contract Year'y'

the Full Indexation Factor for Contract Year'y'

14.6 Band 1 Element of the Unitary Payment for Band 1 Tonnage - Gwynedd

The Band 1 Element of the Unitary Payment payable for tonnage falling in Band 1
(B1Pg) for any Contract Month 'm' for Gwynedd Council shall be calculated in
accordance with the following formula:

B1Pem = B1Tem * B1Ry * I2

where

B1PGm

the Band 1 of the Unitary Payment for tonnage falling in Band 1
for Contract Month 'm' for Gwynedd Council

B1TGm

actual tonnage delivered in month 'm' by Gwynedd Council
payable at the Band 1 Rate for Band 1 for the bandings as set out
in Appendix C2

B1R,

the Band 1 Rate for Band 1 for Contract Year'y'

the Full Indexation Factor for Contract Year'y'

- For the avoidance of doubt, in respect of paragraphs 14.2 to 14.6:-

- All Contracted Waste accepted on a cumulative basis in a Contract Year is
Band 0 Tonnage until the limit as set out in Appendix A is reached on a
cumulative basis in a Contract Year.

44267940.16\gh01

Tud. 124,
123




- All Contracted Waste accepted on a cumulative basis in a Contract Year in
excess of the Band 0 Tonnage limit as set out in Appendix A is Band 1 Tonnage
until the limit as set out in Appendix C2 is reached on a cumulative basis in a
Contract Year.

- Once the cumulative tonnage of Contracted Waste in a Contract Year is equal
to or exceeds the higher limit of Band 1 Tonnage, B1P@am, cm, bm Fm, am) Will equal
zero for the rest of Contract Month ‘m’ and all subsequent Months in such
Contract Year, and the subsequent tonnage of Contracted Waste for the rest of
that Contract Month and the remaining Contract Months in that Contract Year
shall be charged at the appropriate higher band rate.

15. TREATMENT COST PAYMENTS - BAND 2 ELEMENT OF THE UNITARY
PAYMENT

15.1 The Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment (B2Pa) is only applicable where the
actual tonnage delivered by a Council is in excess of the Band 0 and Band 1 tonnage
as set out in Appendix C1.

15.2 Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment for Band 2 Tonnage - Anglesey
The Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment payable for tonnage falling in Band 2
(B2P») for any Contract Month 'm' for the Isle of Anglesey Council shall be calculated

in accordance with the following formula:

B2Pam = B2Tam * B2Ry * I2

where
B2Pam the Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment for tonnage falling in
Band 2 for Contract Month 'm' for Isle of Anglesey Council
B2Tam actual tonnage delivered in month 'm' by Isle of Anglesey Council
payable at the Band 2 Rate
B2Ry the Rate for Band 2 for Contract Year'y'
I2 the Full Indexation Factor for Contract Year'y'

15.3 Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment for Band 2 Tonnage - Conwy
The Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment payable for tonnage falling in Band 2
(B2Pc) for any Contract Month 'm' for Conwy Council shall be calculated in
accordance with the following formula:

B2Pcm = B2Tcm * B2Ry * |2

where
B2Pcm the Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment for tonnage falling in
Band 2 for Contract Month 'm' for Conwy Council
B2Tcm actual tonnage delivered in month 'm' by Conwy Council payable
at the Band 2 Rate
B2Ry the Rate for Band 2 for Contract Year'y'
44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 1%5

124



the Full Indexation Factor for Contract Year'y'

15.4 Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment for Band 2 Tonnage - Denbighshire

The Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment payable for tonnage falling in Band 2
(B2Pp) for any Contract Month 'm' for Denbighshire Council shall be calculated in
accordance with the following formula:

B2Ppm = B2Tpm * B2Ry * |2

where

BZPDm

the Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment for tonnage falling in
Band 2 for Contract Month 'm' for Denbighshire Council

B2Tom

actual tonnage delivered in month 'm' by Denbighshire Council
payable at the Band 2 Rate

B2R,

the Rate for Band 2 for Contract Year'y'

I

the Full Indexation Factor for Contract Year'y'

15.5 Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment for Band 2 Tonnage - Flintshire

The Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment payable for tonnage falling in Band 2
(B2P¢) for any Contract Month 'm' for Flintshire Council shall be calculated in
accordance with the following formula:

B2Prm = B2Trm * B2Ry * |2

where

B2Prm

the Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment for tonnage falling in
Band 2 for Contract Month 'm' for Flintshire Council

BZTFm

actual tonnage delivered in month 'm' by Flintshire Council
payable at the Band 2 Rate

B2Ry

the Rate for Band 2 for Contract Year'y'

I2

the Full Indexation Factor for Contract Year'y'

15.6 Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment for Band 2 Tonnage - Gwynedd

The Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment payable for tonnage falling in Band 2
(B2Pg) for any Contract Month 'm' for Gwynedd Council shall be calculated in
accordance with the following formula:

B2Pem = B2Tem * B2Ry * |2

where

44267940.16\gh01

Tud. 126,
125




B2Pcm

the Band 2 Element of the Unitary Payment for tonnage falling in
Band 2 for Contract Month 'm' for Gwynedd Council

B2Tem actual tonnage delivered in month 'm' by Gwynedd Council
payable at the Band 2 Rate
B2Ry the Rate for Band 2 for Contract Year'y'

the Full Indexation Factor for Contract Year'y'

For the avoidance of doubt, in respect of paragraphs 15.2 to paragraph 15.6:-

All Contracted Waste accepted on a cumulative basis in a Contract Year is
Band 0 Tonnage until the limit as set out in Appendix A is reached on a
cumulative basis in a Contract Year.

All Contracted Waste accepted on a cumulative basis in a Contract Year in
excess of the Band 0 Tonnage limit as set out in Appendix A is Band 1 Tonnage
until the limit as set out in Appendix C2 is reached on a cumulative basis in a
Contract Year.

All Contracted Waste accepted on a cumulative basis in a Contract Year in
excess of the Band 1 Tonnage limit is Band 2 Tonnage until the limit as set out
in Appendix C3 is reached on a cumulative basis in a Contract Year.

Once the cumulative tonnage of Contracted Waste in a Contract Year is equal
to or exceeds the higher limit of Band 2 Tonnage, B2P (am, cm, Fm, om, am) will equal
zero for the rest of Contract Month ‘m’ and all subsequent Months in such
Contract Year, and the subsequent tonnage of Contracted Waste for the rest of
that Contract Month and the remaining Contract Months in that Contract Year
shall be charged at the appropriate higher band rate.

16. TREATMENT COST PAYMENTS — BAND 3 ELEMENT OF THE UNITARY
PAYMENT
16.1 Tonnage delivered by a Council in excess of the combined Band 0, Band 1 and Band

2 limit will be charged at the prevailing Third Party Waste price and payable by the
relevant Council and include any breakage costs applied.

17. LANDFILL COST PAYMENTS

171 The Landfill Payments shall be apportioned in accordance with the following formula:

LCPxm = LPm * XaT1m/TTDm

where
LCPxm Landfill cost payments for Council 'x' for Contract Month 'm'
LPm Landfill Payment incurred for Contract Month 'm'
XAT1m the actual tonnage delivered for Council 'X' in Contract Month 'm’
where X=AorCorDorForG
TTDm Total tonnage delivered in Contract Month 'm' being the sum of

44267940.16\gh01

Tud. 127
126




18. APCR ELEMENT OF THE UNITARY PAYMENT

18.1 APCR payments shall be apportioned in accordance with the following formula:
APCRExm = APCREm * Xat1m/TTDm
where

APCRExm the APCR Element of the Unitary Payment for Council 'x' for
Contract Month 'm'

APCREm the APCR Element of the Unitary Payment for Contract Month 'm'

XAT1m the actual tonnage delivered for Council 'X"' in Contract Month 'm'
where X=AorCorDorForG

TTDm Total tonnage delivered in Contract Month 'm' being the sum of
AaT1im, CaT1m, DAT1m, FATIm @and Gatim

19. HAULAGE ELEMENT OF THE UNITARY PAYMENT

191 This paragraph shall apply where Haulage Services are being provided by the
Contractor pursuant to Clause 21A (Haulage Services) and Schedule 33 (Haulage
Services) of the Project Agreement.

19.2 The Haulage Element of the Unitary Payment for each Council shall be payable by the
Councils pro rata to tonnage delivered provided the tonnage delivered by a Council is
not in excess of the Forecast Tonnage set out in Appendix C1.

19.3 Where a Council has tonnage delivered in excess of the Forecast Tonnage set out in
Appendix C1 it will be solely responsible for paying the costs associated with the
delivery of such tonnage to the Facility.

20. PM2.5 COSTS

201 Where PM2.5 costs are incurred they shall be shared between each of the Councils
on a pro-rata basis proportional to the cumulative actual tonnage delivered by each
Council.

20.2 PM2.5 Costs shall be apportioned in accordance with the following formula:

PM2.5xm = CPM2.5m * Max( Xwt/12, XaT1m ) /TTDm
where
PM2.5xm The payment for PM2.5 for Council 'X' for Contract Month 'm’
where X=A,orCorDorForG
CPM2.5m the demonstrable costs incurred by the Contractor in relation to
PM 2.5 monitoring in Contract Month ‘m’
44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 12886

Aatim, Cat1m, DaT1m, FaT1im and Gatim

127



XmT/12

means the Minimum Tonnage for Council 'X' divided by 12 where
X=AorCorDorForG

XAT1m

the actual tonnage delivered for Council 'X' in Contract Month 'm’
where X= AorCorDorForG

TTDm

Total tonnage delivered in Contract Month 'm' being the sum of
Max( Awtiz, Aatim) and

Max( Cwmt12 Cat1m) and
Max( Dwmt/12, Datim) and
Max( Fmt12, Fatim ) and

Max( Gmt1z2, GaTim)

21. COMMUNITY BENEFIT FUND

211 The Community Benefit Fund will comprise of payments made by the Contractor in to
the CBF Account and any contributions from the Councils.

21.2 The total funds available under the Community Benefit Fund will be apportioned in
accordance with the following formula:

CBFxy = CBFB y-1 * Max( Xurt, Xaty-1) /TTD y-1

where
CBFxy Other Costs for Council 'X' for Contract Year 'y’ where X = A, or C
orDorForG
CBFBy-1 Community Fund Benefit Balance for Contract Year 'y-1'
Xwmt means the Minimum Tonnage for Council 'X' where X = A, or C or
DorForG
XAaTy-1 the actual tonnage delivered for Council ‘X" in Contract Year 'y-1'
where X= AorCorDorForG
TTDy-1 Total tonnage delivered in Contract Year 'y-1' being the sum of
Max( Awmt/, AaTy-1) and
Max( Cwr Cary-1) and
Max( Dwr, Daty-1) and
Max( Fwur, Faty-1) and
Max( Gur, GaTty-1)
22. OTHER COSTS
221 Other costs to be shared include, (but are not limited to):

44267940.16\gh01

Tud. 129
128




Contract Management Costs; and

any other cost (the "Other Costs").

22.2 Other Costs shall be apportioned in accordance with the following formula:

Ony = OCIy-‘l * MaX( Xwr, XATy) /TTDy-1

where

OCyxy Other Costs for Council 'X' for Contract Year 'y’ where X = A, or C
orDorForG

OCly-1 Other Costs incurred for Contract Month 'm'’

Xwmr means the Minimum Tonnage for Council 'X' where X = A, or C or
DorForG

XAT y-1 the actual tonnage delivered for Council 'X" in Contract Year 'y-1'
where X= AorCorDorForG

TTDy-1 Total tonnage delivered in Contract Year 'y-1' being the sum of
Max( Awt/, Aaty-1) and
Max( Cur Caty-1) and
Max( Dwmr, Daty-1) and
Max( Fur, Faty-1) and
Max( Gwur, GaTy-1)

22.3 In the absence of any other specific arrangements to apportion any costs not

specifically set out in this schedule the formula in the paragraph 22.2 shall apply.

23. ADDITIONAL INCOME

23.1 Additional income includes, but is not limited to, Substitute Waste income, Gain Share,
and Third Party Income Share.

23.2 Additional income shall be apportioned in accordance with the following formula:

AIS,, = Al *ZOIXAT /20: X110

where

AlSxm

Additional income share for Council 'x' for Contract Month 'm'

Alm

Additional income for Contract Month 'm'

0
ZXAT

sum of the total actual tonnage delivered for Council 'X' from
Contract Month '0' to Contract Month 'n' where X = AorC or D or
ForG

44267940.16\gh01

Tud. 130
129




0 sum of the total tonnage actual delivered by the Councils from
Z X Contract Month '0' to Contract Month 'n’'
TTD
n

24, EXCESS PAYMENTS
241 Excess payments arising from a Council being required to pay on the basis of the
guaranteed Minimum Tonnage despite not delivering it shall be placed in a reserve
and managed by the Joint Committee. Where such a reserve is distributed the
following proportions shall apply for each of the Councils.
EPRSyx = EPRy* X
EPRSy Excess payments reserve share for Council 'x' for Contract Year
lyl
EPRy Excess payments reserve for Contract Year'y'
X % applicable for Council 'X' being one of the following:
A%, C%, D%, F% or G% as set out in Appendix B (Cost Sharing).
25. WELSH GOVERNMENT FUNDING
251 The Welsh Government Funding shall be apportioned in accordance with the following
formula:
WGxm = WGCn * X
where
WGxm Welsh Government receipt for Council 'x' for Contract Month 'm’
WGCn Welsh Government Funding for Contract Month 'm'
X% % applicable for Council 'X' being one of the following:
A%, C%, D%, F% or G% as set out in Appendix B.
26. RECONCILIATION
26.1 At year end a full reconciliation shall be performed to ensure that any variations in
tonnages during the year that have resulted in payments being made in a higher band
are accounted for.
27. PAYMENTS TO LEAD COUNCIL
271 In order to ensure that sufficient funds are available to pay the Contractor on time and
avoiding any issues arising from delayed payments all Councils will be required to pay
the Banded Element of the Unitary Payment ten (10) days (as per Appendix D
(Outgoing Payments)) prior to the payment being required to be made to the
Contractor in accordance with the Project Agreement.
44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 1@1

130



27.2

27.3

274

27.5

28.

28.1

28.2

28.3

284

285

Where Haulage Services are being provided by the Contractor pursuant to Clause
21A (Haulage Services) and Schedule 33 (Haulage Services) of the Project
Agreement all Councils will pay the Haulage Element of the Unitary Payment into an
account, to be managed by the Lead Council for the purposes of paying the
Contractor, no later than ten (10) days prior to the payment being required to be made
to the Contractor in accordance with the Project Agreement (as per Appendix D
(Outgoing Payments)).

All Councils will pay the PM2.5 Costs into an account, to be managed by the Lead
Council for the purposes of paying the Contractor, no later than ten (10) days prior to
the payment being required to be made to the Contractor in accordance with the
Project Agreement (as per Appendix D (Outgoing Payments)).

All Councils will pay the Other Costs into an account, to be managed by the Lead
Council for the purposes of paying the Contractor, no later than ten (10) days prior to
the payment being required to be made to the Contractor in accordance with the
Project Agreement (as per Appendix D (Outgoing Payments)).

Other payments required, for example including (but not limited to) Additional Waste,
Additional Hours, Ad Hoc Waste, in order to ensure that sufficient funds are available
to pay the Contractor on time and avoiding any issues arising from delayed payments
all Councils will be required to pay the other payments ten (10) days (as per Appendix
D (Outgoing Payments)) prior to the payment being required to be made to the
Contractor in accordance with the Project Agreement.

PAYMENTS BY LEAD COUNCIL

The Lead Council shall pay the other Councils the Additional Income within ten (10)
days of receipt from the Contractor as per Appendix E (Incoming Payments).

The Lead Council shall pay the other Councils the Excess Income within ten (10) days
of receipt from the Contractor as per Appendix E (Incoming Payments).

The Lead Council shall pay the other Councils the Welsh Government Funding within
ten (10) days of receipt from the Welsh Government as per Appendix E (Incoming
Payments).

The Lead Council shall pay the other Councils the payments under the Project
Agreement within ten (10) days of receipt from the Contractor as per Appendix E
(Incoming Payments).

Deductions will be redistributed as applicable to the Councils. Any such redistribution
will be apportioned proportionate to the Councils that have been aggrieved by any
such action.

Appendix A — Minimum Tonnage

Anglesey Conwy Denplghs Flintshire | Gwynedd
hire Total
AcmT Coemr D Femr Gowmr
GMT
Minimum
Tonnage of
Contracted
Waste per 13,615 17,904 12,089 25,267 21,124 90,000
Contract Year or
pro rated when a
Contract Year is
less than twelve
44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 13290

131




(12) months

Appendix B — Cost Sharing

Anglesey Conwy Denbighshire | Flintshire | Gwynedd Total
ota
Aw Cow Dw Foo Gow
COSt. 15.13% 19.89% 13.43% 28.07% 23.47% 100.00%
Sharing
Ratio

The Cost Sharing ratio for each Council is based on the agreed predicted proportion of the
usage of the Facility by each Council.

The agreed predicted proportion of usage for each Council is as follows:

Appendix C1 — Forecast Tonnage

Forecast Anglesey | Conwy | Denbighshire | Flintshire | Gwynedd

Tonnage Total
AFrt Crr Der Fer Ger

April 2017 -

March 2018 17,233 | 23,916 15,403 31,314 27,530 115,396

Aprii 2018 -

March 2019 17,308 | 23,892 15,427 31,399 27,502 115,529

April 2019 -

March 2020 17,383 | 23,868 15,450 31,487 27,475 115,663

April 2020 -

March 2021 16,919 | 23,845 15,472 31,577 27,447 115,259

April 2021 -

March 2022 16,991 23,821 15,493 31,668 27,420 115,392

April 2022 -

March 2023 17,051 23,797 15,514 31,762 27,392 115,516

April 2023 -

March 2024 17,112 | 23,773 15,533 31,858 27,365 115,641

April 2024 -

March 2025 17,173 | 22,942 15,477 31,956 27,338 114,886

April 2025 -

March 2026 17,233 | 22,920 15,495 32,056 27,310 115,015

April 2026 -

March 2027 17,293 | 22,897 15,513 32,159 27,283 115,145

April 2027 -

March 2028 17,353 | 22,874 15,530 32,263 27,256 115,275

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 133

132




April 2028 -
March 2029 17,413 | 22,851 15,546 32,370 27,228 115,408
April 2029 -
March 2030 17,472 | 22,828 15,562 32,479 27,201 115,542
April 2030 -
March 2031 17,5632 | 22,805 15,577 32,590 27,174 115,678
April 2031 -
March 2032 17,5692 | 22,782 15,591 32,703 27,147 115,815
April 2032 -
March 2033 17,651 | 22,760 15,605 32,819 27,120 115,955
April 2033 -
March 2034 17,712 | 22,737 15,619 32,937 27,092 116,096
April 2034 -
March 2035 17,772 | 22,714 15,631 33,057 27,065 116,240
April 2035 -
March 2036 17,832 | 22,691 15,643 33,180 27,038 116,385
April 2036 -
March 2037 17,893 | 22,669 15,655 33,305 27,011 116,533
April 2037 -
March 2038 17,954 | 22,646 15,666 33,433 26,984 116,683
April 2038 -
March 2039 18,015 | 22,623 15,677 33,562 26,957 116,835
Apriil 2039 -
March 2040 18,076 | 22,601 15,687 33,695 26,930 116,989
April 2040 -
March 2041 18,138 | 22,578 15,697 33,830 26,903 117,145
April 2041 -
March 2042 18,199 | 22,556 15,706 33,965 26,877 117,302
Total

527,487 | 697,541 474,440 976,697 824,373 | 3,500,538
Appendix C2 - Band 1 Tonnage
Marginal Tonnage | Anglesey | Conwy | Denbighshire | Flintshire | Gwynedd
(Band 1) Total

Awmt1 Cwm1 Dwmr1 FmTa Gum

April 2017 - March 3,842 | 5,052 3,411 7,130 5,961
2018 25,396
April 2018 - March 3,862 | 5,079 3,429 7,167 5,992
2019 25,529
44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 13492

133




April 2019 - March
2020

April 2020 - March
2021

April 2021 - March
2022

April 2022 - March
2023

April 2023 - March
2024

April 2024 - March
2025

April 2025 - March
2026

April 2026 - March
2027

April 2027 - March
2028

April 2028 - March
2029

April 2029 - March
2030

April 2030 - March
2031

April 2031 - March
2032

April 2032 - March
2033

April 2033 - March
2034

April 2034 - March
2035

April 2035 - March
2036

April 2036 - March
2037

April 2037 - March
2038

April 2038 - March

44267940.16\gh01

3,882 | 5,105 3,447
3,821 | 5,025 3,393
3,841 | 5,051 3,411
3,860 | 5,076 3,427
3,879 | 5,101 3,444
3,765 | 4,951 3,343
3,784 | 4,976 3,360
3,804 | 5,002 3,377
3,824 | 5,028 3,395
3,844 | 5,055 3,413
3,864 | 5,081 3,431
3,884 | 5,108 3,449
3,905 | 5,136 3,468
3,926 | 5,163 3,486
3,048 | 5,192 3,505
3,969 | 5,220 3,525
3,992 | 5,249 3,544
4,014 | 5278 3,564
4,037 | 5,308 3,584
4,059 | 5,338 3,604
Tud. 135

134

7,205

7,091

7,129

7,164

7,199

6,987

7,023

7,059

7,096

7,133

7,171

7,209

7,248

7,287

7,327

7,367

7,408

7,449

7,491

7,534

6,023

5,929

5,960

5,989

6,018

5,841

5,871

5,902

5,933

5,964

5,995

6,027

6,059

6,092

6,125

6,159

6,193

6,228

6,263

6,299

25,662

25,259

25,392

25,516

25,641

24,887

25,014

25,144

25,276

25,409

25,542

25,677

25,816

25,954

26,097

26,240

26,386

26,533

26,683

26,834




2039

April 2039 - March 4,083 | 5,369 3,625 7,577 6,335

2040 26,989

April 2040 - March 4,106 | 5,400 3,646 7,621 6,371

2041 27,144

April 2041 - March 4130 | 5,431 3,667 7,665 6,408

2042 27,301

Appendix C3 - Band 2 Tonnage

Marginal Tonnage | Anglesey | Conwy | Denbighshire | Flintshire | Gwynedd

(Band 2) Total
Awmt2 Cwur2 Dwmt2 Fmt2 Gwmr2

April 2017 - March 2,581 | 3,395 2,292 4,791 4,005

April 2018 - March 2,561 | 3,368 2,274 4,753 3,974

2019 16,930

April 2019 - March 2,541 | 3,341 2,256 4,716 3,942

2020 16,796

April 2020 - March 2,602 | 3,422 2,310 4,829 4,037

2021 17,200

April 2021 - March 2,582 | 3,395 2,292 4,791 4,006

2022 17,066

April 2022 - March 2,563 | 3,371 2,276 4,757 3,977

2023 16,944

April 2023 - March 2,544 | 3,346 2,259 4,722 3,947

2024 16,818

April 2024 - March 2,658 | 3,496 2,360 4,934 4,125

2025 17,573

April 2025 - March 2,639 | 3,470 2,343 4,898 4,094

2026 17,444

April 2026 - March 2,619 | 3,444 2,326 4,861 4,064

2027 17,314

April 2027 - March 2,599 | 3,418 2,308 4,824 4,033

2028 17,182

April 2028 - March 2,579 | 3,392 2,290 4,787 4,002

2029 17,050

April 2029 - March 2,559 | 3,365 2,272 4,749 3,971 16,916

44267940.16\gh01 TUd 13694

135




2030
April 2030 - March 2,539 3,338
2031
April 2031 - March 2,518 | 3,311
2032
April 2032 - March 2,497 | 3,283
2033
April 2033 - March 2,475 | 3,255
2034
April 2034 - March 2,454 3,227
2035
April 2035 - March 2,432 | 3,198
2036
April 2036 - March 2,409 | 3,168
2037
April 2037 - March 2,387 | 3,138
2038
April 2038 - March 2,364 | 3,108
2039
April 2039 - March 2,340 | 3,078
2040
April 2040 - March 2,317 | 3,046
2041
April 2041 - March 2,293 3,015
2042

2,254

2,236

2,217

2,198

2,179

2,159

2,139

2,119

2,099

2,078

2,057

2,036

4,711

4,673

4,634

4,594

4,554

4,513

4,471

4,429

4,386

4,343

4,299

4,255

3,939

3,906

3,874

3,841

3,807

3,773

3,738

3,703

3,667

3,631

3,594

3,558

16,781

16,644

16,505

16,363

16,221

16,075

15,925

15,776

15,624

15,470

15,313

15,157

Appendix C4 —Band 3 Tonnage

The Councils are not forecasting any Band 3 Tonnage during the Contract Period. Any Band 3
Tonnage arising will be charged at the prevailing per tonne rate charged for Third Party Waste.

Appendix C5 — Maximum Tonnage

The Maximum Tonnage in any Contract Year is set out in the table below. Maximum Tonnage is
measured on a cumulative basis, and therefore does not restrict on a Council by Council basis.
The Maximum Tonnage does not vary from year to year. Maximum Tonnage is pro-rated in any

part years.

Maximum Tonnage Total
Maximum Tonnage in any Contract Year (April 150,000
— March)

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 19937

136




Appendix D — Outgoing Payments

Payments due from Councils to the Lead Council

Band 0 Payment of the Unitary Payment

10 days prior to payment being required
Agreement

to

be

made

to

the

Contractor

under

the

Project

Band 1 Payment of the Unitary Payment

10 days prior to payment being required
Agreement

to

be

made

to

the

Contractor

under

the

Project

Band 2 Payment of the Unitary Payment

10 days prior to payment being required
Agreement

to

be

made

to

the

Contractor

under

the

Project

Band 3 Payment of the Unitary Payment

10 days prior to payment being required
Agreement

to

be

made

to

the

Contractor

under

the

Project

Payment of Other Amounts

10 days prior to payment being required
Agreement

to

be

made

to

the

Contractor

under

the

Project

Haulage Element

10 days prior to payment being required
Agreement

to

be

made

to

the

Contractor

under

the

Project

PM 2.5 Costs

10 days prior to payment being required
Agreement

to

be

made

to

the

Contractor

under

the

Project

44267940.16\gh01

137

Tud. 138,




Appendix E — Incoming Payments

Payments due to Councils from the Lead Council

Additional Income

10 days after receipt from Contractor

Excess Income

10 days after receipt from Contractor

Welsh Government Funding

10 days after receipt from Welsh Government

Payments under the Project Agreement

10 days after receipt from Contractor

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 139
138



APPENDIX 1
DATA PROTECTION POLICY

STATEMENT OF DATA PROTECTION POLICY & PRACTICE — NORTH WALES RESIDUAL
WASTE JOINT COMMITTEE

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee comprises two elected Councillors
from each of the following North Wales authorities:-

Conwy County Borough Council
Denbighshire County Council
Flintshire County Council
Gwynedd County Council

Isle of Anglesey County Council

1.2 Flintshire County Council is the lead authority and has entered into an inter-authority
agreement with the other four authorities which sets out the constitution of the Joint
Committee and its decision making powers. In addition to the Data Protection policies
in place for each constituent authority it has been decided to have a Data Protection
policy for the Joint Committee.

1.3 The Joint Committee is supported by a project team of officers who use a stakeholder
management database to track and manage communications and engagements with
stakeholders and the public. The Joint Committee also processes personal
information in relation to procurement processes whereby the employment details of
two members of staff likely to be affected is passed to bidding companies for pricing
purposes. These examples of the processing of personal information have led to the
need for this Statement of Data Protection Policy & Practice.

14 The processing of personal information is regulated by the Data Protection Act 1998
(the "Act”) and the Joint Committee regards the lawful and correct treatment of
personal information as very important to its successful operation and in maintaining
confidence between it and those with whom it carries out business.

2. THE PRINCIPLES OF DATA PROTECTION

2.1 The Act stipulates that anyone processing personal data must comply with Eight
Principles of good practice. These Principles are legally enforceable.

2.2 The Principles require that personal information:

221 Shall be processed fairly and lawfully and in particular, shall not be
processed unless specific conditions are met;

222 Shall be obtained only for one or more specified and lawful purposes and
shall not be further processed in any manner incompatible with that purpose
or those purposes;

2.2.3 Shall be adequate, relevant and not excessive in relation to the purpose or
purposes for which it is processed;

2.2.4 Shall be accurate and where necessary, kept up to date;

2.2.5 Shall not be kept for longer than is necessary for that purpose or those
purposes;

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 140,
139



3.1

3.2

3.3

226 Shall be processed in accordance with the rights of data subjects under the
Act;

2.2.7 Shall be kept secure i.e. protected by an appropriate degree of security;

2238 Shall not be transferred to a country or territory outside the European Union
Area, unless that country or territory ensures an adequate level of data
protection.

PROCESSING OF PERSONAL INFORMATION

The Joint Committee will through the Project Manager and Project Team ensure that
personal information is processed in accordance with the Act and the 8 principles in
paragraph 2.2.

As the lead authority is Flintshire the Joint Committee is covered by Flintshire’s
notification to the Information Commissioner’s office. The corporate Data Protection
procedures applying in Flintshire will also apply to the Joint Committee covering such
matters as subject access requests, violent warning markers and Data Protection
complaints.

The responsibility for ensuring compliance rests with the Project Manager. Where
advice is needed on Data Protection matters it can be obtained from the relevant
officers in Flintshire’s Legal & Democratic Services department. Guidance is available
on Flintshire’s Infonet as well as on the website of the Information Commissioner’s
office.

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 141

140



APPENDIX 2
PART 1

TRANSFER 1

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 142,
141



Land Registry

Transfer of whole of registered title(s)

If you need more room than is provided for in a panel, and your software allows, you can expand any panel in the form.
Alternatively use continuation sheet CS and attach it to this form.

Leave blank if not yet registered.

Insert address including postcode (if any) or other
description of the property, for example ‘land
adjoining 2 Acacia Avenue’.

Give full name(s).

Complete as appropriate where the transferor is a
company.

Give full name(s).

Complete as appropriate where the transferee is a
company. Also, for an overseas company, unless
an arrangement with Land Registry exists, Iodﬂe
either a certificate in Form 7 in Schedule 3 to the
Land Registration Rules 2003 or a certified cop%/ of
the constitution in English or Welsh, or other
evidence permitted by rule 183 of the Land
Registration Rules 2003.

44267940.16\gh01

1

Title number(s) of the property:

CYM316351
2 Property:
Land lying to the south side of Weighbridge Road, Deeside
Industrial Park, Deeside
Date:
4 Transferor:
[FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL]
For UK incorporated companies/LLPs
Registered number of company or limited liability
partnership including any prefix:
For overseas companies
(a) Territory of incorporation:
(b) Registered number in the United Kingdom including any
prefix:
5  Transferee for entry in the register:

[ ]

For UK incorporated companies/LLPs

Registered number of company or limited
partnership including any prefix: [ ]

liability

For overseas companies

(a) Territory of incorporation:

Tud. 143

142




(b) Registered number in the United Kingdom including any
prefix:
Each transferee may give up to three addresses | §  Transferee’s intended address(es) for service for entry in
for service, one of which must be a postal address th ister:
whether or not in the UK (including the postcode, if e register.
anyg. The others can be ang combination of a
postal address, a UK DX box number or an [ ]
electronic address.
7  The transferor transfers the property to the transferee
Place 'X' in the appropriate box. State the currenc i i
unit if other than sterling. If none of the boxeg 8  Consideration
?pra insert an appropriate memorandum in panel XI The transferor has received from the transferee for the
' property the following sum (in words and figures):

ONE POUND (£1)

[] The transfer is not for money or anything that has a

monetary value

[] Insert other receipt as appropriate:

Place 'X" in any box that applies. 9  The transferor transfers with
Add any modifications. X full tite guarantee

[] limited title guarantee

9.1 The covenants implied by section 2(1)(b) of the
Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1994 (the "Act") are varied by the deletion of
the words "at his own cost" and the substitution of
the words "at the cost of the Transferee".

9.2 In addition to not being liable for the matters and
things referred to in section 6(1) or (2) of the Act,
the Transferor shall not be liable under the
covenants implied by virtue of section 2(1)(a) or
section 3 of the Act in respect of matters of public
record or in respect of instruments or matters of
which the Transferee is deemed to have actual
notice by section 198 of the Law of Property
Act 1925, to which this Transfer is made subject.

Where the transferee is more than one person, | 10 Declaration of trust. The transferee is more than one person
place 'X' in the appropriate box. and

[] they are to hold the property on trust for themselves as

joint tenants

[] they are to hold the property on trust for themselves as

tenants in common in equal shares
Complete as necessary. [] they are to hold the property on trust:
44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 144102

143




Insert here any required or permitted statement, | 11  Additional provisions
certificate or  application and any agreed
covenants, declarations and so on. ) ) )
11.1 In this Transfer the following terms have the following

meanings:

"Letting Documents" means all (if any) leases,
tenancies, licences or other occupational
agreements or arrangements so far as they remain
in force and affect the Property upon whatever
terms existing on or before the date hereof
whether created formally or informally and in the
case of any lease or tenancy any statutory
continuation, extension or holding over by the
tenant

11.2 INDEMNITY

11.2.1 For the purposes of giving the Transferor a full and
sufficient indemnity but not further or otherwise, the
Transferee covenants with the Transferor that as from the
date of this Transfer the Transferee will observe and
perform the matters contained or referred to in the registers
of the above title (other than financial charges) so far as
they relate to the Property, subsist and are enforceable and
will keep the Transferor indemnified against all future
actions, proceedings, costs, claims demands and liabilities
in respect of them.

11.2.2 The Transferee covenants with the Transferor that
the Transferee will observe and perform the covenants and
obligations on the part of the landlord contained or referred
to in the Letting Documents and will indemnify and keep the
Transferor fully and effectively indemnified against all
actions, claims, demands, losses, costs, damages and
liabilities that may be suffered or incurred by the Transferor
in respect of any future breach or non-observance or non-
performance of those covenants and conditions.

11.2.3 No covenant implied in this transfer shall render the
Transferor liable for any matter to which the sale of the
Property hereby transferred is expressly made subject to in
this Transfer.

11.3 LEASES

The Property is transferred subject to but with the benefit of
the Letting Documents.

11.4 CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES)
ACT 1999

A person who is not a party to this Transfer has no right
under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to
enforce any term of this Transfer but this does not affect any
right or remedy of a third party which exists or is available
apart from that Act.

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 145
144



The transferor must execute this transfer as a
deed usin% the space opposite. If there is more
than one fransferor, all must execute. Forms of
execution are given in Schedule 9 to the Land
Registration Rules 2003. If the transfer contains
transferee’s covenants or declarations or contains
an apfllcatlon by the transferee (such as for a
restriction), it must also be executed by the
transferee.

12 Execution

EXECUTED as a Deed (but not
delivered until dated)

by affixing

the Common Seal of
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
in the presence of:-

~— — —

Chair

Principal Solicitor

EXECUTED as a Deed (but not
delivered until dated)

by affixing

the Common Seal of

[ ]

in the presence of:-

~— — —

Chair

Principal Solicitor

EXECUTED as a Deed
(but not

delivered until dated)

by affixing

the Common Seal of

[ ]

in the presence of:-

~— — —

Director

Director/Secretary

EXECUTED as a Deed
(but not delivered

until dated) by

[ ]

acting by two Directors or
a Director

and the Secretary:-

~— N — — —

44267940.16\gh01 TUd . 14604

145




Director

Director/Secretary

SIGNED as a Deed
(but not delivered until dated) by

[

as attorney for and on behalf of

[ ]

in the presence of:-

~— — N N S~ ~—

Signature of witness:

Name of witness:

Address:

Occupation:

WARNING

If you dishonestly enter information or make a statement that you know is, or might be, untrue or misleading, and
intend by doing so to make a gain for yourself or another person, or to cause loss or the risk of loss to another person,
you may commit the offence of fraud under section 1 of the Fraud Act 2006, the maximum penalty for which is 10
years’ imprisonment or an unlimited fine, or both.

Failure to complete this form with proper care may result in a loss of protection under the Land Registration Act 2002 if,
as a result, a mistake is made in the register.

Under section 66 of the Land Registration Act 2002 most documents (including this form) kept by the registrar relating
to an application to the registrar or referred to in the register are open tor{)ublic inspection and copying. If you believe
a document contains prejudicial information, you may apfly for that part of the document to be made exempt using
Form EX1, under rule 136 of the Land Registration Rules 2003.

© Crown copyright (ref: LR/HO) 07/08

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 14/
146



PART 2

TRANSFER 2

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 148
147



Land Registry

Transfer of whole of registered title(s)

If you need more room than is provided for in a panel, and your software allows, you can expand any panel in the
rm. Alternatively use continuation sheet CS and attach it to this form.

Leave blank if not yet registered.

Insert address including postcode (if any) or
ther description of the property, for example
and adjoining 2 Acacia Avenue’.

Give full name(s).

Complete as appropriate where the transferor
; @ company.

Give full name(s).

Complete as appropriate where the transferee
» a company. Also, for an overseas company,
nless an arrangement with Land Registry
xists, lodge either a certificate in Form 7 in
«chedule 3 to the Land Registration Rules 2003
r a certified copy of the constitution in English
r Welsh, or other evidence permitted by rule
83 of the Land Registration Rules 2003.

44267940.16\gh01

1

Title number(s) of the property:
CYM316351

Property:

Land lying to the south side of Weighbridge Road,
Deeside Industrial Park, Deeside

Date:

Transferor:

[ ]

For UK incorporated companies/LLPs

Registered number of company or limited
partnership including any prefix: [ ]

liability

For overseas companies

(a) Territory of incorporation:

(b) Registered number in the United Kingdom including
any prefix:

Transferee for entry in the register:

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

For UK incorporated companies/LLPs

Registered number of company or limited

partnership including any prefix:

liability

For overseas companies

(a) Territory of incorporation:

(b) Registered number in the United Kingdom including
any prefix:

Tud. 149
148




Each transferee may give up to three
ddresses for service, one of which must be a
ostal address whether or not in the UK
ncluding the postcode, if any). The others can
e any combination of a postal address, a UK
1IX box number or an electronic address.

Place 'X' in the appropriate box. State the
urrency unit if other than sterling. If none of the
oxes apply, insert an appropriate
1emorandum in panel 11.

Place 'X' in any box that applies.

Add any modifications.

Where the transferee is more than one
erson, place 'X' in the appropriate box.

Complete as necessary.

Insert here any required or permitted
tatement, certificate or application and any
greed covenants, declarations and so on.

44267940.16\gh01

6 Transferee’s intended address(es) for service for entry in
the register:

County Hall, Mold, Flintshire CH7 6NR

The transferor transfers the property to the transferee

Consideration

[X] The transferor has received from the transferee for
the property the following sum (in words and figures):

ONE POUND (£1)

[] The transfer is not for money or anything that has a
monetary value

[ ] Insert other receipt as appropriate:

9 The transferor transfers with

X full title guarantee

[ ] limited title guarantee

9.1 The covenants implied by section 2(1)(b) of the
Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994 (the
"Act") are varied by the deletion of the words "at his own
cost" and the substitution of the words "at the cost of the
Transferee".

9.2 In addition to not being liable for the matters and
things referred to in section 6(1) or (2) of the Act, the
Transferor shall not be liable under the covenants implied
by virtue of section 2(1)(a) or section 3 of the Act in
respect of matters of public record or in respect of
instruments or matters of which the Transferee is deemed
to have actual notice by section 198 of the Law of Property
Act 1925, to which this Transfer is made subject.

10 Declaration of trust. The transferee is more than one
person and

[ ] they are to hold the property on trust for themselves
as joint tenants

[] they are to hold the property on trust for themselves
as tenants in common in equal shares

[] they are to hold the property on trust:

11 Additional provisions
Tud. 150,

149




44267940.16\gh01

11. 1 In this Transfer the following terms have the
following meanings:

"Letting Documents" means all (if any) leases,
tenancies, licences or other occupational agreements or
arrangements so far as they remain in force and affect the
Property upon whatever terms existing on or before the
date hereof whether created formally or informally and in
the case of any lease or tenancy any statutory
continuation, extension or holding over by the tenant

11.2 INDEMNITY

11.2.1 For the purposes of giving the Transferor a full and
sufficient indemnity but not further or otherwise, the
Transferee covenants with the Transferor that as from the
date of this Transfer the Transferee will observe and
perform the matters contained or referred to in the
registers of the above title (other than financial charges)
so far as they relate to the Property, subsist and are
enforceable and will keep the Transferor indemnified
against all future actions, proceedings, costs, claims
demands and liabilities in respect of them.

11.2.2 The Transferee covenants with the Transferor that
the Transferee will observe and perform the covenants
and obligations on the part of the landlord contained or
referred to in the Letting Documents and will indemnify
and keep the Transferor fully and effectively indemnified
against all actions, claims, demands, losses, costs,
damages and liabilities that may be suffered or incurred
by the Transferor in respect of any future breach or non-
observance or non-performance of those covenants and
conditions.

11.2.3 No covenant implied in this transfer shall render
the Transferor liable for any matter to which the sale of
the Property hereby transferred is expressly made
subject to in this Transfer.

11.3 LEASES

The Property is transferred subject to but with the benefit
of the Letting Documents.

11.4 CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES)
ACT 1999

A person who is not a party to this Transfer has no right
under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to
enforce any term of this Transfer but this does not affect
any right or remedy of a third party which exists or is
available apart from that Act.

Tud. 151

150




The transferor must execute this transfer as a
eed using the space opposite. If there is more
1an one transferor, all must execute. Forms of
xecution are given in Schedule 9 to the Land
\egistration Rules 2003. If the transfer contains
ansferee’s covenants or declarations or
ontains an application by the transferee (such
s for a restriction), it must also be executed by
1e transferee.

44267940.16\gh01

12 Execution

EXECUTED as a Deed (but not
delivered until dated)

by affixing

the Common Seal of

[ ]

in the presence of:-
Chair

Principal Solicitor

EXECUTED as a Deed (but not
delivered until dated)

by affixing

the Common Seal of

[ ]

in the presence of:-
Director

Director/Secretary

EXECUTED as a Deed (but not
delivered
until dated) by

[ ]

acting by two Directors or a Director
and the Secretary:-

Director

Director/ Secretary

SIGNED as a Deed
(but not delivered until dated) by

[

as attorney for and on behalf of

[ ]

in the presence of:-

Signature of witness:

~— N ~—

— N N N S N

Tud. 152,
151




Name of witness:

Address:

Occupation:

EXECUTED as a Deed (but not )
delivered until dated) )
by affixing )

the Common Seal of
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
in the presence of:-

Chair

Principal Solicitor

WARNING
If you dishonestly enter information or make a statement that you know is, or might be, untrue or misleading, and intend by doing
o to make a gain for yourself or another person, or to cause loss or the risk of loss to another person, you may commit the offence

f fraud under section 1 of the Fraud Act 2006, the maximum penalty for which is 10 years’ imprisonment or an unlimited fine, or
oth.

Failure to complete this form with proper care may result in a loss of protection under the Land Registration Act 2002 if, as a
asult, a mistake is made in the register.

Under section 66 of the Land Registration Act 2002 most documents (including this form) kept by the registrar relating to an
pplication to the registrar or referred to in the register are open to public inspection and copying. If you believe a document
ontains prejudicial information, you may apply for that part of the document to be made exempt using Form EX1, under rule 136 of
1e Land Registration Rules 2003.

© Crown copyright (ref: LR/HO) 07/08

44267940.16\gh01 Tud. 153
152



44267940.16\gh01

APPENDIX 3

DEED OF COVENANT

DATED [ 1

M1 ]

(2) NATIONAL GRID ELECTRICITY TRANSMISSION PLC

DEED OF COVENANT
relating to land on the south side of Weighbridge Road,
Deeside Industrial Park, Deeside

Tud. 154
15312



THIS DEED OF COVENANT IS made on
BETWEEN:-

(1)
()

[ ]of [ ] (the "Covenantor"); and

NATIONAL GRID ELECTRICITY TRANSMISSION PLC (No 02366977) of 1-3 Strand,
London WC2N 5EH (the "Covenantee")

WHEREAS:-

(A)

(B)

By Clause 5.1 of a transfer dated 7 March 2013 made between (1) Flintshire County Council
("Flintshire") and (2) the Covenantee (the "Transfer"), Flintshire covenanted with the
Covenantee on any disposal of the Retained Land (as defined in the Transfer) to procure
that the disponee covenants with the Covenantee or their successors in title to the Property
(as defined in the Transfer) to comply with Clauses 12.4.1.1, 12.4.1.2 and 12.4.1.5 of the
Transfer.

The Covenantor has agreed to purchase the Retained Land and the parties to this Deed
have agreed to enter into this deed accordingly.

IT IS AGREED as follows:-

1.

The Covenantor on behalf of itself and its successors in title covenant with the Covenantee
and the Covenantee's successors in title to the Property to observe and perform the
covenants contained in Clauses 12.4.1.1, 12.4.1.2 and 12.4.1.5 of the Transfer from the
date of this Deed as though that covenant was set out in full in this Deed.

The Covenantor shall only remain liable under this Deed until it has parted with all its estate,
right, title and interest in the Retained Land.

A person who is not a party to this Deed has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third
Parties) Act 1999 to enforce any term of this Deed but this does not affect any right or
remedy of a third party which exists or is available apart from that Act.

EXECUTED AS A DEED by the parties on the date which first appears in this Deed.

EXECUTED as a DEED (but not
delivered until dated)
by affixing

~— — ~—

the Common Seal of

[

]

in the presence of:-

Chair

Principal Solicitor

Tud. 155

44267940.16\gh01 1 54j 13



APPENDIX 4 - ANNUAL BUDGET 2016-2017

Tud. 156

44267940.16\gh01 ']551 14



APPENDIX 5

WELSH GOVERNMENT FUNDING CONDITIONS

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Yr Adran Cyfoeth Naturiol

Department for Natural Resources

Colin Everett

Senior Responsible Owner

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

County Hall
Mold
Flintshire
CH7 6NW
Ein Cyf/Our Ref: FBC Approval
4 February 2016
Dear Colin

Award of Funding in relation to the Project known as North Wales Residual Waste
Treatment Project (the "Project")

1. Award of Funding

We are pleased to inform you that your application for funding support included in your
Full Business Case ("FBC") dated 27 November 2015 and submitted to the Waste
Procurement Programme Office ("WPPO) on 27 November 2015 has been successful
and the funding indicated below (the "Funding") is awarded to you as a contribution
towards the ongoing cost of the Project under the Contract:

Gate Fee contribution £5,620,258 pa, from Service Commencement, for a maximum
period of 25 years, to be payable in quarterly instalments in arrears until expiry or early
termination of the Contract. Service Commencement is currently forecast to start in June
2019.

The Funding shall only be used for the Purposes and shall cease upon termination of the
Contract, either through effluxion of time or early determination.

2. Statutory Authority
This award of Funding is made on and subject to the Conditions and under the authority of
the Minister for Natural Resources, one of the Welsh Ministers, acting pursuant to sections

70 and 71(1) of the Government of Wales Act 2006.

3. Interpreting these Conditions

Tud. 157

44267940.16\gh01 156 15



Unless otherwise indicated in this paragraph 3 capitalised terms shall have the meaning
ascribed to them in the Contract. Any reference in these Conditions to:

(a) 'you', 'your' is to Flintshire County Council, County Hall, Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NW
(b) 'we', 'us', 'our' is to the Welsh Ministers;
(c) 'Application' is to your application set out in the FBC;

(d) 'Welsh Government Official' is to

Jasper Roberts
Welsh

Governme

nt Cathays

Park

Cardiff, CF10 3NQ

Tel: 029 20 823833
Email: jasperroberts@wales.gsi.gov.uk

or such other Welsh Government official as we may from time to time notify to you.
(e) 'Senior Responsible Owner' or 'SRO' is to

Colin Everett

Senior Responsible Owner

North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project
County Hall

Mold

Flintshire

CH7 6NW

Tel: 01352 702101
Email: chietexecutive@flintshire.gov.uk

or such other official as you may from time to time notify to us.

(f) 'Conditions' is to the terms and conditions set out in this letter and shall include the
Special Conditions and terms set out in Schedules A and C;

(g) 'Contract' is to the contract proposed to be entered into by you a copy of which was
provided to us with your Application;

(h) 'Purposes’ is to the purposes set out in the Application;
(i) 'Schedule' is to the Schedules attached to this letter;

(j) 'State Aid Rules' is to the rules set out in Articles 107 to 109 of the Treaty on the
Functioning of the European Union (or in those Articles that may succeed Articles 107 to
109), secondary legislation such as frameworks, guidelines and block exemptions
produced by the European Commission derived from Articles 107 to 109, case law of
the European Courts and decisions of the European Commission regarding the
application of Articles 107 to 109.

(k) Reference to any legislation will include all amendments to and substitutions and re-
enactments of that legislation in force from time to time.

Tud. 158

44267940.16\gh01 ']571 16



4, Initial Obligations

a. On the basis set out in paragraph 4(f) below, you must not enter into the
Contract without the consent of the Welsh Government, such consent not to be
unreasonably withheld or delayed;

b. you must, within not greater than 1 Business Day following financial close of the
Contract, notify the WPPO that financial close has taken place, and provide to
the WPPO, in electronic format, signed copies of the contract phase Inter
Authority Agreement (IAA) or Joint Working Agreement (JWA);

c. you must, within not greater than 5 Business Days of the date of issue of the
Local Government Contract Act Certificate(s), provide the WPPO with a copy of
each Certificate issued in relation to the Contract;

d. you must, within not greater than 20 Business Days of the date of financial
close, provide to the WPPO, in electronic format, copies of the Contract, all
supporting contract documentation (including, without limitation sub-contracts
and funding documents); and an updated Project Data Template (as set out
in Appendix B of the FBC);

e. you may not, without our prior written approval (such approval not to be
unreasonably withheld or delayed), between the date of this letter and financial
close of the Contract, agree to or make any change to:

i. the nature, scope and purpose of the Project as set out in the
Application; and/or

ii. any other departure from the Application.

f. if changes are made to the Contract or to any documents referred to in the
Application between the date of this letter and financial close of the
Contract, you must notify WPPO of any such changes and shall not enter
into the Contract without the prior approval of WPPO (such approval not to
be unreasonably withheld or delayed. We reserve the right to review any
such changes and, dependent upon the nature of the change, and in our
absolute discretion, to withdraw the Funding, or to reassess the level of
Funding for the Project pursuant to paragraph 8(d) below.

g. Failure to gain our prior written approval to any change or departure from the
position set out in the Application will release us from our obligations under this
letter.

h. Notwithstanding any other provision of this letter, the Funding will not be issued
until receipt of written confirmation from you that Service Commencement has
taken place, in accordance with the Contract.

i.  The letter from us dated 26 July 2012, and headed (Financial Support Payment
Arrangements from Welsh Government), sets out the profile of the Funding
payments. This letter is included in Schedule B.

5. Your general obligations to us

You must:

Tud. 159

44267940.16\gh01 ']581 17



a. use the Funding only in relation to the Purposes.

b. safeguard the Funding against fraud generally and, in particular, fraud on the
part of your management, employees and/or suppliers and you shall notify us
immediately if you have reason to suspect that any fraud has occurred or is
occurring or is likely to occur.

c. comply with all applicable laws or regulations or official directives whether
derived from domestic, EU or international law.

d. put in place and maintain adequate public liability and employers' liability
insurance with a reputable insurance company to cover against the risks which
may arise in connection with any property or any activity undertaken in delivery
of the Purposes. We reserve the right to require you to submit for inspection any
relevant documents relating to this insurance.

e. co-operate fully with the Welsh Government Official and with any other employee
of the Welsh Government or consultant appointed by us to monitor your use of
the Funding and your compliance with these Conditions.

6. How to claim the Funding

a. Once you have confirmed acceptance of the Conditions, the Funding will be
payable to you in accordance with the relevant provisions of this letter referred to
in paragraph 4(1) above.

b. We will aim to pay all valid claims as soon as possible and typically within 20
Business Days.

c. We are under no obligation to pay any claims for payment, which are not in
accordance with this paragraph 6, even if this results in the maximum amount
of Funding not being paid to you.

7. Representations and Warranties
You represent and warrant that:

a. you have the power to enter into and to perform the obligations set out in these
Conditions and you have taken all necessary action to authorise the entry into
and performance of the obligations under these Conditions;

b. no litigation or arbitration is current or pending or, so far as you are aware,
threatened, which have or could have an adverse effect on your ability to perform
and comply with any of these Conditions;

c. full disclosure has been made to us before the date of this letter of all material
facts or circumstances which need to be disclosed to enable us to obtain a true
and correct view of your business and affairs (both current and prospective) or
which ought to be provided to any person who is considering providing funding to
you.

8. Breach of Conditions, occurrence of Notification Events and their respective
consequences

a. The following events shall be "Notification Events" and each a "Naotification
Event™

Tud. 160

44267940.16\gh01 15§ 18



i. repayment of any part of the Funding is required under European Law
(whether under State Aid Rules or otherwise);

i. we have made an overpayment of Funding to you;

iii. any representation or warranty made in Condition 8 is incorrect in any
respect or, if repeated at any time with reference to the facts and
circumstances then existing, would be incorrect;

iv. any event occurs or circumstances arise (including any Insolvency
Event') which in our opinion gives reasonable grounds for believing
that you may not, or may be unable, to perform or comply with any of
your obligations under these Conditions.

b. You must notify us immediately if a Notification Event has occurred or is likely to
occur but we also reserve the right to notify you where we believe a Notification
Event has occurred or is likely to occur.

c. We will seek to discuss the Notification Event with you and to agree a course of
action to be taken to address the Notification Event and in doing so we will
consider both the seriousness of the Notification Event and whether or not it can
be remedied.

i. any of the Conditions are breached; or

ii. the Contractis terminated, or

iii. following consideration of any revised FBC pursuant to paragraph
4(e) above, and if the Welsh Government Official considers it
appropriate that we should be released from our obligations under
this letter we may, in our absolute discretion, reconsider the
allocation of Funding to the Project. Such reconsideration will be
based on the Welsh Government Criteria, as contained in Appendix
A of the WPPQO's FBC template, against which the allocation of
Funding was made and any other circumstances existing at the time
of the reconsideration.

e. We may, as a result of reconsideration referred to in paragraph 8(d) above, and
acting reasonably, take any of the following actions:

i. where appropriate, withdraw the offer of Funding in this Letter;
ii. reassess the level of Funding;
suspend the Funding until the issue is rectified;
iv. impose additional or varied conditions to the Funding;
v. seek repayment of Funding already paid; or

vi. confirm the level of Funding with no alterations.

"Insolvency Events are defined in the Contract.

Tud. 161

44267940.16\gh01 ']60I 19



9. Information Requirements

You must:

a. provide us with such documents, information and reports which we may
reasonably require from time to time in order for us to monitor your
compliance with the Conditions.

b. meet with the Welsh Government Official and such of our representatives as we
shall from time to time reasonably require.

c. ensure that the SRO (or other such person as we may agree) attends all
meetings with the Welsh Government Official.

10. Audit Requirements
a. You must:

i.  maintain clear accounting records identifying all income and expenditure
in relation to the Purposes;

ii. without charge, permit any officer or officers of the Welsh
Government, Wales Audit Office or European Commission at any
reasonable time and on reasonable notice being given to you to visit
your premises and/or to inspect any of your activities and/or to
examine and take copies of your books of account and such other
documents or records as in such officer's reasonable view may relate
in any way to your use of the Funding. This undertaking is without
prejudice and subject to any other statutory rights and powers
exercisable by the Welsh Government, Wales Audit Office or the
European Commission or any officer, servant or agent of any of the
above;

iii. retain this letter and all original documents relating to the Funding until
the date that is 6 years after termination of the Contract.

b. Under paragraph 17 of Schedule 8 to the Government of Wales Act 2006 the
Auditor General for Wales has extensive rights of access to documents and
information relating to monies provided by the Welsh Government. He and his
officials have the power to require relevant persons who control or hold
documents to give any assistance, information and explanation that they may
require; and to require those persons to attend before them for such a
purpose. The Auditor General and his staff may exercise this right at all
reasonable times.

11. Third Party Obligations

a. Nothing in the Conditions shall impose any liability on us in respect of any
liability incurred by you to any third party (including, without limit, employees
and contractors).

b. You shall indemnify us against any liabilities, claims, proceedings, demands,
losses, costs and expenses suffered or incurred by us directly or indirectly
arising as a result of or in connection with any failure by you to perform fully or in
part any obligation you may have to a third party.

Tud. 162

44267940.16\gh01 16 11 20



12. Intellectual Property Rights

a. Nothing in these Conditions shall prevent transfer to us of any rights to which
we are entitled in relation to any intellectual property created by you as a result
of the Purposes.

b. You must acknowledge our support on all publicity, press releases and
marketing material produced in relation to the Purposes. Such
acknowledgement must be in a form approved by us and must comply with
the Welsh Government's branding guidelines.

c. You agree that for the duration of the Period and for 5 years thereafter we can
include details about your organisation and business, the Funding and the
Purposes in Welsh Government promotional materials.

13. Access to Information

a. You acknowledge that we are subject to the requirements of the Code of
Practice on Public Access to Information published by the Welsh Government
(the "Code"), the Freedom of information Act 2000 (the "FOIA"), the
Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (the "EIR") and the Data
Protection Act 1998 (the "DPA").

b. You acknowledge that we are responsible for determining in our absolute
discretion whether:

i. to disclose any information which we have obtained under or in
connection with the Funding to the extent that we are required to
disclose such information to a person making a disclosure request
under the FOIA or the EIR; and/or

ii. any information is exempt from disclosure under the Code, the FOIA
or the EIR.

c. You must comply with your obligations under the DPA in respect of any personal
data held in relation to the Purposes.

14. Fees

Any legal fees or costs of whatever nature incurred by you in connection with this
letter shall be borne solely by you.

15. Notices

a. All notices given under these Conditions must be in writing (this does not
include email but may include a letter attached to an email) and must
prominently display the following heading: Notice in relation to North Wales
Residual Waste Treatment Project.

b. The address and contact details for the purposes of serving notice under these
Conditions are as follows

i. You: the person to whom this letter is addressed at the address
indicated above (or such alternative address notified by you to us from
time to time) or his successor in title;

Tud. 163

44267940.16\gh01 162121



16.

17.

18.

19.

ii. Us:the Welsh Government Official at the address stated above.
c. A notice will be deemed to have been properly given as follows:-

i. Prepaid first class post: on the second working day after the date of
posting.

ii. By hand: upon delivery to the address or the next working day if after
4pm.

iii. By email attachment: upon transmission or the next working day if after
4pm.

Equal Opportunities

You must apply a policy of equal opportunities as employers, as users of volunteers,
and as providers of services, regardless of race, gender/gender identification, sexual
orientation, religion and belief, age or any disability.

Welsh Language

You must meet the linguistic needs of the community or clientele for whom the
Purposes are undertaken in line with any published guidance from the Welsh
Language Board.

Sustainability

Your use of the Funding must (where reasonably practicable) meet the Welsh
Government's current agenda for sustainable development and the environment.

Welsh Ministers' Functions

You acknowledge that the Welsh Ministers have a range of functions which will
continue to accrue and be amended and that decisions in relation to each such
function are obliged to be taken in the light of all relevant and to the exclusion of
all irrelevant considerations. You agree that nothing contained or implied in , or
arising under or in connection with, these Conditions shall in any way prejudice,
fetter or affect the functions of the Welsh Ministers or any of them nor oblige the
Welsh Ministers or any of them to exercise, or refrain from exercising, any of their
functions in any particular way.

20. General

a. If at any time any of these Conditions is deemed to be or becomes invalid, illegal
or unenforceable in any respect under any law, the validity, legality and
enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or
impaired.

b. No failure or delay on our part to exercise any power, right or remedy under
these Conditions shall operate as a waiver of any such power, right or remedy or
preclude its further exercise or the exercise of any other power, right or remedy.
The powers, rights or remedies hereby provided are cumulative and not
exclusive of any powers, rights or remedies provided by law.

c. Any amendment or variation of these Conditions must be in writing and signed
by us and you in the same manner as this letter.

Tud. 164

44267940.16\gh01 1 63122



d. You may not assign or otherwise dispose of in any way your rights, benefits,
obligations or duties under these Conditions.

e. Any Condition, which by implication needs to continue in force and effect beyond
the end of the Funding period contemplated by this letter, shall so enure.

f. The award of the Funding is to you alone and no one else is entitled to make
any claim in respect of the Funding or seek to rely on or enforce any of these
Conditions.

g. These Conditions shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of Wales and England as applied in Wales and the parties hereto submit to
the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of Wales and England.

21. How to accept this offer of Funding

If you have any queries in relation to this award of Funding or the Conditions please
contact the Welsh Government Official who will be happy to assist you.

Please return the copy of this letter to us duly signed to signify your acceptance of
the award of Funding and these Conditions within not greater than 5 Business Days
of the date upon which you are entitled to so do following any required internal
approvals.

Yours sincerely,

<\;Z;;@vj;ézﬁﬁwé$§

Signed by Jasper Roberts
under authority of the Minister for Natural

Resources, one of the Welsh Ministers.

Tud. 165

44267940.16\gh01 164?23



We hereby accept the award of Funding set out in this letter entitled "FBC Approval", dated 4
February 2016 and the Conditions relating to the Funding.

Signature

Name
An authorised signatory of Flintshire County Council

Date

Signature

Name
An authorised signatory of Flintshire County Council

Date

Tud. 166

44267940.16\gh01 1 651 24



Schedule A

Special Conditions

You shall:

1. not enter into the Contract unless and until a Deed of Variation has been entered into
between Tata Steel UK Ltd, Flintshire County Council and the Contractor, relating to
restrictive covenants affecting the site, owned by Flintshire County Council which is
being leased to the Contractor and which will be the site of the new facility;

2. ensure that all Partnership Authorities are fully aware of the potential for, and quantum
of, compensation payable by the Authorities if any person, having the right to claim for
breach of any of the restrictive covenants referred to in 1 above, makes such a claim that
results in termination of the Contract in accordance with its relevant terms; and that all
Partnership Authorities have agreed that such quantum of compensation is reasonable in
the circumstances; and that they each understand and accept their respective liability to
contribute to such payment; and that Welsh Government will not, in any circumstances,
be liable to contribute to any such compensation payments;

3. as soon as practicable after the date of this letter, contact Value Wales in order to
provide the Welsh Government with details of Community Benefits that will be
delivered as a result of the Project; and, comply with any reporting requirements
made known to you relating to Community Benefits that will be delivered as a result
of the Project from time to time;

4, comply with the Special Conditions relating to Energy Efficiency of the Facility set out in
Schedule C;
5. not, without the Welsh Government Official's (WGO) prior written approval (such

approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed), agree to or make any material
changes to the terms of the Contract or any other changes which represent a
departure from the Contract entered into at financial close;

6. notify the WGO of any proposed material changes to the proposed services, including as
a result of a Change (including any Change in Law). In the event of a proposed change,
and if so required by the WGO, you shall submit a Variation Business Case to the WGO
and must not proceed with the proposed change until receipt of the WGO's written
approval (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed);

7. notify the WGO of any material delay in the Project's Service Commencement Date,
whether such delay is a consequence of issues of Consent, procurement, or any
other issue within or without your control, including (without limitation) you or
Contractor Default under the Contract. In cases of delay beyond the latest to occur
Longstop Date in the Contract, you must, if so required by the Welsh Government,
submit a Variation Business Case to the Welsh Government;

8. prior to exercising any right to terminate the contract, discuss all relevant issues with the
Welsh Government;

9. not exercise any option relating to the reversion of the facility (if any) without the Welsh
Government's prior written approval;

Tud. 167

44267940.16\gh01 16625



10. provide to the WGO all information that the WGO from time to time reasonably requests
in relation to the Project and act proactively and in good faith in providing the WGO with
information relevant to the Welsh Government's involvement with the Project.

11. We reserve the right to meet with you, to review progress of the Project at no more than
2 yearly intervals (commencing at the date of issue of this letter). The purpose of the
meeting will be to discuss the progress of the Project and ensure that it remains in
line with the Application and the Conditions. You shall ensure that the meeting will be
attended by the Senior Responsible Owner, and/or appropriately qualified and
suitably informed authority personnel, capable of dealing with all matters to be
discussed at the meeting pursuant to an agreed agenda.

Tud. 168

44267940.16\gh01 167126



12, Schedule B

Copy of Payment Profile Letter

4_70 7
Adran yr Amgylchedd a Cynaliadwyedd (ﬁ?
Department for Environment and Sustainability .}\\/ =

L2

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Project Managers

Residual Waste Programme
Parc Cathays 1 Cathays Park

Caerdydd | Cardiff
C-F10 3NO

Ein cyf / Our ref: Financial

Support Payments
Dyddiad / Date: 26/07/2012

Dear Project Manager

Financial Support Payment Arrangements from Welsh Government

This letter confirms the timing of Welsh Government funding support to local authorities
for the treatment of local authority municipal residual waste in line with the approved
Full Business Case (FBC).

Payments will be made to the Lead Authority.

The Welsh Government will provide funding support as

fo'lows: Revenue contribution

The revenue contribution will be paid as agreed in the FBC Approval Letter, on a
quarterly basis in arrears with the Sustainable Waste Management Grant (SWMG) for
the duration of the contract.

Payments will be made at the end of June, September, December and March. Revenue
contributions will be paid on a pro-rata basis for the first and foal quarters, dependent upon the
Services Commencement Date and the date of contract expiry or early termination.

| hope this provides clarity on the matter but if you have any further questions please
do not hesitate to contact the Programme Office.

Jasner.Roliertsa'oales.osi
cov uk 02920 823833

Cathays Park/Parc Cathays
CardrffiCaercilydd
10041112 MPH 11T CF10 3NO

Tud. 169

44267940.16\gh01 1 681’22



Yours sincerely
\\ﬁwm&& _

JASPER ROBERTS

Waste Infrastructure Programme
SRO Waste and Resource
Efficiency Division

Tud. 170

44267940.16\gh01 16@28



Schedule C

Special Conditions relating to Energy Efficiency of the Facility

You must take all steps available to you under the Contract to require the
Contractor to secure and maintain R1 status in respect of the Facility.

You must notify the Welsh Government Official (WGQO) when the Facility is first
certified by the Relevant Authority as a recovery, rather than disposal, operation
signified by the award of R1 status (which, in this appendix shall mean R1 or its
successor standard from time to time); and, within 5 Business Days of your receipt
of the same, provide to the WGO a copy of the R1 certificate issued by the
Relevant Authority.

You must provide to the WGO a copy of each subsequent certificate confirming
that the Facility qualifies as a recovery (rather than disposal) operation throughout
the term of the Contract.

When, in order to comply with your obligations pursuant to these Special
Conditions, you appoint a technical advisor to the project (PTA) the relevant
appointment must include a duty of care to the Welsh Government as well as to
the appointing authority.

If at any time during the term of the Contract the Facility is designated as a
disposal, rather than recovery, operation in that it fails to initially achieve or
maintain R1 status; or during operations you become aware that the Facility may
lose its R1 status, you must, within 10 Business Days of becoming aware of such
an event or failure, notify the WGO in writing including with such notification:

a. details of why the Facility failed to achieve/maintain R1 status, or may lose
its
R1 status;

b. whether the failure is capable of rectification;
c. what steps the Project has taken under the Contract;

d. if the failure is capable of rectification, if a rectification plan is being/has
been prepared;

e. if a rectification plan has been prepared and agreed or determined under the
Contract Dispute Resolution Procedure:

i. written assurance from the PTA that, if the works set out in the
rectification plan are carried out, R1 status can be reasonably
expected to be maintained, achieved or restored (as appropriate); and

ii. details of the timetable to complete the necessary works.

f. if a rectification plan has yet to be produced, details of when it will be
completed and confirmation that the PTA will review the relevant plan and
provide an opinion of the plan to you within 15 Business Days of the Project's
receipt of the plan; and that assurance will be provided to the WGO as soon as
practicable in the same terms indicated in paragraph (f) above.

Tud. 171
170



The Welsh Government accepts that it is possible that if Rl efficiency is restored
following rectification work, there could be a delay before formal R1 status is
restored following certification by Natural Resources Wales. You are therefore
required to provide the WGO with:

a. written confirmation, within [5] Business Days of completion of all necessary
works and subsequent testing, from the PTA that the facility is operating at the
relevant efficiency level following carrying out of the rectification works; and
subsequently

b. a copy of the certificate issued by the Relevant Authority within the 5 Business
Days of receipt by you.

Subject to your compliance with the Special Condition set out in
paragraphs 1 to 6 (inclusive); and subject to the appropriate assurance from the
PTA (pursuant to Special Condition 5 (e) (i)) that, if carried out, the rectification
works can be reasonably expected to secure or restore R1 status, Welsh
Government funding support for the Project will not be withdrawn.

If notification is made to the WGO pursuant to paragraph 5 above, the WGO
will agree with you a long stop date (based on the proposed rectification
timetable referred to in paragraph (e) (ii) above) (the "Rectification Longstop
Date"). If by the Rectification Longstop Date, notification pursuant to paragraph
6 above has not been received by the WGO, you will meet with the WGO to
review the position. Following any such review, if it is apparent to the Welsh
Government (acting reasonably) that R1 status will not be restored within such
period as is reasonable (taking into account all relevant factors giving rise to
the loss of or failure to secure R1 status and taking into account whether or not:

a. you have exercised and enforced your rights against the Contractor in relation
to R1 status under the Contract; and/or

b. the Contractor has resourced and carried out the rectification works in
accordance with the rectification plan and timetable provided to the WGO
pursuant to paragraph 5)

the Welsh Government shall have the right to withdraw future funding support
for the Project.

Tud. 172
171



The Common Seal of CONWY COUNTY )
BOROUGH COUNCIL was affixed in the )
presence of: )

Authorised Sealing Officer

The Common Seal of DENBIGHSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL was affixed in the
presence of:

~— — —

Chairman/Vice Chairman

Authorised Signatory

The Common Seal of FLINTSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL was affixed in the
presence of:

~— — —

Chairman

Chief Executive

Tud. 173
172

44267940.16\gh01 131



The Common Seal of GWYNEDD
COUNCIL was affixed in the
presence of:

~— — —

Legal and Cabinet Service Manager

The Common Seal of

CYNGOR SIR YNYS MON /
ISLE OF

ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL
was affixed in the presence of:

~— ' — N —

Solicitor

Tud. 174
173

44267940.16\gh01 132



	Rhaglen
	1 Rhaglen Cyd-Bwyllgor Gwastraff Gweddilliol Gogledd Cymru 27-6-16
	Agenda Front Sheet
	Agenda item 4
	Agenda item 6
	Agenda item 6a
	Agenda item 7
	Agenda item 8
	Agenda item 9
	Agenda item 9a
	Agenda item 10
	Agenda item 10a
	Agenda item 10b
	Agenda item 10c




